PLANNING
Date: Monday 25 July 2022
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business.
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Howard Bassett,
Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on 01392 265107.
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the rear of the Customer Service Centre, Paris Street.
Membership Councillors Morse (Chair), Sutton (Deputy Chair), Asvachin, Bennett, Bialyk, Branston, Foale,
Hannaford, Jobson, Lights, Mitchell, M, Moore, D, Newby and Snow

Agenda
Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present
1

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence from Committee members.

2

Minutes
To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 25 April 2022.

3

Declarations of Interest
Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclose the nature of the
interest. In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, you must then leave
the room and must not participate in any further discussion of the item.
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer
prior to the day of the meeting.

(Pages 5 30)

4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 EXCLUSION
OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It is not considered that the Committee would be likely to exclude the press and
public during the consideration of any of the items on this agenda but, if it should
wish to do so, then the following resolution should be passed: RECOMMENDED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting for particular item(s) on the
grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Public Speaking
Public speaking on planning applications and tree preservation orders is permitted at this
Committee. Only one speaker in support and one opposed to the application may speak and the
request must be made by 10 am on the Thursday before the meeting (full details available on
request from the Democratic Services Officer).
5

Planning Application No. 21/1564/OUT - Former Police Station and
Magistrates Court, Heavitree Road, Exeter
To consider the report of the Director City Development

6

Planning Application No. 21/0496/FUL - Land at Ikea Way, Exeter
To consider the report of the Director City Development

7

(Pages
159 - 168)

List of Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications
To consider the report of the Director City Development

10

(Pages
127 - 158)

Application No 22/0361/FUL - 13 Monkswell Road, Exeter
To consider the report of the Director City Development

9

(Pages 93
- 126)

Planning Application No. 22/0313/FUL and 22/0384/LBC - Honeylands
Hospital for Children, Pinhoe Road, Exeter
To consider the report of the Director City Development

8

(Pages 31
- 92)

(Pages
169 - 222)

Appeals Report
To consider the report of the Director City Development

(Pages
223 - 226)

11

Site Inspection Party - Rota for Visits
To consider the report of the Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support.

12

(Pages
227 - 228)

SITE INSPECTION PARTY
To advise that the next Site Inspection Party will be held on Tuesday 23 August
2022 at
9.30 a.m. The Councillors attending will be Councillors, Bialyk, Foale and M.
Mitchell
Date of Next Meeting

The next scheduled meeting of the Planning Committee will be held on Monday 5 September 2022
at 5.30 pm in the Civic Centre.
Find out more about Exeter City Council services by looking at our web site http://www.exeter.gov.uk.
This will give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question
at a Scrutiny Committee meeting. Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer
(Committees) on (01392) 265107 for further information.
Follow us:
Twitter
Facebook

Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265107.
Planning Acronyms used in the Planning Application Reports are set out below:The following list explains the acronyms used in Officers reports:
AH
Affordable Housing
AIP
Approval in Principle
BCIS
Building Cost Information Service
CEMP
Construction Environmental Management Plan
CIL
Community Infrastructure Levy
DCC
Devon County Council
DCLG
Department for Communities and Local Government: the former name of the Ministry
of Housing, Communities & Local Government
DfE
Department for Education
DfT
Department for Transport
dph
Dwellings per hectare
ECC
Exeter City Council
EIA
Environment Impact Assessment
EPS
European Protected Species
ESFA
Education and Skills Funding Agency
ha
Hectares
HMPE
Highway Maintainable at Public Expense

ICNIRP
MHCLG
NPPF
QBAR
SAM
SANGS
SEDEMS
SPA
SPD
SPR
TA
TEMPro
TPO
TRO
UE

International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
National Planning Policy Framework
The mean annual flood: the value of the average annual flood event recorded in a river
Scheduled Ancient Monument
Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space
South East Devon European Sites Mitigation Strategy
Special Protection Area
Supplementary Planning Document
Standard Percentage Runoff
Transport Assessment
Trip End Model Presentation Program
Tree Preservation Order
Traffic Regulation Order
Urban Extension

Agenda Item 2
PLANNING COMMITTEE
Monday 25 April 2022
Present:Councillor Emma Morse (Chair)
Councillors Williams, Branston, Denning, Hannaford, Mrs Henson, Lights, Mitchell, M,
Moore, D and Sutton
Also Present
Service Lead for City Development, Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH),
Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS), Project Officer (Planning) (EP), Planning
Solicitor and Democratic Services Officer (HB)
Councillors Harvey, Sheldon and Sparling attended under Standing Order No 44.
13

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2022 were taken as read, approved
and signed by the Chair as correct.

14

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
A Member declared the following interest:COUNCILLOR
Councillor Branston

15

MINUTE
Min. No 16 – non pecuniary

PLANNING APPLICATION NO 21/1864/FUL - FORMER EXETER ROYAL
ACADEMY FOR THE DEAF (ERADE), TOPSHAM ROAD, EXETER
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS) presented the planning
application for the re-development for retirement living accommodation (60 years
old and/or partner over 55 years old) comprising 84 retirement apartments including
communal facilities, access, car parking and landscaping. Attention was drawn to
the matters on the update sheet and wording for conditions 3 and 15 listed in the
report was provided.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS) described the layout and
location of the site through the site location plans, aerial views and photos of the
site and panoramic views from and to adjoining areas, elevations of the
development in relation to adjoining roads and the design and layout of the three,
four and in part, five floors, the report presented setting out the following key
issues:principle of development
scale, design, impact on character and appearance;
access and parking;
affordable housing;
impact on amenity and biodiversity;

Page 5

sustainable construction;
contaminated land;
economic benefits and viability; and
Development Plan, five year housing land supply and presumption in favour of
sustainable development.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS) advised that a petition with 952
signatories had been received in the following terms:“We the undersigned petition the Council to consider the new planning application
for a Retirement Living Complex on the former ERADE site 21/1864/FUL with an
increase from 61 to 84 residential units together with the new Care Home below it
using the proposed access road into and out of the new development via the
Weirfield Road cul-de-sac.
Weirfield Road is a public taxpayer funded steep, narrow, residential cul-de-sac
which already provides sole access to St Leonard's Church and adjoining roads.
The detrimental impacts include unsustainable traffic congestion and reduced safety
for pedestrians and vehicles. Current proposals expect the existing community to
carry the burden of traffic to and from a private development. Developers need to
provide an access and slip road directly on to Topsham Road and take
responsibility for vehicular movements and associated queues generated by their
premises.”
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS) provided the following additional
detail:the proposed single building block followed the form of the permitted Assisted
Living Block, forming a u-shape open to the south away from Topsham Road
and incorporated a private garden space with the centre of the building. The
western leg of the building (fronting Weirfield Road) being three storey and
maintaining a three storey height stepping down the slope to the south. The
eastern leg would front a new open space within the wider ERADE site. The
massing of the proposed building fronting Topsham Road stepped down in
height from four storeys to three storeys towards Weirfield Road;
the main vehicular access would be from Weirfield Road, with a drop off/pick up
pull-in on Topsham Road. The applicant’s Transport Note concluded that there
would be fewer vehicle movements than for the consented Assisted Living
Scheme. The proposal incorporated 28 parking car spaces with turning space
provided on site to accommodate large vehicles;
the site would be developed at the highest density that can be achieved, whilst
meeting criteria set out in policies H2 and DG4 of the Local Plan and Policy CP4
of the Core Strategy;
the proposed building design and architectural style closely re-created the
approach of the permitted scheme the consent for which was extant. This would
ensure it read as a cohesive whole with the other elements of the wider ERADE
Site re-development;
the building would step down across the Topsham Road frontage towards
Weirfield Road from four to three stories. The highest parts of the building at
four and five storeys would face the internal courtyard and the open space to the
east of the building and the wider ERADE re-development. The overall height of
the building was reduced slightly from the permitted scheme. As such, the
proposals were considered to reduce impacts;

Page 6

the age restricted development provided landscaped setting to the building and
an enclosed patio and garden area for residents. A larger public amenity space
would be provided as part of the re-development of the wider site;
eight affordable housing units were proposed on site with a financial
contribution towards off site provision of affordable housing;
the Sustainable Transport Plan would be reviewed every year and the amount
of cycle provision was considered appropriate;
the design approach was considered to accord with development plan policies;
and
amended wordings were provided in respect of conditions 3 and 15.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS) in conclusion stated that the site
was considered to be a sustainably located brownfield site and was considered
favourably in the search sequence set out in Exeter Local Plan Policy H1, and as
such residential development was acceptable in principle. The design, scale,
massing, access and parking arrangements, off-site affordable housing provision,
and the impacts on amenity, ecology and heritage were considered acceptable and
the proposal was considered to accord with the Development Plan as a whole,
subject to the imposition of conditions and completion of a Section 106 Agreement.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (HS) provided the following
responses to Members’ queries:the illustrative designs showed a reduced impact on Weirfield Road with a
lowering of the scheme from the previous proposal and altered balconies. Trees
on part of the boundary also provided a barrier and the proposed building was
set back from the highway;
the access off Topsham Road agreed as part of the previous consent, and a
separate construction traffic only access had been provided from Topsham
Road;
Devon County Council had confirmed that vehicle movements into the site
would be lower than the previously consented scheme and that there were no
highway safety issues along Weirfield Road;
elevations, building design and architectural style, façade and balconies and
windows reflected the context of the wider re-development of the ERADE site;
the hierarchy of affordable housing delivery off-site was for either parallel
development on site, purchase of appropriate dwellings or a commuted sum;
negotiations were to continue on the viability assessment which did not provide
a full affordable housing contribution on site. If the details could not be agreed,
the application would be refused as the alternative recommendation in the
report;
the pull in off Topsham Road was for easy access as a drop off/pick up point,
for example, for deliveries or taxis;
Topsham Road was part of the Air Quality Management Area with the goal of
reducing pollution. The impact on air pollution for this scheme would be lower
than the Assisted Living Scheme previously agreed and included electric
charging points;
pedestrian access would be provided for the development onto Topsham Road
and there would be a crossing point on the eastern side onto Weirfield Road and
four residents’ parking spaces would be provided for Weirfield Road;
although submitted at Council on 19 April 2022, the petition had originated in
January and there had therefore been sufficient time for officers to respond to
the detail within the petition to include the necessary responses within the
report; and

Page 7

the Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Authority had commented on the
proposal and had no objections to the proposals but wished to continue to be
consulted and fire and safety aspects would also be assessed under the
Building Control regime.
Councillor Sparling, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, attended the
meeting and spoke on the item. She raised the following points:when planning permission was granted in 2018 the opposition to the siting of
the access point for both the Care Home and the Assisted Living sites on
Weirfield Road was ignored;
further unseen issues relating to Weirfield Road are likely in the future creating
conflict with the existing community. The solution is to use Topsham Road as
the access to both sites;
the original concerns remain relevant and will impact on the City for a long time
especially with regard to shifts in ways of living and moving around the City;
Weirfield Road is a narrow cul-de-sac road with resident parking on both sides,
predominantly single carriageway without passing bays plus a narrow pavement
on one side only;
the road is a key active travel route and due to its semi-pedestrianised nature,
is very popular with families, cyclists, joggers etc. By unnecessarily increasing
traffic on Weirfield Road, this will be going directly against the aims of the
Council by reducing the space available for active travel. The Transport Strategy
for Exeter has a goal of making 50% of all journeys originating and ending in the
City by foot or cycling and more safe space is needed, not less;
the car park will offer 28 spaces for the age restricted homes plus a further 27
spaces for the Care Home - potentially bringing 55 additional vehicles into
regular use on Weirfield Road;
increased traffic could quickly cause blockages on this single carriageway, as
vehicles try to join the busy Topsham Road, potentially also causing traffic to
build up on Topsham Road, resulting in increased air pollution;
the proposed access point would also be used by mobility scooters. The
pavement had been improved with two build out sections to allow a safer
crossing for people accessing the pavement on the other side of the road,
however, the pavement is not of sufficient width to allow buggies to travel up
and down, with space to pass each other. There will be direct conflict with
vehicles which is a serious safety concern;
there are mains power cables running along Weirfield Road and the road has
been excavated on a number of occasions which, if recurring, would impact on
waste collection and emergency vehicle access;
the proposed access point was the driveway to the headmaster’s residence, a
driveway that gave no access to the further site and allowed space for one or
two cars which is not comparable to a car park for approximately 55 vehicles;
access to the full ERADE site was from Topsham Road, which should set the
precedent for access to this new site;
the developers’ briefing document admitted that the most common concern was
“regarding the site vehicular access and car parking” but claiming to have
relieved these concerns by adding a drop off point on Topsham Road. However,
this does not address the vehicular access point and no improvement has been
made from the original plan. Whilst the new proposal may slightly reduce the
vehicular movements by the development’s change in nature, it does not
mitigate the issues with using a quiet cul-de-sac for access;
there is already a precedent for later refusal of access routes onto Weirfield
Road following the granting of planning permission for new residential
developments. An access point was included at the end of Weirside Place when

Page 8

built, however, due to the strength of feeling from residents at the time, a gate
was installed which is now kept locked at all times;
fully support the petition presented by Mrs Powell on behalf of the local
community. It was not widely publicised with no media publicity to keep it truly
local, which with 952 verified signatures, shows the strength of feeling of the
local community. Of the 118 objections to this application, 116 of these
referenced the access on Weirfield Road. Instead of a balanced approach, the
current plans lay the impact unfairly on local residents;
the alternative is to create access to both sites via Topsham Road; and
request a deferral for the developer to reconsider the access point and redesign
this with the local community and the future of Exeter’s residents in mind.
Helen Powell spoke against the application. She raised the following points:why should traffic which is ending up on Topsham Road be sent via a narrow
cul-de-sac when it can go straight to Topsham Road from the site?
local residents are in favour of the Retirement Living Complex and think it will
benefit the community, but with a modification;
I own a house on Weirfield Road which is 102 years old and is in one of
Exeter’s oldest streets. It’s a steep, narrow, single lane cul-de-sac, very popular
with cyclists, walkers, families, joggers and residents and is the main pedestrian
access to and from the Quay and its river paths. It shares its entry to and from
Topsham Road at the top with St. Leonard’s Church and its active community,
St. Leonard’s Avenue parallel to Weirfield Road and Barnardo Road opposite.
There is a thin pavement on one side, parking on both sides with no passing
bays, and a medieval wall running along the boundary to the site;
the access into and out of Weirfield Road passed four years ago has always
been seen by residents as ill-advised, as the Deaf Academy had several access
points for traffic on Topsham Road which worked very well for decades. Limited
visibility at the top makes it a challenging junction to negotiate and queue at,
especially with the new Highway Code rules when cars, bikes and pedestrians
are squeezed into a small space. Wheelchairs, mobility scooters, and motorised
buggies are not practical in this road due to its gradient. Artist’s impressions are
misleading as it is not flat;
the access point halfway down Weirfield Road was never a road, but a small
driveway to the School House;
Churchill consulted 109 households in late December 2021 and 118 objections
were raised by 16 January 2022, opposing the access road, and suggesting
Topsham Road instead;
an ePetition was launched in mid-January on the Exeter City Council website
and it closed with 952 local signatures, objecting only to the position of the
access road;
on the plan a new road junction can be seen using the existing signal crossing
on Topsham Road, to take traffic safely in and out of both the Retirement Living
and the Care Home, with a more prominent and secure entrance point with
surveillance on a main road for this high end development;
Western Power own a mains power line running down below this road, and
under the river. Weirfield Road has been closed and dug up for utility repairs
twice in the last three years and if this was to happen again, the residents would
be totally without vehicle access; and
the Care Quality Commission states that steep roads are intimidating for older
people.
She responded as follows to Members’ queries.

Page 9

the response from the developer have not allayed fears, particularly regarding
the unsuitability of Weirfield Road for the access; and
there were three accesses to the former School which should have been
replicated.
Stuart Goodwill spoke in support of the application. He raised the following points:speaking on behalf of the applicant, Churchill Retirement Living;
the wider scheme for the previous re-development had been approved in June
2018 with a further variation in February 2020. The consents approved an
Assisted Living scheme on the Churchill parcel of the site and approved the
highways access from Weirfield Road. The application seeks to replace the
Assisted Living scheme with an Independent Retirement Living scheme;
the proposal sought to maintain all the highway arrangements as previously
consented with the Weirfield access already being formed in part as part of the
previous consent. The drop off zone to the front from Topsham Road was also
proposed for deliveries, servicing and taxi drop off;
the scheme would result in a reduced level of vehicle movement from that
previously approved. Only a lodge manager would be employed compared to
significant care, kitchen and laundry staff required with the Assisted Living
scheme;
highways have confirmed they have no objection to this scheme and
acknowledged it would reduce vehicle movements;
the scheme had reduced the height and mass to that previously approved
which will provide an improvement to the Weirfield Road residents;
the proposal would utilise the existing approved access arrangements, reduce
vehicle movements from the previously approved scheme, would be within 700
metres of Magdalen Road shops and provide four residents’ parking spaces for
Weirfield Road;
all Construction traffic would be from Topsham Road;
the scheme would provide a CIL contribution to the Council of circa £860,000,
whereas the previous scheme provided no CIL payment and discussions would
continue on affordable housing;
the scheme would make a meaningful contribution to the Council’s five year
housing land supply and would deliver a string of social and economic benefits;
Churchill specialise in delivering schemes on brownfield sites within half a mile
of facilities and close to amenities. The average age of residents when they
move in is 79 and most moves are following a life changing event, like the loss
of a partner or downsizing. Most purchasers do not bring a car with them, but
those that do, often give it up after 6-12 months;
retirement living schemes combat loneliness and deliver other benefits. There is
clear evidence that demonstrates these schemes not only provide health
benefits and NHS savings but boost the local economy; and
the proposal is an improvement for the existing residents of Weirfield Road over
what has been previously approved on site.
He responded as follows to Members’ queries.
it had not been possible to identify an alternative access as the Weirfield Road
access had been agreed as part of the earlier scheme as the route to the open
space and the Care Home. Similarly, the earlier scheme had been agreed
without access off Topsham Road. Churchill had purchased the site from the
previous owners and were limited to the previously approved access
arrangements;

Page 10

a £860,000 CIL contribution was proposed, whereas the previous scheme had
no CIL Contribution;
the removal of the trees had been undertaken by the previous land owner;
Churchill were in the early stages of negotiations in respect of the viability
assessment for affordable housing because of the unavailability of the
consultant due to illness;
zero waste removal from the site was proposed; and
mobility scooters would be able to exit the site onto Topsham Road, those on
the lower ground floor to access via a lift.
Members expressed the following views:further consideration of layout and access should be sought from the
developer, together with information on progress on negotiations on the viability
and regarding affordable housing provision;
it is a concern that this application and the impact on residents has been
affected by the earlier decision regarding the development of the wider site;
developers should be requested to engage with local residents to discuss their
welfare and concerns;
the safety of mobility scooter owners on Weirfield Road is a particular concern;
dismay regarding the loss of trees;
there are no local shops along Topsham Road as the nearest shopping centre
would be Magdalen Road which is some distance away; and
the access arrangements, including the access to the Care Home and open
space, together with the pull in point on Topsham Road have been supported
by the Highway Authority and agreed as part of the existing consent for the
wider site. All three elements of the wider scheme had been previously
approved.
The recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions as set out in the
report.
Councillor Mrs Henson moved and Councillor Hannaford seconded deferral of the
application. The motion was put to the vote and carried.
RESOLVED that the application for the re-development for retirement living
accommodation (60 years old and/or partner over 55 years old) comprising 84
retirement apartments including communal facilities, access, car parking and
landscaping be DEFERRED for further consultation on the viability report on
affordable home provision and on highway matters.
16

PLANNING APPLICATION NO. 21/0835/FUL - 47 HOMEFIELD ROAD, EXETER
Councillor Branston declared a non-pecuniary interest and left the meeting during
consideration of this item.
The Project Officer (Planning) (EP) presented the outline planning application for
the conversion of a locally listed main school building and chapel, including
demolition of redundant classrooms and outbuildings, alterations and extensions to
retained buildings. Provision of two new residential units to retain one unit of
accommodation and create 25 new residential units of accommodation (Revised
plans).

Page 11

The Project Officer (Planning) (EP) described the layout, location and dwelling
designs through the site location plans, aerial views and photos of the site, the
report presented setting out the following key issues:principle of development;
loss of community facilities;
scale, design, impact on character and heritage assets;
access to external amenity space;
transport, access and parking;
trees and ecology; and
affordable housing.
The Project Officer (Planning) (EP) provided the following additional detail:the site comprised part of the former Bramdean School, a private school located
on the north-western side of Homefield Road. The site contained several
buildings, including two linked Georgian houses. The building was locally listed
and prominent within the street scene. The primary school building contained
one existing residential unit and a teacher's flat. The main school building was to
be retained and converted into 14 apartments (4 x 1 bed, 10 x 2 bed);
the site also included a large three-storey chapel. The two main buildings were
surrounded by several others, including a link between them, a covered gym
behind the main school and a further structure to the north boundary known as
the 'Homewood block'. The chapel building (music house) was proposed to be
retained and converted into nine apartments over three floors (all two-bedroom);
the remaining buildings on the site, including the covered gym, the Homewood
block, and ancillary single-storey buildings around the chapel, were proposed to
be demolished;
two, two-storey detached properties were proposed to be constructed. A
detached two-storey dwelling (four-bedroom) was proposed for the southeast
corner of the site with off-street parking and with an enclosed private garden to
the rear. A further detached two-storey dwelling (four-bedrooms) was proposed
towards the site's northwest boundary;
two communal amenity areas were proposed, forward of the chapel building and
a larger area behind the main school;
the boundary wall along the north-eastern boundary fronting Homefield Road
was proposed to be altered to a low wall with railings above, to a height of 1.1
metres. The existing main vehicular entrance to the site was proposed to be
retained; and
27 car parking spaces were proposed, with access to seven electric vehicle
charging points and secure, covered cycle parking.
The Project Officer (Planning) (EP) further reported the receipt of 19 objections
setting out the following comments on the main issues:Highways - the site was considered to be a sustainable location, within walking
and cycling distance of employment hubs, the city centre and the Heavitree
District Centre and the Highway Authority had not objected to the proposed
parking level, access arrangements, on-site parking layout and trip generation;
Trees and ecology - the Council's Tree Officer had stated that, although the loss
of trees was regrettable, a robust planting scheme should be conditioned as part
of any approval;
Heritage impact - the proposal retained the locally listed building and ensured its
continued use and the development was considered to contribute positively to

Page 12

the Heavitree Conservation Area with a sympathetic development opening up
the site; and
Future proofing/green energy - the Chapel building and two new dwellings
included solar panels to the roof with electric car charging points provided on
site.
In respect of affordable home provision, the Project Officer (Planning) reported that
paragraph 64 of the National Planning Policy Framework provided an incentive for
brownfield development sites containing vacant buildings. As the site contained a
number of vacant buildings a financial credit equivalent to the existing gross floor
space of the relevant vacant buildings could be offered as part of the calculation of
any affordable housing contribution that could be sought.
The following responses were given to Members’ queries:in view of the significant need for affordable housing within the city and subject
to approval, the Service Lead (City Development), in consultation with the Chair
of the Committee would seek to negotiate an affordable housing contribution, to
be secured through a Section 106 agreement;
conditions could be added in respect of a sustainable travel plan, additional
charging points and relating to waste disposal;
Devon County Council Highways had confirmed that the development and the
new residential units created would not be eligible for on street parking permits
and had requested that an informative be added to any planning permission to
that effect.
Councillor Sheldon, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, attended the
meeting and spoke on the item. He raised the following points:whilst the site was in need of re-development, there remained a number of
concerns;
although the applicant had also purchased the playing field, there was no
proposal to retain it as open space which could lead to further residential
development and a loss of a local amenity;
the cycle parking provision of 27 spaces for 27 residential units was inadequate;
electric charging points for bikes should be increased to eight;
whilst no parking permits were to be provided, off street parking was likely to be
more of an issue outside day time working hours;
the removal of trees was reasonable because of their impact on the adjoining
wall;
there would be a significant reduction in traffic generation given that during
occupation by the school the drop off and collection of children resulted in
congestion and pollution; and
support provision of affordable housing, but oppose the application and request
refusal.
Members expressed the following views:the development is in a sustainable location, within walking and cycling distance
of the city centre, the nearby Waitrose store and the Heavitree District Centre
and support request for additional charging points;
request additional conditions for a Sustainable Transport Plan, charging points
and on site waste management;
an appropriate design is required for the site; and

Page 13

the provision of affordable housing strongly supported to help generate
balanced communities. Affordable housing on the site would enable many
working in the immediate area to be housed close to their place of employment
such as the local hospital.
The recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions as set out in the
report with additional conditions to require a Sustainable Travel Plan, additional
charging points and on site waste disposal, with an informative added that no on
street parking permits would be provided.
Councillor D. Moore moved and Councillor Hannaford seconded deferral of the
application. The motion was put to the vote and lost.
The substantive recommendation was moved by Councillor Williams and seconded
by Councillor Sutton and, following a vote, was carried.
RESOLVED that subject to a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and Country
Planning Act Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure the following (as deemed
appropriate following negotiations and conclusion of the viability process):a Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Trust health care contribution of £27,647;
a Parks and Green Spaces contribution of £12,000;
affordable housing contribution with on-site provision the preferred option;
and
habitats mitigation contribution of £859.00 per residential unit.
All Section 106 contributions to be index-linked from the date of resolution
the Service Lead (City Development), subject to prior consultation the Chair and
Portfolio Holder for City Development, be authorised to GRANT planning
permission for the conversion of locally listed main school building and chapel,
including demolition of redundant classrooms and outbuildings, alterations and
extensions to retained buildings. Provision of two new residential units to retain one
unit of accommodation and create 25 new residential units of accommodation
(Revised plans), subject also to the following conditions:1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years, starting with the date this permission is granted.
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.
2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in
strict accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning
Authority on 17 May 2021(including drawings numbers), the revised details
received on 14 December 2021 (including drawing number A204 Rev P3) and
the revised details received on 23 March 2022 (including drawing numbers
A200 rev P3; A201 rev P6; A202 rev P6; A203 rev P5; A212 rev P2; A213
rev P1; A214 rev P2) as modified by other conditions of this consent.
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
3) Samples of the materials it is intended to use externally in the construction of
the development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. No external
finishing material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed
in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials used in the

Page 14

construction of the development shall correspond with the approved samples in
all respects.
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity
requirements of the area.
4) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, and any Order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification, no
development of the types described in the following Classes of Schedule 2 shall
be undertaken on buildings 3 and 4 as shown on drawing no. A200 - P5 without
the express consent in writing of the Local Planning Authority other than those
expressly authorised by this permission:Part 1, Class A extensions and alterations
Part 1, Class D porch
Part 1, Class E swimming pools and buildings incidental to the enjoyment of the
dwellinghouse
Part 1 Class F hard surfaces
Reason: In order to protect residential amenity and to prevent
overdevelopment.
5)

Prior to occupation of the development, details shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority of cycle parking provision for the development.
Development shall not be occupied until such details have been agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and Local Highway Authority, and prior
to occupation the cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with the
submitted details.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to reduce
reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraph 110 of the NPPF

6) A detailed scheme for landscaping, including the planting of trees and or
shrubs, the use of surface materials and boundary screen walls and fences
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and no dwelling or building
shall be occupied until the Local Planning Authority have approved a scheme;
such scheme shall specify materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers
and planting densities, and any earthworks required together with the timing of
the implementation of the scheme. The landscaping shall thereafter be
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme in accordance with the
agreed programme.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
these respects and in the interests of amenity.
7) In the event of failure of any trees or shrubs, planted in accordance with any
scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority, to become established and
to prosper for a period of five years from the date of the completion of
implementation of that scheme, such trees or shrubs shall be replaced with
such live specimens of such species of such size and in such number as may
be approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
these respects and in the interests of amenity.
8) No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site has
taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any contamination of
the land and the results, together with any remedial works necessary, have
been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building(s) shall not
be occupied until the approved remedial works have been implemented and a
remediation statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what

Page 15

contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together with
confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.
9) The Construction Management Plan by KHP Professional Services Ltd (dated 6
May 2021) shall be strictly adhered to throughout the demolition and
construction period of the development.
10) Prior to the construction of the foundations of any dwelling hereby permitted,
the Design SAP calculation(s) of the dwelling(s) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall demonstrate
that the dwelling(s) will achieve a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions in relation to
the level required to meet the 2013 Building Regulations. No individual dwelling
shall be occupied until the As-Built SAP calculation of the dwelling has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to confirm
that a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions in relation to the level required to meet
the 2013 Building Regulations has been achieved
Reason: To ensure the dwelling(s) will achieve the energy performance
standard required by Policy CP15 of the Core Strategy, taking into account the
Written Ministerial Statement on Plan Making (25 March 2015) requiring local
planning authorities not to exceed the equivalent of the energy requirement of
Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, in the interests of reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and delivering sustainable development. (Advice:
Please see Paragraph: 012 ID: 6-012-20190315 of the National Planning
Practice Guidance on Climate Change for background information.)
11) Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted, a travel pack for each
dwelling shall be provided informing all residents of walking and cycling routes
and facilities, and public transport routes and timetables, car sharing schemes,
and the location of local and central shopping and leisure facilities, the form and
content of which shall have previously been approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that all occupants of the development are aware of the
available sustainable travel options.
12) Prior to occupation of the development, details shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority of electric cycle parking provision for the development. This
should include the exact location of the facility together with the number of
electric bikes provided. Development shall not be occupied until such details
have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and Local Highway
Authority, and prior to occupation the electric cycle parking shall be provided in
accordance with the submitted details.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to reduce
reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraph 110 of the NPPF
13) Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of the development
hereby permitted, a Waste Audit Statement shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall include all
information outlined in the waste audit template provided in Devon County
Council's Waste Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning
Document. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved statement.
Reason for Pre-commencement condition: To minimise the amount of waste
produced and promote sustainable methods of waste management in
accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan and the Waste
Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document. These

Page 16

details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that building
operations are carried out in a sustainable manner.
Informative
Please note that occupiers of this development will not be eligible for on-street
parking permits from Devon County Council.
and further RESOLVED that:The Service Lead (City Development) be authorised to refuse planning permission
for the reasons set out below if terms of a Legal Agreement under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Ac 1990 (as amended) is not competed by 25
October 2022 or such extended times as agreed in writing by the Service Lead (City
Development) or if an affordable housing contribution cannot be agreed.
In the absence of a Section 106 legal agreement in terms that are satisfactory to the
Local Planning Authority being completed within an appropriate timescale, and
which makes provision for the following matters –
A Royal Devon & Exeter NHS Trust health care contribution of £27,647
A Parks and Green Spaces contribution of £12,000
Affordable housing to comply with Core Strategy policy CP7: eight affordable
dwellings and a financial contribution towards providing affordable housing
off-site in the city to cover 0.75 of a dwelling
Habitats mitigation contribution of £859.00 per residential unit.
the proposal is contrary to the Development Plan.
17

PLANNING APPLICATION NO - 21/1701/OUT - LAND FOR RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT AT HILL BARTON FARM, HILL BARTON ROAD, EXETER
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH) presented the outline planning
application for the construction of up to 285 dwellings with all matters reserved for
future consideration (Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale).
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH) described the layout and
location of the site through the site location plans, aerial views and photos of the
site and panoramic views from and to other parts of the city, the report presented
setting out the following key issues:principle of development;
access and impact on local highways and parking provision;
affordable housing;
scale, design, impact on character and appearance
impact on trees and biodiversity;
impact on heritage assets;
flood risk and surface water management;
sustainable construction and energy conservation;
economic benefits; and
CIL, Section 106.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH) provided the following
additional detail:-

Page 17

the outline application was for planning permission for up to 285 dwellings with
all matters reserved, including detailed access arrangements/design. Although
access was also a reserved matter, details of potential access points to serve
the development were provided. The development would be accessed via
connections into the road network forming part of the wider Hill Barton
development that have been, or are being, delivered as part of other consented
phases of the development. These roads lead back to Hill Barton Road. In line
with the Hill Barton Masterplan, the layout facilitates a further road connection to
Oberon Road;
details of the site in relation to the Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 Proposals
Mao including the Landscape Setting designation (Policy LS1) and the Exeter
Local Development Framework Core Strategy adopted 21 February 2021 - Plan
2: Monkerton/Hill Barton Strategic Allocation Policy CP19;
a plan showing the application site in relation to adjoining sites showing earlier
phases built out pursuant to original outline consent, the consented Persimmon
and Vistry sites both under construction and a site allocated for a local centre in
the originally consented overall scheme but not built;
35% affordable housing to be provided;
the proposal would also provide open space which will include a Multi-use
Games Area (MUGA) and other equipped play areas. A proposed open space
strategy was set out on the illustrative layout plan showing a distribution of open
space and play areas across the site, the open space area totalling slightly in
excess of 12% across the whole of the previous outline consent site area; and
the development would be connected to the district heating network.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH) reported changes to the
wording of conditions 10 and 15 and the receipt of a late representation objecting to
the application, summarising the following main elements of that representation:application should be subject to an environmental impact statement as an
Environmental Impact Assessment development;
question the impact of the scheme on traffic, air quality and noise perspectives;
how will the scheme be delivered without a link to Oberon Road, as otherwise
the impact on the three matters above could be worse than envisaged?;
with a lack of retail facilities, rail station and bus routes and a link to Oberon
Road, the development would be contrary to the Development Plan and a
fundamental change to the Exeter Access Strategy for the Hill Barton Area; and
any decision to approve would be legally challengeable.
The Principal Project Development (Manager) (MH) in response stated that:the traffic, air quality and noise impact issues referred to had all been
appropriately considered;
no objections had been received from Environmental Health, the Highways
Authority and National Highways, formerly Highways England;
the original outline application environmental statement referred to up to 750
dwellings, the current upper maximum total for all sites of 813 was not
considered to be a significant increase nor trigger a need for an environmental
statement;
the Highways Authority, in a late representation, had stated that the Hill Barton
Roundabout could accommodate up to 850 dwellings and there was also an
alterntive access into the site via Peppercombe Avenue;
the view of the Highway Authority was that, whilst a link to Oberon Road had
merit, particulary for pedestrains and cyclist, it was not essential for the
development to proceed; and

Page 18

the scheme did not preclude a link to Oberon Road and conditions would
facilitate it.
The Principal Project Manager (Development) (MH) in conclusion stated that the
site was allocated with the Core Strategy for residential development and therefore
the principle of development was considered to be acceptable. The site has
previously benefitted from an outline consent for residential development as part of
a wider site, large parts of which had already been constructed.
The following responses were given to Members’ queries:the hedgerow was not included in the area of open space;
the application was outline and details were illustrative only and not definitive in
terms of the ultimate detailed site layout which would be subject to further
approval via a reserved matters application. This would include house quality
and road layout/widths. The informative for the outline approval included
reference to the need for the developer to show that a total of up to 285
dwellings would be achieved to an acceptable high quality design standard in
line with local policy and national advice relating to design matters;
regarding fundamental concerns raised in respect of the application being a car
led development, these matters would also be considered at reserved matters
stage. The developer would need to show at reserved matters stage a quality
delivery which was not car led;
the play areas proposed at the top and bottom of the site were consistent with
the overall open space provision with similar plans for across the other
constituent sites for Hill Barton and which were considered acceptable;
there was no plan for a further air quality report as the earlier report had
considered the cumulative impact on air quality across the constituent sites and
Environmental Heath had raised no objection;
there was at present no proposal for a community facility and this was
consistent with the original outline consent for the Hill Barton area;
there was a potential link to Oberon Road and the conditions included a
requirement to build up to the boundary but did not have to connect beyond that
boundary;
the density of development would be very similar to the adjoining Vistry
development and that should additional number of dwellings be sought, a new
application would be required;
there was no specific community hall envisaged for the Hill Barton area; and
the completion of the total open space provision had been timetabled for the end
of the final development and would be accessible to all residents of the areas.
The Service Lead City Development explained how the development had been
considered with regard to the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact
Assessment) Regulations 2017. Schedule 2, Section 10(b) “Urban Development”
which was relevant as the proposed development site was over five hectares and
150 dwellings, two of the thresholds set out in the Schedule. As such, the Council
was bound to judge the proposal and to determine whether it required an
Environmental Statement. The key relevant environmental considerations had been
addressed in the documentation submitted with the application, had been fully
assessed as part of the planning process, and it had been determined that there
was no requirement for an Environmental Statement.
Councillor Harvey, having given notice under Standing Order No. 44, attended the
meeting and spoke on the item. He raised the following points:-

Page 19

the application presented the last opportunity to examine if the original
proposals within the Monkerton Master Plan had been delivered with reference
also to Devon County Council’s Pinhoe Area Access Strategy of 2013 amended
in 2019. There remained a number of concerns;
the link to Oberon Road was vital as there was currently no eastern entry to the
developments resulting in routes via the west of the site to access the northern
and southern routes along the M5;
the introduction of a half hourly train service from Pinhoe Station and the
provision of a Hill Barton rail halt were some years away;
£500,000 had been allocated for a travel plan to provide facilities for cycles and
pedestrians and an improved bus service. However, the latter was stymied by
severe operational difficulties being experienced by Stagecoach leading to a
recent Exeter Highways and Traffic Orders Committee declaring Exeter’s bus
service unfit for purpose; and
failure to deliver allotments and playing fields and a need to ensure the provision
of play areas as set out in the recommendation.
Peter Salter spoke in support of the application. He raised the following points:thanked the officer for his work on the application;
the application was the final part of the overall Master Plan for the Hill Barton
area;
it would contribute to the development of the Ridge Line Park, an integral part of
the Master Plan;
it would make a significant contribution to Exeter’s housing supply;
up to 100 affordable houses would be provided, 70 for social rent; and
substantial contributions would be made to education, transport and habitat
mitigation measures.
He responded as follows to Members’ queries.
a road connection would be provided up to the proposed link to Oberon Road.
As the County Council was seeking to deliver a wider strategic network it was
understood that the County would need to compulsory purchase land to facilitate
the link;
allotments were not included within the scheme; and
total open space provision was 10%, the overall provision across all sites was
12%.
Members expressed the following views:noted that the application was outline and that the Chair had given an
undertaking that the reserved matters application would be considered by this
Committee;
concerns regarding a number of issues relating to the development appearing to
be car led including long stretches of parking in front of dwellings throughout the
majority of the roads depicted, a small number of communal parking courts and
the appearance of a very vehicle dominated layout lacking sufficient urban
design quality;
285 dwellings should be acknowledged as a maximum and that to achieve this
significant further design work and justification would be required as part of any
reserved matter proposals which may necessitate a different design approach to
that depicted in the current outline layout;
in respect of fundamental concerns raised regarding a car led development, all
matters would be considered at reserved matters stage;

Page 20

welcome the 35% commitment to affordable housing as part of the
development; and
with regard to the absence of any proposal to provide the local centre, a wider
mechanism was required for local Members to be consulted to ensure local
facilities are delivered as part of housing developments.
The recommendation was for approval, subject to the conditions as set out in the
report.
The recommendation was moved by Councillor Morse and seconded by Councillor
Williams and, following a vote, was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED that:1) subject to a Section 106 Agreement under the Town and Country Planning
Act Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure the following (as deemed
appropriate following negotiations and conclusion of the viability process):35% affordable housing (at least 25% First Homes, 70% social rented and
the remaining balance as intermediate), 5% wheelchair accessible, mix of
dwelling types, cluster sizes;
District Heating obligations;
Public open space, including quantum, including quantum, play facilities
(NEAP, LEAP and MUGA) – specifications, delivery triggers, public access
and management arrangements;
£166,349 towards patient space at GP Surgeries (£584 per dwelling)
£186,117 contribution towards Special Education Needs provision (£653.04
per family type dwelling);
£1,033,928 contribution towards new secondary school provision at South
West Exeter (£3,627.82 per family type dwelling);
£550,568.70 Transport Contribution to mitigate the transportation impacts of
the development (£1,931.82 per dwelling); and
Habitats Mitigation Contribution - £1,130 per affordable housing dwelling in
respect of which CIL Social Housing Relief is granted.
All Section 106 contributions to be index-linked from the date of resolution
the Service Lead (City Development) be authorised to GRANT planning permission
for construction of up to 285 dwellings with all matters reserved for future
consideration (Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and Scale), subject also
to the following conditions:1)

Application for the approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the
Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of
this permission and the development hereby permitted must be begun not
later than two years from the final approval of the last of the reserved
matters to be approved.
Reason: To comply with Section 92 rule 2 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended.

Page 21

2)

Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the submission of any 'reserved
matters' application pursuant to this outline planning permission a phasing
scheme for the delivery of the development shall be submitted to and be
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The phasing scheme
shall identify the phases in which the development shall be constructed and
thereafter, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved phasing scheme.
Reason for Pre-commencement condition: To allow for the phased
development of the site and phased discharge of certain conditions as set
out in this decision notice.

3)

Pre-commencement condition: In respect of any individual phase
identified pursuant to condition no. 2 of this outline planning permission
details of the access, appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale of that
phase, (hereinafter called the reserved matters) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority before any development
of that phase begins and the development shall be carried out as approved.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To safeguard the rights of the
local planning authority in respect of the reserved matters. This information
is required before development commences to ensure that the development
is properly planned with appropriate regard to the reserved matters.

4)

Pre- Commencement Condition - Prior to or as part of the Reserved
Matters, the following information shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority:
(a) A detailed drainage design based upon the approved Flood Risk
Assessment, Hill Barton Road, Exeter, Northern Catchment, dated 8th
March 2021
(b) Detailed proposals for the management of surface water and silt run-off
from the site during construction of the development hereby permitted.
(c) Proposals for the adoption and maintenance of the permanent surface
water drainage system.
(d) A plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed at the
site.
No building hereby permitted shall be occupied until the works have been
approved and implemented in accordance with the details under (a) - (d)
above.
Reason for Pre-Commencement Condition: The above conditions are
required to ensure the proposed surface water drainage system will operate
effectively and will not cause an increase in flood risk either on the site,
adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for Devon Guidance (2017)
and national policies, including NPPF and PPG. The conditions should be
pre-commencement since it is essential that the proposed surface water
drainage system is shown to be feasible before works begin to avoid
redesign / unnecessary delays during construction when site layout is fixed.

5)

Pre-commencement condition: No development related works shall take
place within the site until a programme of archaeological works have been
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works shall be
carried out and completed in accordance with the approved scheme, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason for pre commencement condition: To ensure the appropriate
identification, recording and publication of archaeological and historic
remains affected by the development. This information is required before

Page 22

development commences to ensure that historic remains are not damaged
during the construction process.
6)

Pre-Commencement condition: Any reserved matters application
submitted pursuant to the outline consent hereby approved for a phase
identified pursuant to condition no. 2 which incorporates the spine road must
include a detailed design of the spine road which allows for a future link to
Oberon Road. Development shall not be commenced until such details have
been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with
the Local Highway Authority. Prior to the occupation of the 100th Dwelling,
or such other trigger point that shall have been agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority in consultation with the Local Highway Authority, the said
road shall be constructed up to the ownership boundary of the site in
accordance with the submitted details.
Reason for pre-Commencement Condition: To enable a future vehicle
link to Oberon Road in compliance with the Hill Barton and Monkerton
Masterplan

7)

Pre-commencement condition: No development (including ground works)
or vegetation clearance works shall take place until a Construction Method
Statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority (in consultation with the Met Office). The statement
should include details of include details of how vehicles, machinery and
other equipment involved in the construction phases of the scheme will be
deployed and managed to prevent interference and obstruction to Met Office
satellite reception facility in relation to its operational schedule, access
arrangements, measures to minimise the impact on the adjacent footpath,
timings of the proposed works and shall also provide for:
a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction
phase.
b) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
c) The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials.
d) Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the
development.
e) The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate.
f) Wheel washing facilities.
g) Measures to monitor and control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction.
h) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works.
i) Measures to monitor and minimise noise/vibration nuisance to neighbours
and the Met Office from plant and machinery.
j) Construction working hours and deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to
Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.
k) No driven piling without prior consent from the LPA.
The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the
construction period of the development.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interest of the
environment of the site and surrounding areas and to ensure that the
potential impacts of the construction works on Met Office satellite reception
facility are properly considered and addressed at the earliest possible stage.
This information is required before development commences to ensure that
the impacts of the development works are properly considered and
addressed at the earliest possible stage.

Page 23

8)

Pre-commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of
development a Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Plan (BMEP) which
demonstrates how the proposed development will be managed in perpetuity
to enhance wildlife, together with a programme of implementation, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
BEMP will be expected to incorporate the mitigation and enhancement
measures set out in the Executive Summary and Section 6 of the submitted
Ecological Impact Assessment (Ref 0852-EclA-LY) dated December 2020
prepared by GE Consulting. The development shall be implemented and
maintained in accordance with the approved Plan and programme of
implementation.
Reason for Pre-commencement condition: In the interests of protecting
and improving existing, and creating new wildlife habitats in the area.

9)

Pre-commencement condition: Any trees, shrubs and/or hedges on or
around the site shall not be felled, lopped or removed without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. A photographic record of
any trees, hedges on site shall be taken prior to any felling working being
undertaken. An arboricultural report shall be submitted to and approved in
writing prior to the commencement of any works to existing trees, shrubs
and or hedges.
Reason for Pre-commencement condition: To safeguard the rights of
control by the Local Planning Authority in these respects and in the interests
of amenity.

10)

Pre-commencement condition: No materials shall be brought onto the site
of any phase identified pursuant to condition 2 of this approval, nor any
development commenced within such identified phase, until the developer
has erected tree protective fencing around all trees, hedges or shrubs to be
retained within the respective phase, in accordance with a plan that shall
previously have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This plan shall be produced in accordance with BS
5837:2012 - Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and construction. The
developer shall maintain such fences to the satisfaction of the Local
Planning Authority until all development the subject of this permission is
completed. The level of the land within the fenced areas shall not be altered
without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority. No
materials shall be stored within the fenced area, nor shall trenches for
service runs or any other excavations take place within the fenced area
except by written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such
permission is granted, soil shall be removed manually, without powered
equipment.
Reason for pre-commencement condition - To ensure the protection of
the trees during the carrying out of the development. This information is
required before development commences to protect trees during all stages
of the construction process.

11)

Pre commencement condition: Prior to the commencement of the
development hereby permitted, a Waste Audit Statement shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement
shall include all information outlined in the waste audit template provided in
Devon County Council's Waste Management and Infrastructure
Supplementary Planning Document. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved statement.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: To minimise the amount of
waste produced and promote sustainable methods of waste management in

Page 24

accordance with Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan and the Waste
Management and Infrastructure Supplementary Planning Document. These
details are required pre-commencement as specified to ensure that building
operations are carried out in a sustainable manner.
12)

Pre-commencement condition: No development shall commence until
details of the open space, play provision (including NEAP, LEAP and
MUGA) and associated landscaping, including a programme for its
installation and maintenance has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority and thereafter installed to an agreed
timescale and maintained in accordance with the agreed details.
Reason for Pre-commencement condition: In the interests of residential
amenity.

13)

The open space and play facilities shall be completed and made available
for use in accordance with the delivery triggers set out on drawing no.
HB/POSPP/3 Rev V3 entitled “Open Space Phasing Plan” unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the facilities necessary to serve the recreational
needs of the future occupants of the dwellings comprised in the
development are provided in accordance with an agreed timeframe.

14)

Pre commencement condition: No development shall take place on site
until a full investigation of the site has taken place to determine the extent of,
and risk posed by, any contamination of the land and the results, together
with any remedial works necessary, have been agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The buildings shall not be occupied until the
approved remedial works have been implemented and a remediation
statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what
contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together with
confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.
Reason for pre-commencement condition: In the interests of the amenity
of the occupants of the buildings hereby approved. This information is
required before development commences to ensure that any remedial works
are properly considered and addressed at the appropriate stage.

15)

Any reserved matters application submitted pursuant to the outline consent
hereby approved which relates to a phase identified pursuant to condition 2
that includes the spine road must provide an LTN 1/20 compliant crossing of
the spine road. Development shall not be commenced until such details
have been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation
with the Local Highway Authority. The timeframe for delivery of the said
crossing shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the Local Highway Authority prior to the commencement of
development on the phase within which the crossing is located, and the said
crossing facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access in accordance with
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
ECC Core Strategy CP9.

16)

Any reserved matters applications submitted pursuant to the outline consent
hereby approved shall incorporate within the layout pedestrian/cycle links as
indicated on Drawing Number PP/AP/01 (Parameters Plan for Access and
Permeability) for consideration as part of the reserved matters application.
The said pedestrian/cycle connection points within any phase identified

Page 25

pursuant to condition no. 2 shall thereafter be constructed in accordance
with a timescale that shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Local Highway Authority prior to the
commencement of the construction of that phase.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access in accordance with
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
ECC Core Strategy CP9.
17)

No part of the development within any phase identified pursuant to condition
no. 2 shall be brought into its intended use until the vehicular access points
and adjacent footway/cycleway serving that phase, as indicated on Drawing
Numbers 3000 Rev K and PP/AP/01 (Parameters Plan for Access and
Permeability), have been provided in accordance with details that shall have
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority
as part of any Reserved Matters Applications.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access in accordance with
paragraphs 108 and 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework and
ECC Core Strategy CP9.

18)

Prior to the construction of the foundations of any dwelling within any phase
identified pursuant to condition no.2 of this consent, the Design SAP
calculations of the dwellings comprising that phase shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall demonstrate
that the dwellings will achieve a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions in relation
to the level required to meet the 2013 Building Regulations. No individual
dwelling shall be occupied until the As-Built SAP calculation of the dwelling
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority to confirm that a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions in relation to the
level required to meet the 2013 Building Regulations has been achieved.
Reason: To ensure the dwellings will achieve the energy performance
standard required by Policy CP15 of the Core Strategy, taking into account
the Written Ministerial Statement on Plan Making (25 March 2015) requiring
local planning authorities not to exceed the equivalent of the energy
requirement of Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, in the interests
of reducing greenhouse gas emissions and delivering sustainable
development. (Advice: Please see Paragraph: 012 ID: 6-012-20190315 of
the National Planning Practice Guidance on Climate Change for background
information.)

19)

In the event of failure of any trees or shrubs, planted in accordance with any
scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority, to become established
and to prosper for a period of five years from the date of the completion of
implementation of that scheme, such trees or shrubs shall be replaced with
such live specimens of such species of such size and in such number as
may be approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority
in these respects and in the interests of amenity.

20)

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town & Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), and
any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification, no
development of the types described in the following classes of Schedule 2
shall be undertaken without the express consent in writing of the Local
Planning Authority other than those expressly authorised by the permission:
Part 1, Class A extensions and alterations

Page 26

Part 1, Classes B and C roof addition and alteration
Part 1, Class E buildings incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellings house
Reason - To ensure adequate protection from risk of physical blocking of
Met Office satellite reception facility.
21)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended), and any
Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modification, no
mobile base stations shall be erected within the development.
Reason - to ensure adequate protection from the potential of physical
blocking and radio frequency interference to the Met Office satellite
reception facility.

22)

No tree shall be planted as part of the landscaping scheme for the site until
the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with the Met Office) has
approved in writing provisions within a 'Landscape Management &
Maintenance Plan' to ensure that new tree planting shall only include
species which are expected to reach a height at maturity of no higher than
the ridge height of the dwellings as shown on any Proposed Roof Height
Plan submitted as part of any reserved matter application submitted
pursuant to this outline permission, and that long term management
provisions are in place to ensure that all trees and hedgerows provided as
part of the landscaping scheme will be managed at a height so as not to
cause unacceptable interference to Met Office satellite reception facility at
Met Office.
Reason - to ensure adequate protection from risk of physical blocking of Met
Office satellite reception facility.

23)

Any application for approval of Reserved Matters submitted pursuant to this
outline permission shall be accompanied by an Electric Vehicle Charging
Strategy that demonstrates how provision will be made to ensure that
appropriate provision of electric vehicle charging infrastructure is provided
within development. Thereafter the development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason - To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate
provision in recognition of the Council's Net Zero Exeter 2030 Plan and the
National move towards electric vehicles and the promotion of sustainable
modes of transport.

INFORMATIVES
1)

In accordance with Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework
the Council has worked in a positive and pro-active way with the Applicant
and has negotiated amendments to the application to enable the grant of
planning permission.

2)

In accordance with Chapters 1 and 2 of the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017, this development has been screened in respect
of the need for an Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the nature of the
development, it has been concluded that an AA is required in relation to
potential impact on the relevant Special Protection Areas (SPA), the Exe
Estuary and East Devon Pebblebed Heaths, which are designated European
sites. This AA has been carried out and concludes that the development is
such that it could have an impact primarily associated with recreational
activity of future occupants of the development. This impact will be mitigated
in line with the South East Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy

Page 27

prepared by Footprint Ecology on behalf of East Devon and Teignbridge
District Councils and Exeter City Council (with particular reference to Table
26), which is being funded through a proportion of the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) collected in respect of the development being
allocated to fund the mitigation strategy. Or, if the development is not liable
to pay CIL, to pay the appropriate habitats mitigation contribution through
another mechanism (this is likely to be either an undertaking in accordance
with s111 of the Local Government Act 1972 or a Unilateral Undertaking).
3)

The Local Planning Authority considers that this development will be CIL
(Community Infrastructure Levy) liable. Payment will become due following
commencement of development. Accordingly your attention is drawn to the
need to complete and submit an 'Assumption of Liability' notice to the Local
Planning Authority as soon as possible. A copy is available on the Exeter
City Council website. It is also drawn to your attention that where a
chargeable development is commenced before the Local Authority has
received a valid commencement notice (i.e. where pre-commencement
conditions have not been discharged) the Local Authority may impose a
surcharge, and the ability to claim any form of relief from the payment of the
Levy will be foregone. You must apply for any relief and receive
confirmation from the Council before commencing development. For further
information please see www.exeter.gov.uk/cil.

4)

A legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 relates to this planning permission.

5)

Further to the letter dated 9th March 2022 from HB Land Ltd on behalf of the
Hill Barton Consortium acknowledging that the application seeks permission
for up to 285 dwellings and the need for the layout to demonstrate an
acceptable level of urban design, your attention is drawn to the fact that the
illustrative layout (drawing no. 3000 Rev K – Outline Masterplan Layout)
submitted as part of the outline application (within which all matters are
reserved for subsequent approval) is not considered to constitute a high
quality design led layout that would comply with both local and National
polices relating to design matters. Consequently your attention is drawn to
the need for any subsequent 'reserved matter' applications to demonstrate a
high quality urban design approach to justify the ultimate number of
dwellings proposed that reflects local development plan design
policies/guidance and national advice contained within the NPPF (chapter
12) and relevant Planning Practice Guidance, the National Design Guide
and National Model Design Code.

6)

The applicants attention is drawn to the need to meet the Exeter Airport
Aerodrome Safeguarding criteria as contained in the Airport Operators
Association (AOA) Advice note 4 - 'Cranes and other Construction Issues'.

7)

The applicant is advised that they should contact the Met Office to discuss
specific issues regarding their operational requirements as part of the
development of future reserved matter applications to ensure that any
proposals adequately address potential impacts on the Met Office's
operational capabilities arising from the development to avoid the need for
significant changes to proposals post formal submission.
2) And further RESOLVED that:-

Page 28

The Service Lead (City Development) be authorised to refuse planning permission
for the reasons set out below if terms of a Legal Agreement under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Ac 1990 (as amended) is not competed by 25
October 2022 or such extended times as agreed in writing by the Service Lead (City
Development) or if an affordable housing contribution cannot be agreed:1) In the absence of a Section 106 legal agreement in terms that are satisfactory to
the Local Planning Authority which makes provision for the following matters –
35% affordable housing (at least 25% First Homes, 70% social rented and
the remaining balance as intermediate), 5% wheelchair accessible, mix of
dwelling types, cluster sizes.
District Heating obligations
Public open space, including play facilities – specifications, delivery triggers,
public access, management arrangements
£166,349 towards patient space at GP Surgeries (£584 per dwelling)
£186,117 contribution towards Special Education Needs provision (£653.04
per family type dwelling)
£1,033,928 contribution towards new secondary school provision at South
West Exeter (£3,627.82 per family type dwelling)
£550,568.70 Transport Contribution to mitigate the transportation impacts of
the development (£1931.82 per dwelling)
Habitats Mitigation Contribution - £1130 per affordable housing dwelling in
respect of which CIL Social Housing Relief is granted.
The proposal is contrary to Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy
2012 Objectives 1, 3, 5, 6 and 10, policies CP4, CP5, CP7, CP9, CP10, CP13,
CP16, CP17, CP18 and CP19, Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 saved
policies AP1, T1, T3 and DG5, and Exeter City Council Affordable Housing
Supplementary Planning Document 2014.
18

LIST OF DECISIONS MADE AND WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS
The report of the Director Planning and Development was submitted.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.

19

APPEALS REPORT
The schedule of appeal decisions and appeals lodged was submitted.
RESOLVED that the report be noted.

20

SITE INSPECTION PARTY
RESOLVED that the Membership of the next Site Inspection Party would be
advised.
(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 8.33 pm)
Chair

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Planning Committee Report 21/1564/OUT
1.0

Application information
Number:
Applicant Name:
Proposal:

Site Address:
Registration Date:
Link to Application:
Case Officer:
Ward Member(s):

21/1564/OUT
Police and Crime Commissioner for Devon and Cornwall
and PBSA Heavitree Road S.A.R.L
Outline planning application with all matters considered in
detail except landscaping, for the demolition of the existing
buildings and construction of mixed-use development
comprising Purpose-Built Student Accommodation (Sui
Generis) and Co-Living (Sui Generis) with associated
infrastructure. (Revised plans received)
Former Police Station and Magistrates Court, Heavitree
Road
7 October 2021
https://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&k
eyVal=R0M31THBJ2U00
Matthew Diamond
Cllr Richard Branston, Cllr Jemima Moore, Cllr Matthew
Vizard.

REASON APPLICATION IS GOING TO COMMITTEE:
The Director of City Development considers the application to be a significant
application that should be determined by the Planning Committee in accordance with
the Exeter City Council Constitution.
2.0

Summary of recommendation
DELEGATE to GRANT permission subject to completion of a S106 Agreement
relating to matters identified and subject to conditions as set out in report, but with
secondary recommendation to REFUSE permission in the event the S106 Agreement
is not completed within the requisite timeframe for the reason set out below.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation:
The proposal is considered to be a sustainable development when balancing the
development plan policies, National Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF)
policies, including the presumption in favour of sustainable development in paragraph
11, National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), and the constraints and
opportunities of the site. A s106 legal agreement and conditions are necessary to
secure affordable housing, infrastructure contributions and other aspects of the
development to make it acceptable in planning terms.

Page 31

4.0

Table of key planning issues
Issue
Sustainable Development and
Application of the NPPF

The Principle of the Proposed
Development

Affordable Housing

Conclusion
The Council does not have a 5 year
housing land supply, which ‘tilts’ the
determination towards permission
unless other material considerations
indicate otherwise under Para. 11 of
the NPPF.
The proposed use of co-living housing
and student accommodation is
appropriate for the site which is a
gateway to the City Centre in a very
sustainable location, close to an
education campus, within easy walking
distance to the city centre and with
public transport links to the main
University site. The development will
support economic growth through the
creation of jobs and resident
expenditure in the City Centre. The coliving use will provide specialist
housing in a highly accessible location,
and help the Council towards providing
a 5 year supply of deliverable housing
sites. The development will make
effective use of a previously developed
(‘brownfield’) site in line with local and
national planning policy. The proposed
development accords with Policies
CP1, CP4, CP5, AP1, AP2, H1, and H2
(as applicable).
The co-living element of the
development will provide dwellings,
therefore affordable housing is required
in accordance with Policy CP7. 20% of
the total number of co-living studios
(this equates to 71 studios) would need
to be secured via a S106 legal
agreement with first priority given to
essential local workers. This accords
with NPPG on Build to Rent housing
and is the consistent approach the
Council has taken to co-living schemes
in the City.

Page 32

Issue
Access and Impact on Local Highways

Parking

Design, Scale, Massing

Conclusion
Access will be improved for all users at
the junction of Heavitree Road and
Gladstone Road by provision of a
‘Green Man’ crossing facility. The
buildings have been designed to be
inclusive and accessible to wheelchair
users, taking into account the
Equalities Act 2010. The Local
Highway Authority has confirmed that,
subject to appropriate conditions and
off-site works, safe and suitable access
will be achieved, and there will be no
significant impacts on the transport
network in line with the NPPF. The
proposed development accords with
Policies CP9, T1, T2, T3 and Chapter 9
of the NPPF.
The development will be car-free
except for operational, disabled and
pickup/drop-off parking. Secure cycle
parking will be provided as part of the
scheme. The Highway Authority have
also identified the need for provision of
shared electric cycle and co-car
provision to make the development
acceptable from a sustainable transport
perspective. Subject to this the
proposed development accords with
the Sustainable Transport SPD and
Chapter 9 of the NPPF.
The proposal, which has been
significantly amended, incorporates a
high quality design. The scale and
massing of the buildings is appropriate
for this key gateway location along
Heavitree Road, which is a main
arterial route to the City.
Officers have successfully negotiated
improvement to the original design to
minimise the impact of the scale and
mass of the building and reducing its
overall impact by breaking up the
expanse of elevations, adding some
variations in the appearance/materials,

Page 33

Issue

Landscaping

Impact on Heritage Assets

Residential Amenity

Conclusion
and setting back the highest floor within
the roof scape.
The amendments have successfully
addressed previous concerns with
regard to the appearance of the taller
elements of the building at the junction
with Gladstone Road that now better
respond to the St Luke’s Campus
buildings opposite.
This matter is reserved. However,
indicative plans have been submitted
showing significant native tree planting
to mitigate for the loss of existing trees,
together with other landscape
enhancement works.
The application has been supported by
a Heritage Statement (CA Report:
CRO564_1; sept, 20201) which meets
the requirements set out in preapplication advice. The results of that
report provide a comprehensive
assessment of the heritage impact of
the proposed development upon
designated and non-designated assets;
for the most part officers concur with
those findings and the conclusion that
the cumulative harm would fall below
the threshold of substantial;
consequently refusal on these grounds
would not be sustainable. The site
retains the potential to contain
significant archaeological deposits and
these, if present, can be mitigated by a
programme of archaeological works
secured by condition.
Whilst each co-living studio is selfcontained, the scheme also
incorporates communal amenity space
to serve the residents. In the absence
of a local or national policy that sets out
space standards for co-living
developments, officers are of the view
that the quality of amenity that will be

Page 34

Issue

Conclusion
provided within the proposed co-living
block is acceptable. The amended
plans have also improved amenity
within the lower ground floor and coliving unit sizes are now 18 sqm or
larger.
It is accepted that there will be reliance
on existing public open spaces nearby
to provide outdoor amenity and
recreational space, and a contribution
is therefore sought to enhance these
spaces and their recreational value.

Impact on Amenity of
Surroundings/Local Residents

Impact on Trees and Biodiversity

The student accommodation
incorporates communal facilities that
are common to this established type of
purpose built accommodation.
Policy DG4 states that residential
development should be at the
maximum feasible density taking into
account site constraints and impact on
the local area, and ensure a quality of
amenity which allows residents to feel
at ease within their homes and
gardens. The latter applies equally to
adjoining properties. The impact on the
amenity of surrounding properties has
been assessed with regard to: privacy,
outlook, natural light, overshadowing
and noise. Overall, the proposed
development is considered to accord
with Policy DG4 in terms of its impact
on the amenities of surrounding
properties, taking into account the
urban context.
Existing trees will be lost as part of the
development, which is regrettable but
necessary if the quantum of
development sought is to be achieved.
However, new trees will be planted as
part of the soft landscaping works.
Biodiversity enhancement measures
can be secured by condition and a

Page 35

Issue

Contaminated Land

Impact on Air Quality

Flood Risk and Surface Water
Management

Sustainable Construction and Energy
Conservation

Development Plan, Material
Considerations and Presumption in
Favour of Sustainable Development

Conclusion
habitats mitigation contribution secured
by S106 legal agreement.
Environmental Health has
recommended a condition relating to
further investigation in respect of
potential for contaminated land, and
securing appropriate remediation if
necessary.
The site is not located within an Air
Quality Management Area (AQMA),
although the adjoining road is. There
are not considered to be any significant
residual impacts post construction and
a CEMP can ensure construction
related impacts on air quality are
minimised and mitigated.
The site is within Flood Zone 1 (lowest
flood risk) and the proposed uses are
appropriate in this zone. Ground
infiltration is not feasible, due to low
permeability clay strata. As per the
existing arrangement, surface water
drainage will discharge to the existing
SWW sewer network serving the
existing site, but at reduced discharge
rates.
The development has been designed
to utilise a fabric first approach and
renewable or low carbon energy
sources to achieve reduced CO2
emissions. In accordance with Policy
CP15 compliance with the required
standard will be secured by condition.
The site is within a proposed
Decentralised Energy Network area. A
condition will be added to facilitate
connection of the building to this
network. A Waste Audit Statement will
be secured by condition.
The proposed development accords
with the relevant policies of the
development plan.

Page 36

5.0

Description of site
The application site comprises the former Heavitree Road Police Station (including
custody cells) and Magistrates Court. The existing buildings on the site vary
significantly in height from single storey structures up to a central element comprising
five storeys. The existing buildings are set well into the site with the result that there
is significant space around them much of which is landscaped with grass and trees.
The buildings are not particularly dominant features within the townscape, and as the
taller buildings are set back from the public realm they are well assimilated into the
prevailing townscape/scale of this location on one of the main arterial routes leading
into the city centre.
The site is bounded to north by the playground comprising part of Newtown Primary
School, the residential flats making up St Matthews Close and the former Ambulance
Station which is currently being redeveloped as a Co-living residential scheme (ref.
19/1417/FUL). To the east the site fronts Gladstone Road and this frontage has a
vehicular access that led to operational parking and formed part of an internal access
road running through the front of the site. Heavitree Road is to the south with St
Luke’s Campus (locally listed) on the opposite side of the road. To the west the site
currently contains an area of landscaping including mature trees which sit between
the existing buildings and the boundary of the site with the a terrace of residential
properties that front it known as Higher Summerlands.
Ground levels fall across the site in both the north-south and east-west directions, as
a consequence the properties at Higher Summerlands are set below the existing
buildings (the distance between them is in excess of 35m). There are a number of
trees on the site frontages to Heavitree Road and Gladstone Road between the
existing buildings and the public realm/footpath, and between the existing buildings
and Higher Summerlands properties. These trees vary in species, size and maturity
but give the site a landscaped setting and contribute to the sense of greenery along
the length of Heavitree Road.
The site is located at the junction of Heavitree Road with Gladstone Road. The site is
sustainable in terms of its accessibility to non-car modes of transport. There are bus
stops in close proximity to the south of the site on Heavitree Road, the bus station
approximately 500m to the northwest, Exeter Central Train Station approximately
1.2km to the west and Exeter St Davids Train Station approximately 2km away, but
easily accessible via bus routes.
The site is within Flood Zone 1. Heavitree Road is within the Air Quality Management
Area (AQMA), the site itself is not within the AQMA. The site lies outside any
Conservation Area. The boundary of St Leonards Conservation Area lies to the
south of the site (southern side of Heavitree Road). Lower Summerlands
Conservation Area lies to the west of the site. Mont Le Grand Conservation Area lies
to the east of the site beyond Waitrose and the hospital buildings. Lower

Page 37

Summerlands to the west of the site beyond the Higher Summerlands properties are
Grade II listed buildings. The wall along the frontage of Waitrose is Grade II listed.
6.0

Description of Development
The proposal comprises the demolition of all existing buildings and clearance of the
site and redevelopment to provide a mixed Co-Living and Purpose Built Student
Accommodation (PBSA) scheme in two separate building blocks with associated
access, parking and infrastructure.
The application is for outline planning permission however the only matter reserved
for subsequent consideration is landscaping. Consequently the details of access,
layout, scale of development and appearance are all to be considered in detail as
part of the determination of the application.
A one-way internal service road/cycle route is shown on the submitted plans. This will
run from the south-western corner of the site off Heavitree Road, along the western
boundary between the properties of Higher Summerlands and the proposed Co-living
accommodation with trees either side, and then along the northern site boundary to
the rear of the proposed buildings and emerges on to Gladstone Road between the
proposed student accommodation and the Co-living development being constructed
on the adjacent former Ambulance Station site. The direction of travel proposed is
entrance from Heavitree Road and exit onto Gladstone Road.
The Co-living block would occupy the western (lower) part of the site with the student
accommodation block sitting between this and Gladstone Road. The two buildings
would be separated by a pedestrian walkway and associated landscaping running
from the Heavitree Road frontage though the site to link up with service road/cycle
route to the rear.
The Co-living block comprises a roughly rectangular building set around a sunken
central courtyard. As originally submitted this comprised 352 studios/rooms but
through evolution of the scheme now contains 358 studios/rooms. As amended, all of
the studio/rooms are 18 sqm or higher. All studios would contain a bed, kitchenette,
wardrobe, desk and storage/shelving space. All floors would be served by lifts and
stairs. Due to topography of the site the building incorporates accommodation below
ground level and varies in height from front to back and side to side, however the
amended plans have incorporated improved lightwells to address previous amenity
concerns. The main part of this block closest to the boundary with the Higher
Summerlands properties comprises 4 storeys (lower ground floor (LGF), ground floor
(GF) plus 2 further floors). This building then steps up in height along the frontage
with a corner element of 5 storeys (LGF, GF and 3 further floors) rising to 8 storeys
(LGF, GF and 6 further floors). This higher part of the block continues back into the
site with the rear element of the quadrangle dropping to 5 and 6 storeys. Whilst the
co-living building contains up to 8 storeys, from street views along Heavitree Road

Page 38

the buildings appear to be up to 6 storeys in height as the basement floors are only
seen in internal views within the site.
Overall the Co-living block comprises –
Lower Ground Floor: 45 studios, cycle storage area (256 cycles), communal amenity
area of 420 sq. m (comprising break out area, seating space and various
meeting/study rooms of various sizes, laundry) with access onto the external
communal courtyard amenity space. Rooms on this floor look out onto a light well
and retaining walls that are improved by the amended plans.
Ground Floor: Refuse store, 49 studios, entrance foyer and large multi-purpose
amenity area (375 sq. m).
First Floor: 69 studios, storage area.
Second Floor: 72 Studios, storage area.
Third floor: 51 studios, storage area.
Fourth Floor: 36 studios.
Fifth Floor: 18 Studios and sky lounge (100 sq. m)
Sixth Floor: 18 studios.
The proposed student accommodation occupies the upper part of the site and would
be provided in a block with frontage onto both Heavitree Road and Gladstone Road.
This block comprises two quadrangles arranged around two external courtyards and
a small wing on the Gladstone Road frontage which northwards towards the adjacent
former ambulance station site. The accommodation will comprise 677 rooms in a
mixture of studio rooms (33%) and cluster flats comprising a varying number of
bedrooms with shared kitchen/living area (67%). The studios range in size from 17 to
36sq. m and the cluster flats vary from 18 to 38 sq. m. All bedrooms would contain a
bed, ensuite, desk and wardrobe space. Cluster flats vary in size from 2 bed to 9 bed
clusters. All floors would be served by lifts and stairs. As the topography rises up
Heavitree Road, this building steps up in height slightly from the Co-living block and
presents a 6 storey appearance to the Heavitree Road frontage, albeit with the 6th
floor accommodated within the roof space. The height gradually steps down along
the Gladstone Road frontage dropping to 4 storeys closest to the boundary with the
adjoining development on the former Ambulance Station site.
Overall the Student accommodation comprises –

Page 39

Lower Ground Floor – Plant room, cycle storage area (283 cycles), 16 studios, 30
rooms in varying sizes of cluster flats, central communal student amenity space (470
sq. m) situated between the two external courtyard amenity spaces.
Ground Floor: Plant room, refuse store, cycle storage (74 cycles), communal student
amenity space (375 sq. m), reception/office (125 sq. m), 32 studios, 52 rooms in
varying sizes of cluster flats.
First Floor: 30 studios and 96 rooms in varying sizes of cluster flats.
Second Floor: 30 studios and 96 rooms in varying sizes of cluster flats.
Third Floor: 30 studios and 96 rooms in varying sizes of cluster flats.
Fourth Floor: 38 studios and 75 rooms in varying sizes of cluster flats.
Fifth Floor: 48 studios and 8 rooms in varying sizes of cluster flats.
The overall design incorporates gable ends, set-backs to break up frontages,
recessed windows and modern style dormers within roof slopes which conceal flat
roof elements of the buildings. In terms of material palette the scheme is broken up
by different materials for the Co-living and student accommodation elements. The
Co-living element utilises two shades of red brick with light grey mortar, grey metal
standing seam roofs/rainwater goods and double height windows to the entrance
feature. In contrast the student accommodation comprises 3 shades of buff brick, hit
and miss brickwork features, and mid grey metal standing roofs to the pitched
elements. Part of the building on the junction and Heavitree Road frontage also
incorporates double height fenestration.
7.0

Supporting information provided by Applicant
Design & Access Statement
Planning Statement & Statement of Community Involvement
Co-Living Management Plan
Student Management Plan
Draft Heads of Terms
Air Quality Assessment
Ecological Appraisal & Phase 1 Bat Survey
Energy & Sustainability Statement
BREEAM Pre-Assessment Statement and Design Stage Tracker
Fire Statement Form
Flood Risk Assessment & Sustainable Drainage Strategy
Heritage Assessment

Page 40

Noise and Acoustic Technical Note
Phase 1 PRA & Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report
Transport Assessment & Framework Travel Plan
Tree Survey/Arboricultural Impact Assessment
Utilities Statement
Additional Information Submitted During Application
Addendum Illustrative Townscape Views
Statement of Community Involvement Addendum
New Purpose Built Student Accommodation & Residential Coliving
Development – Statement of Development Benefits
Wildlife Hazard Safeguarding Suitability Statement on proposed Living/Green
Roof Design and Specification
Lightwells (design document)
SuDS Operations and Maintenance Manual
Public Realm Views 15 February 2022
Revised Flood Risk Assessment and Sustainable Drainage Strategy
Email dated 11 April 2022 from Transport Consultant to DCC Highways re
Conditions and Obligations recommended by Highway Authority in their
response dated 8 March 2022, and enclosing Stage 1 Road Safety Audit
(March 2022), Road Safety Audit Response (March 2022) and right-turn cycle
pocket image
Amended Drawing Pack 24 June 2022
Amendment Summary Document 24 June 2022, listing the following key
changes:
o Amendments to the unit sizes of the Co-Living scheme to ensure that
all units are 18 sq.m. or larger
o Amendments to the layouts of the Co-Living Scheme to indicate specific
amenity areas across the building and to include a ‘sky-lounge’ area on
the 5th floor
o Updated road layout showing the proposed junctions to capture the
agreement reached with the Highways authority
o Improving the Co-living lower ground floor rooms by substantially
increasing the lightwell patio garden
o Amendments to the indicative Landscaping Strategy, in order to
enhance ecology and biodiversity
8.0

Relevant planning history
There have been a number of minor historical applications relating to this site and its
former use by the Police, none of which are considered directly relevant to the
current application.

Page 41

However, on the adjoining site of the former Ambulance Station the following
application is considered of relevance to the consideration of the current application.
Reference
19/1417/FUL

Proposal
Demolition of existing
buildings and
redevelopment of site to
provide co-living
accommodation with
associated
accesses/egresses,
landscaping and other
external works (Revised
Scheme).

Decision Decision Date
Approved. 20/05/2021

The following applications, although not relating to the application site itself, are
considered relevant to the determination of the current application in so far as they
relate to recent applications approved for Co-living accommodation within the City,
and thus provide Members with a context from which to determine this current
proposal –
19/1556/FUL – Development of a Co-Living (Sui Generis) accommodation block and
a hotel (Class C1) including bar and restaurant, following demolition of existing
shopping centre and pedestrian bridge, change of use of upper floors of 21-22
Queen Street to Co-Living (Sui Generis), and all associated works including parking,
landscaping, amenity areas, public realm improvements, new pedestrian bridge and
provision of heritage interpretation kiosk. (Revised). Approved 23/04/2021.
21/1104/FUL - Development of two Co-Living (Sui Generis) accommodation blocks,
following demolition of existing shopping centre and pedestrian bridge, change of use
of upper floors of 21-22 Queen Street to Co-Living (Sui Generis), and all associated
works including parking, landscaping, amenity areas, public realm improvements,
new pedestrian bridge and provision of heritage interpretation kiosk. (Revised).
Approved 24/01/2022.
9.0

List of constraints
The Site forms part of the setting of the Mont le Grand Conservation Area to
the east, the St Leonards Conservation Area to the south (including a single
locally listed building within it (St Luke’s College)), and the Lower
Summerlands Conservation Area to the west.
With regard to the locally listed building near the site, this is a non-designated
heritage asset, as referred to in Para. 203 of the NPPF.
Aerodrome Safeguarding area (Birds)
Liveable Exeter Site – East Gate

Page 42

Heavitree Road - within Air Quality Management Area.
Heavitree Road – Major Road Network
Within ‘zone of influence’ for Exe Estuary SPA and Ramsar Site (statutory duty
to protect European sites under the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended)).
Residential properties adjacent to and near the site – amenity considerations.
10.0

Consultations
Below is a summary of the consultee responses. All consultee responses can be
viewed in full on the Council’s website.
Natural England:
Original Response to the Application:
“This development falls within the ‘zone of influence’ for the Exe Estuary SPA,
as set out in the Local Plan and the South East Devon European Sites
Mitigation Strategy (SEDEMS). It is anticipated that new housing development
in this area is ‘likely to have a significant effect’, when considered either alone
or in combination, upon the interest features of the SAC/SPA due to the risk of
increased recreational pressure caused by that development. In line with the
SEDEMS and the Joint Approach of Exeter City Council, Teignbridge District
Council and East Devon District Council, we advise that mitigation will be
required to prevent such harmful effects from occurring as a result of this
development. Permission should not be granted until such time as the
implementation of these measures has been secured.
Natural England’s advice is that this proposed development, and the
application of these measures to avoid or reduce the likely harmful effects
from it, may need to be formally checked and confirmed by your Authority, as
the competent authority, via an appropriate assessment in view of the
European Site’s conservation objectives and in accordance with the
Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as amended).”
Additional comments, including reference to national policy and Standing Advice are
provided relating to matters including Landscape, Protected species, ecology
matters, biodiversity gains, and access/recreation.
Response to the Amended Plans:
Natural England has previously commented on this proposal and made comments to
the authority in our letter dated 10th November 2021 (Our Ref: 372074).
The advice provided in our previous response applies equally to this amendment.

Page 43

The proposed amendments to the original application are unlikely to have
significantly different impacts on the natural environment than the original proposal.
Planning Gateway One (Health and Safety Executive):
Original Response to the Application:
Raised concerns from a lack of information in respect of the fire safety strategy for
the proposed basements. The applicant has taken these issued into account in the
revised plans.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
RSPB:
Original Response to the Application:
Comment on the submitted Ecological Appraisal and express support for the
mitigation and enhancement proposals set out therein which they also recommend
should be the subject of an appropriate condition if consent is granted. Specifically in
terms of bird boxes/bricks they recommend that provision of 100 boxes/bricks should
form part of the measures contained within any Landscape and Environmental
Management Plan (LEMP) secured through a planning condition.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Exeter Airport:
Original Response to the Application:
Airfield Operations Duty Manager initially commented voicing concerns about the
potential impact of the proposed green roofs and therefore objected as follows –
“Accordingly, Exeter Airport object to the proposal on the grounds of aviation
safety until the green roofs are either removed from the plans or suitable
mitigation and management controls supplied by the developer are approved
by the Airports safeguarding team and adopted for the life of the building.”

Page 44

Following negotiations and provision of additional information by the applicant (2021
12 17 - Aviaire - Suitability Statement - Green Roofs) the Airfield Operations Duty
Manager provided the following updated response –
“Thank you for the suitability statement from Aviaire, I have discussed this with
our airfield wildlife control coordinator and providing the contents of the report
are followed and adhered to then the proposed green roofs are acceptable,
and our previously raised objection can be removed. “
Response to the Amended Plans:
The revised plans/additional documents have been studied from an aerodrome
safeguarding aspect and they do not appear to conflict with safeguarding criteria.
Accordingly, Exeter Airport have no safeguarding objections to this development
provided there are no changes made to the current application and the previous
recommendations regarding green roofs are adhered to.
Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service:
Original Response to the Application:
No Objections commenting as follows regarding design –
“I have noted the observations within the fire statement form supplied and note
the design of the scheme will be in accordance with Approved document B
Volume 1 and 2 in all areas.”
Response to the Amended Plans:
No further observations.
Police Designing Out Crime Officer:
Original Response to the Application:
Comments on Management of co-living in terms of vetting of residents, managing of
a wide mix of people with different lifestyles/needs and creating of sense of
community and ownership within a potentially somewhat transient group of residents.
Suggest restriction of access to grounds of student accommodation to occupants
only, and at a minimum to the services road to discourage misuse, need for effective
access control to buildings, security of cycle/refuse storage areas, ground floor
window designs, surveillance/CCTV, lighting design, clear definition between public

Page 45

and private/semi-private space, general design matters and
management/maintenance arrangements. Recommends conditions relating to 24-7
onsite management and vetting of residents, CCTV, Access control measure to
prevent casual intrusion and manage mail delivery/utility readings and external
lighting design.
Response to the Amended Plans:
No further observations.
NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group:
Original Response to the Application:
“The CCG’s concern is that the combined surgeries of Barnfield Hill Surgery,
St Leonards Practice, Southernhay House Surgery and Isca Medical Practice
are already over capacity within their existing footprint therefore it follows that
to have a sustainable development in human health terms the whole local
healthcare provision will require review. The combined surgeries already have
27,907 patients registered between them and this new development will
increase the local population by a further 1,041 persons.” Consequently a
request has been made for a S106 contribution of £266,496 to mitigate this
pressure on local healthcare provision/facilities.
Response to the Amended Plans:
Revised S106 contribution request of £264,960 based on the amended plans.
South West Water:
Original Response to the Application:
No objection. Comment that clean water and foul sewerage services can be provided
to serve the site and surface water drainage arrangements should be considered to
ensure discharge is as high up hierarchy of sustainable drainage options as possible.
Response to the Amended Plans:
No further comment.
Local Highway Authority (Devon County Council):

Page 46

Original Response to the Application:
Notice is given under article 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 that the Devon County Council as
Highway Authority does not wish to restrict the grant of permission subject to a
number of conditions and informative notes.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) (Devon County Council):
Original Response to the Application:
“Although we have no in-principle objection to the above planning application
at this stage, the applicant must submit additional information, as outlined
below, in order to demonstrate that all aspects of the proposed surface water
drainage management system have been considered.
The applicant has proposed to manage surface water within underground
attenuation tanks. However, there appears to be space within the site for
further attenuation, which would allow the discharge rate to be reduced further.
The applicant must further assess the proposed surface water drainage
system.
The applicant should alter the levels and possibly the layout of the site to
prevent the need for pumping. The current site does not appear to require any
pumping of surface water.
The applicant should submit more detailed model outputs at this stage. If the
applicant wishes to use the Quick Storage Estimate tool in MicroDrainage,
then the highest storage volume should be used within the designs.
The applicant should use FEH rainfall data to model the surface water
drainage system.
The proposed sunken gardens and tree pits could be designed with surface
water inlets from the immediate vicinity. The applicant should assess this at
this stage.
The applicant should confirm whether rainwater could be reused within this
development. Rainwater could be used for landscaped areas and could also
be used to flush toilets.
Green roofs and living walls could be incorporated into the buildings. These
features may be appreciated by the future users of the site.
The applicant must confirm how exceedance flows shall be managed.

Page 47

Maintenance details are required at this stage. The applicant must confirm
who shall maintain the surface water drainage system. The applicant must
also confirm how the surface water drainage system shall be maintained.”
Following negotiations additional information has been submitted in respect of
the surface water drainage aspects of the proposals. On the basis of this
information the LLFA have confirmed (10th March 2022) they have no inprinciple objection and recommend a condition in respect of the detailed
drainage design.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Waste Planning Authority (Devon County Council):
Original Response to the Application:
Paragraph 8 of the National Planning Policy for Waste and Policy W4 of the
Devon Waste Plan requires major development proposals to be accompanied
by a Waste Audit Statement. This ensures that waste generated by the
development during both its construction and operational phases is managed
in accordance with the waste hierarchy, with a clear focus on waste prevention
in the first instance. A key part of this will be to consider the potential for onsite reuse of inert material which reduces the generation of waste and
subsequent need to export waste off-site for management. It is recommended
that these principles are considered by the applicant when finalising the layout,
design and levels.
This application is not supported by a Waste Audit Statement and it is
therefore recommended that a condition is attached to any consent to require
the submission of a statement at reserved matters stage to demonstrate all
opportunities for waste minimisation, reuse and recycling have taken place.
Devon County Council has published a Waste Management and Infrastructure
SPD that provides guidance on the production of Waste Audit Statements.
This includes a template set out in Appendix B, a construction, demolition and
excavation waste checklist (page 14) and an operational waste checklist (page
17). Following the guidance provided in the SPD will enable the applicant to
produce a comprehensive waste audit statement that is in accordance with
Policy W4: Waste Prevention of the Devon Waste Plan. This can be found
online at: https://www.devon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policies/minerals-andwaste-policy/supplementary-planning-document

Page 48

Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Local Plans Team (ECC):
Original Response to the Application:
Confirm that the Co-living element counts towards the Council’s 5 yr. housing land
supply and as a Build-to-rent product should provide affordable housing in line with
advice contained within the NPPF. Identify that both elements of the scheme provide
specialist forms of housing consistent with Core Strategy policy CP5. Refer to density
considerations and appropriateness of the proposals as a car free development.
Highlight need to be satisfied that the proposals incorporate genuine co-living
housing that offers generous levels of communal amenity space and a management
plan which fosters a communal atmosphere. Highlight need for S106 contribution to
off-site public open space maintenance and upgrading depending on adequacy of
onsite external amenity space in line with Local Plan policy L4 and the Council’s
Public Open Space SPD.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Tree Manager (ECC):
Original Response to the Application:
Following clarification regarding potential tree planting species comments as follows:
Comments relate to documents and drawings: Potential Access Arrangement
(Drawing no: 75001 Rev: P05), Future Access Arrangement Including Bus Lane
(Drawing no: 75002 Rev: P02), Bus Lane Safeguarded Land (Drawing no: 75003
Rev: P02), Arboriculture Appraisal (ref: H/A780/1120v1.2), Site Plan Proposed
(drawing number: D0003) and Sketch Site Plan (Drawing no: 5519-OOB-XX-XX-SKL-0007 Rev: P10).
The loss of trees on the Heavitree Road frontage (T11-T22 & A4) is of
course regrettable, but understandable, owing to the need to make way for
new development and bus lane provision. These trees currently form a
significant landscape feature and therefore, a robust planting scheme will
be required, in order to mitigate for their loss.

Page 49

Although some of the existing trees (T2-T10) on the west of the site are of
varying quality and value, collectively, these trees provide a significant
landscape feature, offering a buffer between the proposed development
and the residential properties of Higher Summerlands. Accordingly, it is
advised that the applicant reconsiders the layout of this part of the site to
allow for the retention of these trees.
The trees (T1, T23-T25, A1, A2 & A3) on the northern and eastern
boundaries are of relatively low value and the loss of which, can be
mitigated for. This is with the exception of Lime T26 which is being
retained as part of the existing proposal.
Removed trees will need to be replaced by a robust planting scheme that is
to be approved by the council’s Landscape officer.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Heritage Officer (ECC):
Original Response to the Application:
“I have considered the above application and have the following advice to
offer:
Summary:
The application has been supported by a Heritage Statement (CA Report:
CRO564_1; sept, 20201) which meets the requirements set out in our preapplication advice. The results of that report provide a comprehensive
assessment of the heritage impact of the proposed development upon
designated and non-designated assets; for the most part we concur with those
findings and the conclusion that the cumulative harm would fall below the
threshold of substantial; consequently refusal on these grounds would not be
sustainable. The site retains the potential to contain significant archaeological
deposits and these, if present, can be mitigated by a programme of
archaeological works secured by condition.
Discussion:
The design of the proposed structures are contemporary and represent a
departure from the suburban grain of the immediate environs in terms of mass
and dominance. The topography of this part of the city is one of wide vistas
and predominantly low level structures which serve to frame the descent into

Page 50

the city. Change does not necessarily equate to harm, and for the majority of
the affected designated heritage assets either distance or screening will
reduce the effect to acceptable levels, however the setting of locally listed St
Lukes Chapel will experience the greatest change. The building is of
exceptional architectural merit; if it had not been extensively re built after
severe bomb damage it would, in our opinion, be at least Grade 2 Listed.
Therefore assigned significance and level of protection do not reflect its
continued contribution to the city heritage stock and the affection the people of
the city have for it. The proposed development would harm the setting of this
asset, but as discussed the setting of this asset has diminished protection due
to the level of designation; it is therefore unlikely that the harm to the setting of
locally listed building would be a sustainable reason for refusal. It is noted that
the overall height and mass of the proposed structures has been significantly
reduced in response to pre application advice, the architectural treatment and
materials have also been softened and this has successfully reduced the
visual impact of the scheme; we however maintain that this could be reduced
further by a reduction in height across the scheme and the proposal
represents the absolute limit of the permissible development envelope.
In terms of previously unknown archaeological deposits, the site has been
extensively developed and it should be assumed that much of the stratigraphy
has been disturbed; however the site retains the potential to yield significant
archaeological deposits, even if those deposits are truncated. We advise that
should the scheme gain permission a programme of archaeological works
should be secured by condition in order to mitigate any negative impact in line
with national and local guidance.”
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Environmental Health (ECC):
Original Response to the Application:
Recommend conditions relating to land contamination/remedial works, Acoustic
Design Statement, Noise Impact Assessment, and CEMP.
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
Public & Green Spaces Team (ECC):

Page 51

Original Response to the Application:
No objection subject to approval of off-site contributions to mitigate the impact of
additional demand on off-site ECC-owned public spaces. Comments as follows: “The development provides limited private garden space for residents (three
small communal courtyard gardens), with little in the way of open space or
play provision on site, meaning that all new residents will be forced off-site to
use outdoor space. This will be particularly relevant in summer when we
expect many residents will want to use outdoor space for leisure and
recreation, putting pressure on existing ECC-owned public spaces. 5.1
Landscape Context states that “…the site is well located with a range of local
open green spaces within walking distance of the site.” It should be noted,
however, that Clifton Hill Golf Driving Range, Homefield Road Park (formerly
Bramdean School) and Magdalen Court School & Playing Fields are not local
open green spaces and should not have been identified as such – the
information is incorrect and misleading.
It is also noted that the application does not commit to the provision of facilities
for sports and physical activity, and as such there will be an increased off-site
demand for both public and private provision of these facilities.
Considering the likely demographics of residents of a co-living scheme, we are
satisfied that children’s play provision is not required as part of this application.
We also consider that within this location it is appropriate to rely on off-site
POS provision, subject to the agreement of an appropriate financial
contribution to permit works in neighbouring parks to mitigate the impact of
additional demand from the development.
If you are minded to approve the application, we consider that it would be
appropriate to recommend that the following contributions be agreed, (the
contributions to be requested as a lump sum and not per unit):
A pre-occupation open space contribution of £457 per bed space for the
maintenance and upgrade of off-site public open spaces serving the
development, to be spent on upgrades to local ECC parks serving the
development (to be requested as a lump sum, not per unit).
A pre-occupation outdoor leisure contribution of £117 per bed space
for the maintenance and upgrade of off-site play areas serving the
development, to be spent on the installation of outdoor adult fitness
equipment within the area serving the site (to be requested as a lump
sum, not per unit).”
Response to the Amended Plans:

Page 52

Our previous comments still stand.
Exeter Cycling Campaign:
Original Response to the Application:
Comment on cycle storage provision, including absence of provision for non-standard
cycles, desirability of provision of space within cycle storage areas for repair and
charging of e-bikes, security of cycle stores, upfront provision for shared electric
cycle stands, need for access to development by cycle to comply with guidance in
Local Transport Note (LTN) 1/20, potential S106 funding for links on Gladstone Rd
and College Rd to Exeter Cycle Routes E3 and E9.Would like to see some
improvements to design details to address these points and hence express a neutral
view on proposals as currently submitted.
Response to the Amended Plans:
Now objects to the application based upon the above matters that were previously
matters of concern and treated as a neutral comment.
Exeter Civic Society: Objects
Original Response to the Application:
“Planning sub-committee of Exeter Civic Society wishes to object to this
application.
We consider that the buildings are slightly too high and definitely too close to
the Heavitree Road, and that the Student Roost is too prominent as seen
across the Waitrose green copse by those travelling towards the city. We had
been hoping for more definitive information about a possible extra lane for
buses and to ease turning into Gladstone Road but we now understand that
DCC Highways has no immediate intention of providing this and that the
applicants believe that their design provides enough space for such a lane if it
is later required. This does not seem convincing as even without the extra
roadway there is scant space for trees which are essential along the frontage
of both buildings to soften the appearance and to improve air quality in an
area of continuous traffic.
Within each building the courtyards are not large. The height surrounding them
is so great that full sunshine will only reach ground level and those windows
on the lower floors when the sun is high in the sky. This is an extra reason for
considering reducing the height.
Regarding the layout of each floor of the Co-living building the Planning subcommittee considers that almost every room is of inadequate size for a

Page 53

dwelling which would be the occupier’s permanent home. Indeed the rooms
are appreciably smaller than those in similar developments which the city has
recently approved and surely do not accord with accepted policy DG4 which
aims to ensure a quality of amenity which allows residents to feel at ease
within their homes. The communal amenity space which the application refers
to as ‘fantastic’ does not appear to be great, and as it is situated on the lower
ground floor, it is remote from most of the individual rooms. The arrangement
of the rooms on long passage ways with no occasional interruption for
community space is unattractive and could be improved by siting a small dropout area midway on each corridor. This would also have the advantage of
reducing the number of rooms.
We trust that this present application will be refused.”
Response to the Amended Plans:
This will be reported on the Additional Information Update Sheet.
11.0

Representations
The application has been advertised three times, once when the application was first
submitted and again after the submission of revised plans and additional information
in January and then in June. To date there have been 111 objections and 1 neutral
response. The following issues were raised when the application was first submitted:
Exeter overwhelmed with high rise student blocks – too many student
properties
Enough is Enough- soulless student accommodation
Exeter all about University at expense of local residents
Is more student accommodation really needed – occupancy rates of existing,
especially in context of move towards distance learning
No longer sensible balance between University and City
Student accommodation should be built on campus
Empty large parts of year (student accommodation)
Lack of Council Tax from student accommodation
Question demand for student accommodation – occupancy rates of existing
schemes
Co-Living – Tiny rooms, squalid little hutches – future slums
Lack of clarity over communal facilities and creation of sense of community
within the development
Space standards of Co-Living – well below National Space Standards for 1
bed units – circa 16 sq. m compared to 37 sq. m
Poorly thought out concept of temporary accommodation
Excessive density – impact on mental wellbeing – covid demonstrated need
for space

Page 54

Poor amenity for occupants – light to rooms and surroundings – poor
courtyards
Poor design - prison like
Overpowering design – dominate main approach and surroundings
Oppressive as right up to pavement
Not fit urban street character of this stretch of road
Overdevelopment – size and height – more acceptable in a city centre location
not outskirts
Monolithic, ugly
Scale totally at odds with surroundings
Not in keeping with local architectural character, out of proportion and
vernacular style of surrounding buildings
Inappropriate location for development of this scale
Flawed design analysis – uses tight urban grain of city centre as justification –
this is not a dense inner city site
Incongruous siting exacerbates scale
Lack of contextual information
Excessively large – out of character – blocks views into and out of City
Harmful visual impact on entrance to City – eyesore
Proximity to pavement – out of character with prevailing pattern of building
along this road and green feeling along frontage
Replace ugly but unobtrusive old building on an attractive site with an
obtrusive ugly building on an unattractive site
Skyline impact – contrary to generally low profile surroundings
Eyesore – totally out of proportion for area
Excessive – both in density of occupants and height/scale of building itself
Lack of sustainability credentials in design
Need affordable housing for local people/Starter homes/family homes instead
of this proposal
Lost opportunity for theatre/concert hall
Lack of social housing provision
Lack of parking – impact on nearby roads and residents – ideologically flawed
carless concept
Pollution – occupants driving around searching for parking spaces
Missed opportunity to create cycle lane connectivity
Location of main entrance to student accommodation – encourage dangerous
crossing of main road
Highway safety around junction of Gladstone Rd and Heavitree Rd
Traffic impacts
Location of cycle parking and practicalities likely to discourage use
Cycle connectivity beyond site and associated highway safety issues
Disruption during construction – noise and dust for local residents

Page 55

Noise – impact on surrounding residential amenity
Impact on residents lives from disturbance associated with activities of
students
Exclude daylight from surroundings
Overlooking/loss of privacy
Change in demographics of area without providing local amenities or
infrastructure
Impact on local sense of community/identity
Residents have used site over time as short cut between Gladstone Rd and
Heavitree Rd to cut corner – consider this a right of way
Impact on nearby historic buildings and character of nearby Conservation
Areas (heritage assets) – dwarfed
Fails to compliment landscaped setting of St Lukes complex
Loss of trees – adverse ecological impact/wildlife
Lack of ecological information/surveys – especially in relation to bat activity
Loss of green space
Practicality of proposed landscaping suggested e.g. lack of space for frontage
landscaping
Contrary to Core Strategy Objectives (8 & 9)
Contrary to Policy H5 – due to scale, intensity, impact on character of locality,
and amenity of neighbouring occupiers and overconcentration/Community
Imbalance
Contrary to policy DG1 – design
Impact on local infrastructure – e.g. GP services, parks
Lack of public consultation
Proposal based on financial gain above all else
Overwhelming public opinion against scheme
1st Re-advertisement Revised Plans/Additional Information – January 2022
22 further representations were received in response to re-consultation in respect of
the revised plans/additional information submitted in January. Generally these
representations stated that the changes to the scheme were insignificant and did
nothing to address previously voiced objections and therefore wished to re-affirm
their objections. Notwithstanding this further specific comments were made in respect
of the following points:
Inappropriate scale (site coverage) and height
Unattractive building design – architecturally unsympathetic to surroundings
Building too close to pavement/Heavitree Road
Tree loss

Page 56

Over dominance of surrounding buildings/overshadowing, adverse amenity
impact
Worrying trend of proposals undermining attractiveness/character of City and
civic pride of residents
Impact on heritage assets
No-one is listening to fundamental objections to scheme that have been raised
Impact of influx of people occupying scheme
Anti-social behaviour associated with student accommodation
Student accommodation not needed, overconcentration in area, where is
evidence of demand and benefits in terms of releasing HMO’s for family
occupation
Fails to meet pressing need for affordable accommodation for local people
Question realism of car-free development and hence impact on local area
Contrary to zero carbon aspirations of Council
2nd Re-advertisement Revised Plans/Additional Information – June 2022
Further publicity is currently taking place following the submission of amended plans
in June. The deadline to submit new/additional comments is 21 July 2022. An update
will therefore be given on the Additional Information Sheet before committee.
12.0 Relevant Policies
National Planning Policy and Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2021) – in particular sections:
2. Achieving sustainable development
4. Decision-making
5. Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
7. Ensuring the vitality of town centres
8. Promoting healthy and safe communities
9. Promoting sustainable transport
11. Making effective use of land
12. Achieving well-designed places
14. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
15. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
16. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG):
Air Quality
Appropriate assessment
Build to rent

Page 57

Climate change
Community Infrastructure Levy
Design: process and tools
Effective use of land
Fire safety and high-rise residential buildings (from 1 August 2021)
Flood risk and coastal change
Healthy and safe communities
Historic environment
Housing for older and disabled people
Housing: optional technical standards
Housing supply and delivery
Land affected by contamination
Light pollution
Natural environment
Noise
Open space, sports and recreation facilities, public rights of way and local green
space
Planning obligations
Travel Plans, Transport Assessment and Statements
Use of planning conditions
Waste
Water supply, wastewater and water quality
National Design Guide (October 2019)
National Model Design Code (MHCLG, 2021)
“Building for a Healthy Life” (Homes England’s updated Building for Life 12)
Manual for Streets (CLG/TfT, 2007)
Cycle Infrastructure Design Local Transport Note 1/20 (DfT, July 2020)
Protected species and development: advice for local planning authorities (Natural
England and DEFRA, 7 January 2021)
Protected sites and areas: how to review planning applications (DEFRA and Natural
England, 5 August 2016)
Biodiversity duty: public authority duty to have regard to conserving biodiversity
(Natural England and DEFRA, 13 October 2014)
Development Plan
Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February 2012)
Core Strategy Objectives
CP1 – Spatial Strategy

Page 58

CP4 – Density
CP5 – Mixed Housing
CP7 – Affordable Housing
CP9 – Transport
CP10 – Community Facilities
CP11 – Pollution
CP12 – Flood Risk
CP13 – Decentralised Energy Networks
CP15 – Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Green Infrastructure, Landscape and Biodiversity
CP17 – Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP18 – Infrastructure
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
AP1 – Design and Location of Development
AP2 – Sequential Approach
H1 – Search Sequence
H2 – Location Priorities
H5 – Diversity of Housing
H7 – Housing for Disabled People
L4 – Provision of Youth and Adult Play Space in Residential Development
T1 – Hierarchy of Transport Modes
T2 – Accessibility Criteria
T3 – Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
T6 – Bus Priority Measures
T10 – Car Parking Standards
C1 – Conservation Areas
C2 – Listed Buildings
C3 – Buildings of Local Importance
C5 – Archaeology
LS2 – Ramsar/Special Protection Area
LS4 – Nature Conservation
EN2 – Contaminated Land
EN3 – Air and Water Quality
EN4 – Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
DG1 – Objectives of Urban Design
DG2 – Energy Conservation
DG4 – Residential Layout and Amenity
DG7 – Crime Prevention and Safety
Devon Waste Plan 2011 – 2031 (Adopted 11 December 2014) (Devon County
Council)
W4 – Waste Prevention

Page 59

W21 – Making Provision for Waste Management
Other material considerations
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version, July
2015)
DD1 – Sustainable Development
DD5 – Access to Jobs
DD8 – Housing on Unallocated Sites
DD9 – Accessible, Adaptable and Wheelchair User Dwellings
DD12 – Purpose Built Student Accommodation
DD13 – Residential Amenity
DD20 – Accessibility and Sustainable Movement
DD21 – Car and Cycle Parking
DD25 – Design Principles
DD26 – Designing out Crime
DD28 – Conserving and Managing Heritage Assets
DD30 – Green Infrastructure
DD31 – Biodiversity
DD32 – Local Energy Networks
DD34 – Pollution and Contaminated Land
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents:
Affordable Housing SPD (April 2014)
Archaeology and Development (Nov 2004)
Sustainable Transport SPD (March 2013)
Planning Obligations SPD (April 2014)
Public Open Space SPD (Sept 2005)
Residential Design Guide SPD (Sept 2010)
Trees and Development SPD (Sept 2009)
Devon County Council Supplementary Planning Documents:
Minerals and Waste – not just County Matters Part 1: Waste Management and
Infrastructure SPD (July 2015)
Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans:
St Leonards (adopted March 2008)
Mont Le Grand (adopted March 2009)
Lower Summerlands (adopted March 2008)
Exeter City Council Annual Infrastructure Funding Statement (31 December 2020)

Page 60

Net Zero Exeter 2030 Plan (Exeter City Futures, April 2020)
13.0

Human Rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property
The consideration of the application following Council procedures will ensure that
views of all those interested are considered. All comments from interested parties
have been considered and reported within this report in summary, with full text
available via the Council’s website.
It is acknowledged that there are certain individual properties where there may be
some adverse impact and this will need to be mitigated as recommended through
imposing conditions to ensure that there is no undue impact on the home and family
life for occupiers. However, any interference with the right to a private and family life
and home arising from the scheme as result of impact on residential amenity is
considered necessary in a democratic society in the interests of the economic wellbeing of the city and wider area and is proportionate given the overall benefits of the
scheme in the provision of homes, including affordable housing and economic
benefits.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance with
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the development of
land.
This recommendation is based on the consideration of the proposal against adopted
Development Plan policies, the application of which does not prejudice the Human
Rights of the applicant or any third party.

14.0

Public Sector Equalities Duty
As set out in the Equality Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their functions
must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under the Act;
b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it
involves having due respect in particular to the need to:

Page 61

a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that is different from the needs of other persons who do not
share it
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionately low.
Whilst there is no absolute requirement to remove any disadvantage entirely, the
Duty is to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage. In considering the
merits of this planning application, the planning authority has had due regard to the
matters set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.
15.0

Financial Issues
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning application
are in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. The Act requires that local
planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for a non-delegated determination
of an application for planning permission; and
b) contains a recommendation as to how the authority should determine the
application following section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.
The information or financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development which officers consider are likely to be
obtained by the authority if the development is carried out, including their value if
known, and should include whether the officer finds these to be material or not
material.
Material considerations
Affordable housing, 20% of co-living (72 studios) (Policy CP7, Chapter 5 and
Glossary of NPPF, and PPG advice on Build to rent). 5% of the affordable
dwellings to be fitted out so they are wheelchair accessible. Priority will be
given to essential local workers.
£370,612.34 habitats mitigation in relation to the co-living development only
(Policies CP16 and LS2, Chapter 15 of NPPF, PPG advice on Natural
Environment and Natural England consultation response).
£264,960 (£173,312 for PBSA and £91,648 for co-living) to improve facilities at
either Barnfield Hill Surgery, St Leonards Practice, Southernhay House
Surgery or Isca Medical Practice (Policies CP10 and CP18, PPG advice on
Planning Obligations and NHS Devon CCG consultation response).

Page 62

£472,995 (£309,389 for PBSA and £163,606 for co-living) Open space
contribution for maintenance and upgrade of off-site public open spaces
(Policy L4, Public Open Space SPD and consultation response from ECC
Public & Green Spaces Service Manager)
£121,095 (£79,209 for PBSA and £41,886 for co-living) Outdoor leisure
contribution for maintenance and upgrade of off-site play areas (Policy L4,
Public Open Space SPD and consultation response from ECC Public & Green
Spaces Service Manager)
Quantum of greenspace – limited perimeter, internal courtyards for residents
The proposal will create additional jobs during the construction process and
beyond relating to management/maintenance of the development.
Non-material considerations
The adopted CIL charging schedule applies a levy on certain proposals that create
additional new floor space over and above what is already on a site. The Co-living
element of the scheme is not CIL liable, as it does not comprise a use within the
Community Infrastructure Charging Schedule. The Co-living accommodation will
however generate council tax.
The student accommodation element of the scheme is CIL liable as this type of
development is a use included within the Community Infrastructure Charging
Schedule.
The rate at which CIL is charged for this development as set out in the CIL Charging
Schedule is £40 per sq. metre plus new index linking. Confirmation of the final CIL
charge will be provided to the Applicant in a CIL liability notice issued before the
commencement of the development. All liability notices will be adjusted according to
the national All-in-Tender Price Index of construction costs published by the Building
Cost Information Service (BCIS) of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for the
year when planning permission is granted for the development. Full details of current
charges are on the Council’s website. The rate per sq. m given for 2022 for this
development is £59.29.
16.0

Planning Assessment
The key issues are:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Sustainable Development and Application of the NPPF
The Principle of the Proposed Development
Affordable Housing
Access and Impact on Local Highways
Parking
Design, Scale, Massing
Landscaping

Page 63

8. Impact on Heritage Assets
9. Residential Amenity
10. Impact on Amenity of Surroundings/Local Residents
11. Impact on Trees and Biodiversity
12. Contaminated Land
13. Impact on Air Quality
14. Flood Risk and Surface Water Management
15. Sustainable Construction and Energy Conservation
16. Development Plan, Material Considerations and Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development
1. Sustainable Development and Application of the NPPF
The site lies in close proximity to the City Centre in an accessible location with good
access to local amenities. Non-private vehicle transport is a realistic and viable
option. Proposed residential development on the site is acceptable in principle as it
can therefore deliver sustainable development in accordance with the requirements
of the NPPF and adopted local policies.
The Council does not have a current 5 year housing land supply. As a consequence,
the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in Paragraph 11 of
the NPPF is to be applied. For decision-taking this means:
c) approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date
development plan without delay; or
d) where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which
are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:
i.
ii.

the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
Framework taken as a whole.”

In respect of the above it is important to note that there are two footnotes in the
NPPF to the above paragraph which are critical for application of the balance to be
given between policies when making a decision, namely footnote 7 and footnote 8
which provides the necessary interpretation of the paragraph.
Footnote 7 sets out a list of policies in the Framework relating to protected assets
which include, amongst others, heritage assets. Footnote 8 indicates that polices will
be out of date where a council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply.
Given the content of the paragraph and footnotes there is a presumption in favour of

Page 64

sustainable development. The content of footnote 7 however makes it clear that
policies for the protection of important assets of particular importance are still a
significant consideration and these can provide a clear justification to refuse
permission if granting permission would “significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits”. It is thus necessary to weigh up the balance of planning issues and
relevant policies in accordance with the requirements of Para. 11 of the NPPF.
The application of the presumption in favour of sustainable development (and its
predecessor Para. 14 of the NPPF dated 2012) have resulted in several court cases,
notably in the Supreme Court ruling of Suffolk Coastal DC v Hopkins Homes and
SSCLG (2016). This case confirmed that where a council does not have a 5 year
housing land supply, housing policies are deemed to be ‘out-of-date’. However, the
fact that a policy is considered out of date does not mean it can be disregarded, but it
means that less weight can be applied to it with the level of weight given to be a
matter of planning judgement. The Supreme Court judgement confirmed that for the
purposes of applying a tilt in favour of sustainable development, known as the ‘tilted
balance’ (NPPF Para. 11(d)), policies of the development plan will remain applicable,
but it will be for the local planning authority to determine the balance of policies for
the protection of environment and amenity against the need for housing and the
economy.
The various matters to be considered are set out in the remainder of this section of
the report below.
2. The Principle of the Proposed Development
The application site lies within a sustainable location and is in close proximity to
amenities and services (including educational facilities). Core Strategy Policy CP1
(Spatial Strategy) states that development will be guided to the most sustainable
locations, recognising the contribution to be made to growth by the existing urban
area, particularly the City Centre. Policy AP1 states that proposals should be located
where safe and convenient access by public transport, walking and cycling is
available or can be provided.
The site was last in use as a Police Station and Magistrates Court. This use is
considered by officers to be a community facility and previously developed land. The
site is now surplus to requirements and its use for the proposed development is
considered acceptable when assessed against the relevant policies, (Core Strategy
Policy CP10, AP2 (setting out the sequential approach to development and giving
priority to re-using previously developed land), the NPPF (notably Paragraph 120 that
places substantial weight to the value to the use of brownfield land and paragraph
125 which refers to developments utilising a suitably high density).
The proposal is for a mixed use development comprising co-living and purpose built
student accommodation. There are no planning designations or constraints affecting

Page 65

the site to suggest that the principle of these forms of residential development would
be inappropriate in this location.
Policy CP4 requires residential development to achieve the highest appropriate
density compatible with the protection of heritage assets, local amenities, the
character and quality of the local environment and the safety and convenience of the
local and trunk road network. Impacts of the proposed development on heritage
assets, local amenities, character of the locality and highways are considered in later
sections of this report. The proposal is for high density residential accommodation,
and due to the scale and mass of the proposal it can constitute efficient use of the
available land, so in this particular respect it is consistent with policy CP4. However
the proposal also needs to be considered in terms of its compliance with the other
aspects of Policy CP4, other relevant planning policies, guidance and material
considerations.
Policy CP5 supports the provision of housing to meet the needs of all members of the
community. Whilst co-living isn’t referred to in Policy CP5 directly, unlike student
accommodation, it is considered to be a specialist form of housing aimed primarily at
younger adults, who wish to live in a well-managed, communal environment whose
realistic alternative is to live in Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs). Therefore it is
logical to conclude that the proposal has the potential to ease the pressure and free
up existing housing stock for use as family dwellings rather than be converted to
HMOs.
The co-living element will deliver much needed new housing in a sustainable location
taking into account that the Council does not currently have a 5 year housing land
supply, as required by national policy. The presumption in favour of sustainable
development set out in NPPF 11d) therefore applies, and the principle of this
development at this location is acceptable.
Given the nature of the proposal both elements of the scheme rely on significant
provision of communal facilities to provide acceptable levels of residential amenity,
the significant numbers of occupants requires careful management which would need
to be secured via a S106 agreement.
3. Affordable Housing
Policy CP7 requires 35% of the total housing provision on sites capable of providing
3 or more additional dwellings as affordable housing. The NPPF states that
affordable housing should only be sought on major developments (i.e. 10 or more
homes or site area of 0.5ha or more). While the co-living block is classed as sui
generis, it will still deliver studios, which are fully self-contained dwellings, and
therefore the requirement for affordable housing set out in Policy CP7 applies to the
Co-living element of the proposal. The co-living accommodation will be Build to Rent
housing, as defined in the NPPF (i.e. purpose built housing that is typically 100%

Page 66

rented out). The purpose built student accommodation element of the scheme does
not attract an affordable housing requirement.
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) on build to rent states that 20% is
generally a suitable benchmark for the level of affordable private rent homes to be
provided (and maintained in perpetuity) in any build to rent scheme. As this guidance
was published after the Core Strategy was adopted, officers consider that it is an
appropriate material consideration to indicate that in this case 20% affordable
housing should be provided as opposed to 35% as set out in Policy CP7. When
applied proportionally, this results in a requirement of 71 affordable studios. Officers
consider that the Council’s requirement of seeking 5% of affordable units as
wheelchair accessible, as set out in the adopted Affordable Housing SPD, should
also apply. In addition, it is considered that the affordable units should be given
priority to essential local workers and this requirement (along with the need to provide
affordable housing) would need to be secured through appropriately worded S106
obligations in the event of approval being granted.
Given that the required affordable housing is to be provided in accordance with the
NPPG level of 20% on Build to Rent schemes, which supersedes the Core Strategy
requirement of 35%, the proposal meets with the policy requirements for affordable
housing providing this is secured through a s106 agreement. The provision of
wheelchair accessible units within the scheme will also meet objectives of the Public
Sector Equalities Duty (PSED).
4. Access and Impact on Local Highways
The Highway Authority has not raised an objection to the scheme. The site will be
served by an access from Heavitree Road in the form of a one-way service road
running between the proposed co-living element and the existing Higher
Summerlands properties, around the rear of the site and exiting onto Gladstone
Road. The car-free nature of the scheme (other than limited disabled parking) is
noted along with the significant provision of cycle parking facilities. Off-site
improvement works will also be undertaken as part of the development comprising a
shared 3.5 shared footway/cycleway along the southern and eastern boundaries of
the site, a ‘Green Man’ signal controlled crossing on Gladstone Road at the junction
with Heavitree Road, and dedicated cycle access infrastructure on Heavitree Road
(albeit that the detail of this dedicated cycle access will be finalised through the
appropriate road safety audit and S278 process). These matters are considered
essential by the Highway Authority to make the proposal acceptable from
transportation and highway safety perspective. The Highway Authority have
acknowledged that the vehicular trip generation of the site will not have a severe
impact on the operation of the local highway network.
The Highway Authority consultation response concludes as follows –

Page 67

“The Highway Authority have reviewed the development proposals and does
not wish to raise an objection subject to the inclusion of planning conditions,
informatives, obligations and agreements.
To make the site acceptable in transport terms and mitigate its impact, all offsite works outlined in this response must be provided by the applicant via an
S278 agreement prior to occupation. All on-site sustainable transport
enhancements, including the Co-Bikes and Co-Car Club Car & Space must be
provided prior to first occupation to make the application acceptable in
planning terms.”
Accordingly relevant conditions/Informatives have been recommended by the
Highway Authority to make the development acceptable as set out in the
Consultations part of this report above (Section 10.).
5. Parking
Paragraph 107 of the NPPF advises that if setting local parking standards, policies
should take into account, amongst other criteria, the accessibility of the development,
the use of development and the availability of and opportunities for public transport.
The indicative car parking standard for residential in the Sustainable Transport SPD
is 1.5 spaces per dwelling. However, this co-living/student accommodation scheme
will be car-free apart from a limited number of disabled parking spaces. This is
considered acceptable in this location given the opportunities to access facilities and
public transport.
With regard to cycle parking provision, the agent has confirmed that a total of 613
cycle parking spaces are proposed (357 for the student accommodation and 256 for
the co-living accommodation). The scheme also allows for provision of electric cycle
parking within the site. The Highway Authority have noted that the provision of on-site
electric co-bikes and a Co-Club car space are essential to make the proposal
acceptable on transport and sustainability grounds.
6. Design, Scale, Massing
Planning decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for
homes and other uses, while safeguarding and improving the environment and
ensuring safe and healthy living conditions (Paragraph 119, NPPF). Local Plan First
Review Policy H2 (Location Priorities) states that priority will be given to meeting
housing needs on previously developed land and permitting development at the
highest density that can be achieved without detriment to local amenity, the character
and quality of the local environment etc. As noted above this proposal is for a high
density development of co-living (358 studios) and student accommodation (677
bedspaces) over two blocks comprising of between 4 and 8 floors of accommodation
(including the lower ground floor and rooms in the roof space) on a 1.25Ha site.

Page 68

Chapter 12 of the NPPF is titled ‘Achieving well-designed places’. Paragraph 130
sets out that planning decisions should ensure that developments:
a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development;
b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping;
c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities);
d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of
streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming
and distinctive places to live, work and visit;
e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and
f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users;
and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the
quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
The National Design Guide (“Planning practice guidance for beautiful, enduring and
successful places”) is a material consideration and sets out the components for good
design. It notes in paragraph 20 that the components for success includes the
context of places and buildings. Paragraph 21 refers to making the right choices
around the layout, the form and scale of buildings, appearance, details, landscaping.
Importantly the document sets out the Ten Characteristics of a well-designed place:
this includes considering context and how a development can “enhance the
surroundings”.
Context is defined in the document as “the location of the development, and the
attributes of its immediate, local and regional surroundings”. The document sets out
how to consider context and Paragraph 40 states:
Well-designed places are:
based on a sound understanding of the features of the site and the
surrounding context, using baseline studies as a starting point for design;
integrated into their surroundings so they relate well to them;
influenced by and influence their context positively; and
responsive to local history, culture and heritage.
Paragraph 41 states “Well-designed new development responds positively to the
features of the site itself and the surrounding context beyond the site boundary. It
enhances positive qualities and improves negative ones”.

Page 69

The “Building for a Healthy Life: A Design Toolkit for neighbourhoods, streets, homes
and spaces” document published by Homes England also sets out design principles
for successful development including the consideration of existing context, street
types, landscape character, urban grain, plot shapes, building forms and their
influence on local character.
In the vicinity of the development site Heavitree Road exhibits a particular, but varied,
character of townscape that forms an arterial route to the City Centre. The road is
wide and relatively straight and forms a key route down into the city. Approaching the
city along this road buildings generally of 2 to 4 storeys in height are set back behind
solid front boundary walls, interspersed with vehicular and pedestrian accesses, and
some vegetation behind those frontage structures that soften the impacts of harder
elements of the street. The existing site and the adjacent Waitrose supermarket,
characterised by significant setbacks and understated architecture, represent a
significant departure from this character. Both developments have resulted in a
fractured urban form which is not consistent with a city centre location of such
prominence. Taller buildings, brought further forward to provide a strong urban edge
can be accommodated in this sustainable location, especially given the recently
approved 5 storey development at the immediately adjacent former Ambulance
Station. A section through the street and its adjoining built development indicates a
wide urban character before reaching the downward slope of the road towards the
higher density city centre. It is the width of this vista that allows taller buildings to be
successfully assimilated within the street scene, compared to a situation where there
was a narrower gap on a non-arterial route that would require more modest massing.
Furthermore, views along Heavitree Road provide a clear visual connection towards
the city centre to the west that is framed by much larger scaled buildings than those
that currently flank Heavitree Road, such as the John Lewis buildings and others in
that vicinity.
As described in Section 6, whilst the buildings contain up to 8 storeys, due to the
levels the buildings appear as 5 and 6 storey buildings in the street scenes from
Heavitree Road and Gladstone Road. In this context the proposed 5 and 6 storey
buildings that face the street scene provide a prelude to larger buildings when
approaching the city centre. The 6 storey gabled elements provide a strong bookend
to the Gladstone Road junction, reflecting those on the St Luke’s Campus buildings
immediately opposite. Moving northward from the junction along Gladstone Road, the
massing of the building reduces to 5 and then 4 stories in height (with basement
floors below) to complement the massing of the approved ambulance station redevelopment site. Moving westward from the junction along Heavitree Road the
levels fall and this is matched by a reduction in storey height from 6 to 5 to 4 stories
when viewed from the street. Not only does this appropriately respond to the fall in
level along Heavitree Road, but it provides a graduation in massing towards smaller
the smaller scale Higher Summerlands buildings adjacent to the west boundary of the
site.

Page 70

The graduated massing approach along Gladstone Road and further down Heavitree
Road is illustrated by cross section street scene drawings submitted with the
amended proposals. These cross section drawings also show that the buildings are
successfully broken up with landscape ‘link’ gaps. The change in the palette of
materials from red brick on the co-living building to softer materials on the PBSA
building, adds interest and diversity to the street scene, whereas the use of a single
material choice would lead to a more monotonous street scene.
The redevelopment of this site has been the subject of extensive pre-application
negotiations with officers. This process has also included 3 Design Review Panels
culmination in the scheme for which permission is now sought. Early iterations of a
redevelopment scheme for this site involved a far greater scale of development
including significantly taller buildings. It is fair to say that landowner aspirations in
terms of site value have had a significant impact in terms of the quantum of
development being proposed throughout the process.
During early discussions it was made clear by officers that the height of buildings,
and associated quantum of development sought, was significantly beyond that which
was considered appropriate for the site having regard to the context of the
surrounding townscape notwithstanding planning policies and guidance aimed at
maximising the development potential of land. Put simply the context of the site has
to be properly considered when determining if an application is to be acceptable.
At the first Design Review in December 2020, when a development significantly over
10 storeys was being proposed, the Design Review Panel expressed concern that
the design was being solely driven by a need to achieve a specific number of
units/beds rather than an appropriate response to the specific site setting. The panel
stated “Whilst the site is urban and located close to the city centre, it should be noted
its location is within a suburb that provides a break between the city centre and what
use to be a separate village of Heavitree…” The building’s heights proposed at that
time included elements in excess of 10 storeys and the Panel stated “Furthermore, it
is felt the design proposals have not demonstrated that the proposed form and mass
of the building is justifiable in its current form in relation to the wider contextual
topography; that is to say the site is located on higher ground that looks out over the
city centre, will be highly visible and also have a significant impact upon the skyline.”
The second Design Review of an iteration reduced in height, but still significantly
higher than the proposals the subject of this current application, took place in
February 2021. The Design Review Panel noted that the design proposals had
evolved and improved since the initial Design Review. Whilst stating that in principle
a high density development in this location was supported the Panel highlighted that
this was subject to an appropriate design and a suitable relationship with the
surroundings being demonstrated. The Panel re-iterated concerns that the need to
achieve a particular quantum of development was driving the design rather than an
appropriate response to the specific site setting. In respect of comments relating to
scheme viability the Panel stated – “… the Panel acknowledges the constraints and

Page 71

challenges faced by the applicant and design team, however it is considered not
appropriate for the proposals to be driven by short term viability considerations ahead
of long-term considerations regarding design and placemaking quality.” The Panel
went on to state “There remains a concern that the bulk and massing that is being
proposed appears detached and divorced from anything that exists locally, and as a
result the Panel feels the proposals currently appear to sit uncomfortably and
unsympathetically within their setting.” At this stage the Panel also made comments
about the potentially poor quality environment within the courtyards as a result of the
height of surrounding blocks.
The third and final Design Review took place in August 2021. At this point the
scheme had evolved significantly in terms of building heights and articulation albeit
that the scheme still comprised buildings of significant height compared to those
prevailing locally. The scheme presented to Design Review is largely similar to that
submitted in this planning application. The Design Review Panel commented as
follows –
“It is considered the scale is more appropriate than the previous iteration
presented. There has also been a significant improvement in terms of the
articulation of the proposed buildings. The increased complexity of form and
generation of interesting juxtapositions are supported. In particular the Panel
supports the clear differentiation between the student accommodation and coliving building, which utilize different architectural languages and a different
material palette. The Panel continues to support the provision of active
frontages.”
The Panel went on to state “…in terms of the proposed building height, it is
considered this is at the absolute maximum that could be considered appropriate for
the site location.” In making this statement they also pointed out that it was not
possible to definitively assess the appropriateness of the heights without further
visual information that should support any application.
The Panel stated its continued support for high-density development in this location,
and also made comments about the landscaping strategy, re-iterated comments
relating quality of courtyard amenity spaces, permeability and sustainability
credentials of the scheme. Overall, subject to their comments in relation to the above
matters being addressed, the Panel expressed a level of qualified support for the
design proposals.
Paragraph 133 of the NPPF states:
“Local planning authorities should ensure that they have access to, and make
appropriate use of, tools and processes for assessing and improving the
design of development. These include workshops to engage the local
community, design advice and review arrangements…In assessing
applications, local planning authorities should have regard to the outcome

Page 72

from these processes, including any recommendations made by design review
panels.”
In the opinion of officers, the amended proposals have satisfactorily addressed the
concerns raised by the DRP that support high density development in this location,
which is a material consideration in support of the proposals.
The proposed elevational design of the building fronting Heavitree and Gladstone
Roads will increase active frontages (particularly in respect of the former) and
contribute to the vibrancy of the area. This is welcomed, and a positive point noted
by the Design Review Panel.
Policy DG1 of the Local Plan relates to design and sets out the expectations for
development proposals. It requires development to be compatible with the urban
nature of the locality; whilst higher density development is welcomed it is still required
to demonstrate how a proposal appropriately takes into account its context. The
nature of the urban area is evolving and will continue to evolve with higher density
developments; each site will have to be considered upon its own merits, and whilst
the principle of increased density is accepted each proposal will need to demonstrate
how it makes a positive contribution to the city in that location.
In this case, officers consider that the proposals provide a balance between
achieving the effective use of a brownfield site within a sustainable location, whilst
responding to the character of the area. Importantly the context of the approach to
the city centre and the width of this section of arterial road are both factors that
warrant the provision of taller buildings at the site.
With respect to Policy DG1, the development is considered to comply with parts:
a) in that the development is compatible with the urban nature of the locality
and the development puts people before traffic.
b) the grain of the development promotes the urban character of Exeter
c) landscaping is a reserved matter but the landscape strategy set out is fully
integrated into the proposal. The landscaped areas of the courtyards will
provide an outdoor amenity area for the studios and student accommodation.
The hard and soft landscaping would need to enhance the visual appearance
of the scheme and this would need careful consideration at ‘reserved matters’
stage.
d) the density of the development will promote Exeter’s urban character
e) the proposed development is a compatible use in the area which will add to
the vitality of the locality
f) the height of the proposals are appropriate to the surrounding townscape
and relate well to adjoining buildings, spaces and to human scale given the
width of this part of Heavitree Road and the approaching context of the city
centre.

Page 73

g) the volume and shape (the massing) of structures relate well to the
character and appearance of the adjoining buildings and the surrounding
townscape.
h) the design of the scheme does promote local distinctiveness and the
architecture will positively contribute to the visual richness and amenity of the
townscape, subject to being considered acceptable from an overall
townscape and height impact perspective
i) the types of materials will relate well to the palette of materials in the locality
Consequently, the proposals are considered to comply with Policies CP17 and DG1
and are compatible with the character and appearance of the local townscape, taking
into account its mixed nature. Officers are of the view that the proposals meet the
requirements of Policies CP17 and DG1 on their own merits without needing to
consider whether any harm significantly and demonstrably outweighs the benefits of
the scheme.
7. Landscaping
Landscaping is a reserved matter, so these details shall be determined through the
submission of a reserved matters application at a later stage. However, indicative
plans have been provided to give a sense of what is likely to be achieved on the site
in terms of tree planting, other soft landscaping and hard surface materials. There is
significant scope to improve the quality of landscape on the site through selection of
suitable native species that are beneficial to wildlife and improve urban cooling and
air quality. This will be subject of a future Design Review should the application be
granted permission. Existing trees will need to be removed to facilitate the
development, however they will be replaced with new tree planting.
8. Impact on Heritage Assets
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended)
places a duty on local planning authorities to pay special attention to the desirability
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas, and
to have special regard to the desirability of preserving listed buildings or their settings
that are affected by development proposals. This is reflected in Policies C1 and C2.
Policy C3 protects buildings of local importance (locally listed). Policy C5 prevents
harm to scheduled monuments, including their setting, and seeks to preserve
archaeological remains in situ or archaeological recording works where this is not
feasible or practical.
The NPPF was published after the development plan policies above were adopted
and includes additional guidance relating to conserving and enhancing the historic
environment. Therefore, the development plan policies above are not fully up-to-date.
Paragraph 194 requires developers to describe the significance of any heritage
assets affected by their proposals – the developer has done this in the supporting
Heritage Assessment (see Section 7.0).

Page 74

Significance is defined in the Glossary of the NPPF as: ‘The value of a heritage asset
to this and future generations because of its heritage interest. The interest may be
archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic. Significance derives not only from a
heritage asset’s physical presence, but also from its setting.’ When considering the
impact of development proposals on the significance of designated heritage assets,
the NPPF states that great weight should be given to their conservation (and the
more important the asset, the greater the weight should be) (paragraph 199).
Paragraph 200 states that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated
asset (which includes conservation areas, listed buildings and scheduled
monuments) should require clear and convincing justification. Where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset, paragraph 202 states that this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal. Public benefits could be anything that delivers
economic, social or environmental objectives as described in the NPPF.
Considerable importance should be placed on the statutory duties within the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) described above
when carrying out this balancing exercise. In the case of non-designated heritage
assets (i.e. locally listed buildings) paragraph 203 states that the effect on the
significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account…and
when weighing applications a balanced judgement will be required having regard to
the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.
The application site lies within the setting of three Conservation Areas; St Leonards
Conservation Area, Lower Summerlands Conservation Area and Mont Le Grand
Conservation Area. The proposed buildings will be clearly viewed from all 3
Conservation Areas. The site also lies within the setting of a locally listed building (St
Luke’s College) and to lesser extent the setting of the statutory Grade II listed
buildings of Lower Summerlands.
The Council’s Heritage Officer notes the following:
“The design of the proposed structures are contemporary and represent a
departure from the suburban grain of the immediate environs in terms of mass
and dominance. The topography of this part of the city is one of wide vistas
and predominantly low level structures which serve to frame the descent into
the city. Change does not necessarily equate to harm, and for the majority of
the affected designated heritage assets either distance or screening will
reduce the effect to acceptable levels, however the setting of locally listed St
Lukes Chapel will experience the greatest change.”
The proposed redevelopment of the site would introduce significant additional height
in this location, and bring the built form significantly closer to the boundary of the site

Page 75

with the public highway and thereby alter the relationship to the Chapel/the complex
of buildings and open foreground comprising the St Lukes campus.
In respect of the Chapel, the Council’s Heritage Officer considers that the
development would harm the setting of this asset but highlights that, given this setting
has diminished protection due to its level of designation, he does not consider this
would constitute a sustainable reason for refusal of the development on heritage
asset impact grounds alone.
The site does have potential to yield archaeological deposits and as such if approval
is granted it should be subject to a condition to secure a programme of
archaeological works in order to mitigate any negative impact in line with national and
local guidance.
Given the above, the proposed redevelopment is on balance considered acceptable
with respect to impacts on heritage assets, notwithstanding the change in character it
would bring about to the local townscape. The proposals are considered to therefore
preserve the significance of these heritage assets in accordance with section 72 of
the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the NPPF and
Policies C1, C2 and C3 of the Exeter City Local Plan.
9. Residential Amenity
Residential amenity considerations in respect of this application need to be
considered in respect of the two distinct elements of the scheme, co-living
accommodation and purpose built student accommodation, which are targeted at
different occupants but with similar characteristics in terms of smaller private spaces
supplemented by communal facilities.
Policy DG4 states that residential development should ensure a quality of amenity
which allows residents to feel at ease within their homes and gardens. The
Residential Design SPD includes minimum space standards for dwellings, however
the Council now applies the national ‘Technical housing standards – nationally
described space standard’ (March 2015), as it was published after the Residential
Design SPD was adopted in 2010. However, co-living housing schemes are not
standard dwelling types, they are a specialist type of housing aimed at a specific
sector of the market that might otherwise live in a HMO. They typically have similar
characteristics to Purpose Built Student Accommodation, but are open to anyone to
live in over the age of 18 and have more communal space than other forms of
housing. They are characterised by their design and management, which are
intended to foster social interaction and a sense of community between residents.
The Council has accepted the principle of the co-living model through the granting of
consent for such schemes, including in the adjoining site of the former Ambulance
Station and the Harlequins site in the city centre.

Page 76

The studios in the proposed development fall below the minimum internal floor area
recommended for a 1 bed 1 person dwelling of 37 sq. m as set out in the national
Technical housing standards. In terms of the co-living element this accommodation is
provided as self-contained studios comprising bed/living space (including wardrobe,
desk area and storage), kitchenette and en-suite bathroom. As originally submitted
the studios varied in size from 16.3 sq. m to 40 sq. m, with 167 being the smallest
size (47.4% of the total number). In the previously approved co-living schemes
referred to above the smallest studio sizes were 18 sq. m. The reliance on a
significant number of studios of a smaller size than previously accepted by the
Council was considered an issue in terms of achieving satisfactory standards of
residential amenity. Following negotiations the application has been amended so that
all of the studios are 18 sq. m or more, in line with other previously approved co-living
schemes. The standard of this form of accommodation is now therefore considered to
be acceptable.
This small studio size would be a concern for an ordinary housing development.
However, the proposal is for co-living accommodation with communal amenity areas
provided on two floors within the co-living accommodation block amounting to a total
of approx. 895 sq. m (420 sq. m on the lower ground floor, 375 sq. m on the ground
floor and 100 sq. m on the fifth floor). This equates to approximately 2.5 sq. m per
bed space which is lower than that provided within the approved schemes on the
Ambulance Station site and Harlequins which both provide approx. 3.1 sq. m of
communal amenity space per bed space. The communal amenity space provided
comprises gym, lounge/games area, kitchen/café area, laundry, wc’s, post room,
flexible collaboration space, meeting rooms/study areas/workspaces and break out
area.
Policy DG4 still applies to co-living housing and it is important that a quality of
amenity is provided to make residents feel at ease within the property, making a
positive contribution to their wellbeing whilst recognising the intrinsic characteristics
of the co-living model. There is no national planning guidance at present in this
respect, or a local policy that specifically deals with this type of housing. It is therefore
a question of balancing the level of amenity achieved within the scheme against the
desire to maximise the amount of residential accommodation provided on the site in
terms of making the most effective use of the land. In the case of this proposal, a
total of 895 sq. m communal space will be provided in the building. It is the
applicant’s contention that based on similar schemes elsewhere in the country – not
specifically Exeter – the level of provision and standard of residential amenity
achieved is reasonable.
In respect of the co-living element of the scheme, and given the evidence available,
Officers are satisfied on balance that the proposals will provide an environment that
can be managed in such a way that it will function as a genuine co-living
development, taking into account the inclusion of communal spaces to encourage
social interaction outside the private spaces and potential organised social activities
for residents (which could from part of a management plan). A detailed management

Page 77

plan should be secured in a S106 agreement to ensure this is the case and a
condition added prohibiting the use of the communal areas for anything other than
the purpose of providing shared amenity space for the residents. The s106 should
include provisions for monitoring compliance of the management plan in the future.
The student accommodation incorporates 1239 sq. m of communal amenity space
which equates to 1.8 sq. m per room. Given that 67% of the student accommodation
comprises shared cluster flats with their own shared kitchen /living/dining space,
occupants of this accommodation will be less reliant of the communal space for
social interaction.
The co-living accommodation is set around a central external courtyard at lower
ground floor level onto which the lower ground floor amenity space and some studios
have an outlook. Other studios on the ground floor will have a more limited outlook
onto light wells/retaining walls, albeit that the intention is for these to be green living
walls to soften that outlook. The latest amended plans increase the distance between
the lower ground units and the retaining wall to increase sunlight into the units and to
improve their outlook. On balance, the outlook from the rooms served by lightwells is
now considered to offer an acceptable level of amenity to the occupants.
The external courtyard of the co-living accommodation will be landscaped and
accessible to all residents of the block as amenity space. However this space only
measures just over 10 metres in width and 31 m in length and being surrounded by
buildings varying in height from 4 to 8 storeys will only receive limited sunlight. The
proposed student accommodation blocks are likewise set around shared external
courtyards (albeit wider in dimension) but still surrounded by tall buildings (7 storeys).
The amended landscape plans have provided additional detail and demonstrate that
the co-living courtyard will provide an attractive and useable private amenity space
for the occupants.
In terms of outdoor amenity space it is considered that the proposed courtyard areas
serving the occupants of the 358 co-living studios and student accommodation would
not alone adequately cater for the outdoor amenity of the residents. The outdoor
amenity space is limited and surrounded by tall buildings such that the areas will lack
sunlight. Therefore, it is expected that residents of both elements of the scheme will
use public open spaces elsewhere within the city/vicinity of the site for outdoor
amenity. Consequently contributions of £472,995 (£309,389 for PBSA and £163,606
for co-living) and £121,095 (£79,209 for PBSA and £41,886 for co-living) are
therefore required for the maintenance and upgrade of off-site public open spaces
and outdoor leisure/play facilities respectively, in order to ensure that the outdoor
amenity needs of potential occupants of both the co-living and student
accommodation are satisfactorily met. This is justified by Policy L4 and section 6 of
the Public Open Space SPD. These would be secured through a s106 agreement.

Page 78

Following revisions to the proposals through the application process, the standard of
amenity provided to residents of both buildings is now considered acceptable.
10. Impact on the Amenity of Surroundings/Local Residents
Policy DG4 states that residential development should be at the maximum feasible
density taking into account site constraints and impact on the local area, and ensure
a quality of amenity which allows residents to feel at ease within their homes and
gardens. The background text states that ‘Residential layout should be at the
maximum feasible density taking account of all the design constraints relating to a
particular site. Full account should be taken of the need to preserve the amenity of
the occupiers of adjoining development, but the urban theme of this design guidance
should run through new proposals. An existing suburban context will not be seen as
justifying a similar, new, suburban scheme at insufficient densities’ (Paragraph
13.35).
Supplementary guidance on residential amenity is provided in Chapter 7 of the
Residential Design SPD. Paragraph 7.2 of the SPD states that the standards are
flexible according to site analysis. In addition, the background text of Policy DG4
states that distance standards will be applied flexibly and not at the cost of good
townscape and sufficient densities.
The adjoining properties that are considered to be most affected by these issues are
the residential properties to the north comprising St Matthews Close, the co-living
accommodation under construction on the former Ambulance Station site and the
properties comprising Higher Summerlands. The amenity issues to consider are:
privacy, outlook, natural light, overshadowing and noise.
The Residential Design Guide SPD states that a minimum back to back distance of
22m is required between habitable room windows. In terms of this scheme there is no
direct back to back relationship. The blocks comprising St Matthews Close to the
north have gable ends facing towards the site and given the distance between these
buildings and those proposed this relationship is considered satisfactory from a
privacy perspective. There are windows in the approved adjacent co-living scheme
that face towards the site. However the closest part of the proposed building to the
boundary with this development contains no windows. This, coupled with the distance
between the nearest part of the proposed building containing windows and the face
of the adjoining development (in excess of 22m), results in an acceptable relationship
in terms of privacy impact.
The relationship to the Higher Summerlands properties is slightly different in that it is
the fronts of those properties that face the development. Their relationship with the
built development on this site also changes as the proposed development
encroaches towards them by approximately 18 metres. Having considered the plans
and the submitted information whilst the separation distances vary between 18 and

Page 79

20m, and the proposed buildings at this part of the site are 4 storey in height, with the
proposed intervening service road and new landscaping this relationship is
considered, on balance, to be satisfactory in terms of impact on privacy.
On the issue of outlook, the Residential Design Guide SPD states that residents
should be able to enjoy good quality outlook without adjacent buildings being
overbearing. Whilst the development will result in a significant change in general
outlook in respect of the St Matthews Close properties, and adjoining co-living
development that is under construction, given the urban nature of the site and need
to maximise development, the impact on outlook can be considered acceptable.
The Higher Summerlands properties are at a lower level than the site and the
proposed buildings will extend significantly closer to them than the current buildings
on site, reducing the gap from approximately 36 metres to 18/20 metres. The existing
mature trees currently occupying the space between the buildings will all be removed
as part of the scheme and within the reduced space the service road for the
development will run parallel to these properties with new tree planting on either side
of the road. The scheme has been amended from the original submission to revise
the road position and the species of the potential replacement trees ranging from
4.5m to 6m in height.
It is undeniable that the outlook from the front of the Higher Summerlands properties
will undergo significant change as a result of this development. However, given the
space between the buildings (even as reduced to 18/20m), and the fact that the
properties have a significant gap between them and the properties to their rear (and
hence a good outlook in this direction), on balance in this urban context the
relationship in terms of outlook is not considered to be such that alone it would
warrant refusal of the scheme. The amended landscape plans and newly planted
trees of between 4.5m to 6m in height further serve to mitigate this impact.
Natural Light/Overshadowing
In terms of access to natural light, the Residential Design SPD states ‘Developers
should demonstrate that dwellings have sufficient daylight to allow comfortable use
and enjoyment of habitable rooms, gardens and communal spaces. Within the
submitted Design and Access Statement (DAS) this issue has been addressed
having regard to the BRE Report ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A
guide to good practice’ (2011). The DAS examines the proposal in terms of the ’25
degree test’ which requires a notional line to be drawn from the centre point of the
lowest window of an existing building at an angle of 25 degrees. The guidance
suggests that if the proposed development falls underneath the line there is unlikely
to be a detrimental effect on daylight on the existing property. Submitted sections
demonstrate that the proposed scheme falls largely within this notional good practice
line for each boundary condition, with the only minor exceedances being noncontinuous elements of the building such as feature chimneys and dormers.

Page 80

The DAS also contains a shadow path analysis for the Equinox, Summer and Winter
solstices. It concludes that at the equinox and summer solstice shadowing generated
by the development is mostly contained within the site extents. In the winter when the
sun is lower in the sky the shadows are longer but it is highlighted that much of the
shadowing at this time is already evident from the existing townscape.
The NPPF (para 125) states:
“authorities should take a flexible approach in applying policies or guidance relating
to daylight and sunlight, where they would otherwise inhibit making efficient use of a
site (as long as the resulting scheme would provide acceptable living standards).”
Based on the submitted analysis and given the urban context, it is not considered
that the impact on natural light to surrounding properties and overshadowing will not
be significant nor warrant refusal of the scheme.
Noise
As set out in Section 7 of this report, the application is accompanied by a Noise
Statement which identifies the main source of noise likely to impact upon the
development as being associated with road traffic. In terms of the noise impacts of
the scheme these are likely to fall into two categories – construction phase and
operational phase. Construction phase impacts could be minimised and mitigated by
an appropriate Construction and Environment Management Plan which could be
secured via an appropriate condition.
Operational phase impacts would be related to plant associated with the
development and the on-going use of the accommodation, such as antisocial
behaviour. The submission indicates that both the co-living and student
accommodation elements of the scheme would have on-going management
arrangements and such Management Plans can be secured through a S106
agreement. Environmental Health have recommended conditions relating to
submission of an Acoustic Design Statement and Noise Impact Assessment to
address potential noise issues from an internal and external perspective respectively.
Overall, the proposed development is considered to accord with Policy DG4 in terms
of its impact on the amenities of surrounding properties, taking into account the urban
context.
11. Impact on Trees and Biodiversity
Paragraph 180 (d) of the NPPF states that opportunities to incorporate biodiversity
improvements in and around developments should be encouraged, especially where
this can secure measurable net gains for biodiversity.

Page 81

The site currently contains a number of trees around the site perimeter with those
along the Heavitree Road frontage and between the existing buildings and the
properties forming Higher Summerlands of particular prominence. Much of Heavitree
Road is characterised by buildings set back from their site boundaries with
intervening vegetation between them and the highway boundary. Under the
proposals submitted all trees within the site are shown for removal to accommodate
the significantly increased building footprints, and service road forming the
development. Landscaping of the site as part of the development is a ‘reserved
matter’ that will need to be the subject of a further application for approval.
Notwithstanding this the application is accompanied by indicative information
regarding the landscape strategy including replacement planting.
The Council’s Tree Manager made particular reference to the loss of the existing
bank of trees on the western part of the site (those that currently form a buffer
between the buildings and the adjoining residential properties) and the
appropriateness of the proposed replacement Lime trees in this location given their
considerable growth potential and therefore potential conflicts with the adjacent
dwellings given their proximity. Following negotiations the applicant revised the
service road position (moving it closer to the site boundary and adjacent properties)
and submitted a revised indicative landscaping strategy to indicate trees of a more
appropriate species either side of the service road. Whilst this has been welcomed by
the Tree Manager his advice was that the existing trees in this location are a
significant landscape feature offering a buffer to the existing residential properties
and ideally this part of the site layout should be reconsidered to allow retention of
these trees. Such an approach would require a significant reduction in the footprint of
the proposed buildings and the applicants’ advised that this would affect the
viability/deliverability of the scheme and did not therefore wish to amend the
proposals in this way.
The most recent submission of amended plans has further sought to mitigate the loss
of the trees through provision of a more detailed landscape strategy, landscape
masterplan and replacement tree planting plans. These plans show the provision of
114 trees ranging in height from 4.5m to 6m. A number of these trees are proposed
at the west boundary of the site to provide a new buffer to residential properties.
Additional planting is also proposed throughout the development, including a central
green link separating the two buildings and various courtyard areas.
Consequently, the question is whether the loss of these trees, having regard to the
potential replacement planting as part of the landscape strategy, would be so
significant as to justify refusal of the application. Setting aside their buffer function,
and relationship of the proposed buildings to existing dwellings (which is considered
elsewhere in this report) it is not considered that the loss of these trees alone would
constitute sufficient grounds to refuse permission.
The application is accompanied by an Ecological Appraisal which concludes that the
site as existing does not support any protected species and has negligible potential

Page 82

to support roosting bats. The Appraisal makes a number of recommendations for
ecological enhancement as part of the proposals including landscaping choices,
provision of bat/bird bricks, bee bricks and incorporation of hedgehog passing points
in boundary treatments. It is considered that subject to the above the biodiversity of
the site could be improved as part of the proposals and that this should be secured
through an appropriate condition of any approval requiring submission and
implementation of a Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Plan (BMEP).
With reference to The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, this
development has been screened in respect of the need for an Appropriate
Assessment (AA) and given the nature of the development it has been concluded
that an AA is required in relation to the potential impact on the Exe Estuary
Special Protection Area (SPA). This AA has been carried out and concludes that the
development could have an impact in combination with other residential
developments primarily associated with recreational activity of future occupants of the
co-living block. However, this impact will be mitigated in line with the South-east
Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy prepared by Footprint Ecology on behalf of
East Devon and Teignbridge District Councils, and Exeter City Council (with
particular reference to Table 26). An appropriate contribution will be secured from the
development towards implementing the non-infrastructure measures within the
mitigation strategy, thereby reducing the impacts of the development to a level where
the integrity of the European sites will not be adversely affected and the conservation
objectives of the SPA are achieved.
Subject to the above the proposed development is considered to accord with Policies
CP16, CP17, saved Policy LS4 and paragraphs 174 and 180 of the NPPF. The
habitats mitigation contribution should be secured via a s106 legal agreement.
12. Contaminated Land
A Ground Investigation Report has been submitted in support of the application.
However, notwithstanding this Environmental Health have advised that with the
current buildings still being in-situ there has been no intrusive investigation of the
ground in these areas and therefore further investigation will be required to ensure
that no unacceptable risks remain.
Consequently they have recommended a condition to require appropriate further
investigation to establish whether any further risks are present, and if so identification
and implementation of any necessary remediation measure prior to occupation of the
development. Subject to such a condition being attached to any approval the
proposal would accord with saved Policy EN2, and paragraphs 120c) and 174f) of
the NPPF. Remediating the existing contamination will be an environmental
sustainability benefit of the scheme.
13. Impact on Air Quality

Page 83

Policy CP11 states that development should be located and designed so as to
minimise and if necessary, mitigate against environmental impacts, and within the
AQMA measures to reduce pollution and meet air quality objectives proposed by the
Local Transport Plan and the Air Quality Action Plan will be brought forward. Policy
EN3 states that development that would harm air quality will not be permitted unless
mitigation measures are possible and are incorporated as part of the proposal.
Whilst the site itself is not within an Air Quality Management Area the Heavitree Road
corridor adjoining the site is. An Air Quality Assessment was submitted as part of the
application which noted the air quality is mainly influenced by road traffic emissions
which, given the car free nature of the development, are likely to be less during the
occupation of the development than the traffic movements associated with the last
use of the building.
The assessment identified potential impacts on air quality associated with the
construction phase e.g. dust but concluded that this could be mitigated through an
appropriate Construction and Environment Management Plan secured via a condition
of any approval. Post construction it concluded residual affects would not be
significant. Environmental Health have raised no concerns with the proposal from and
Air Quality perspective.
14. Flood Risk and Surface Water Management
Saved Policy EN4 does not permit development if it would be at risk of flooding. The
site is within Flood Zone 1 and the proposed use is classified as ‘more vulnerable’
(see PPG). ‘More vulnerable’ uses are appropriate in Flood Zone 1, therefore the
proposal accords with saved Policy EN4.
Policy CP12 requires all development proposals to mitigate against flood risk utilising
SUDS where feasible and practical. Ground infiltration is considered unsuitable on
this site based on clay subsoil conditions. Therefore the drainage strategy is to
discharge surface water into existing public surface water sewers in the vicinity of the
site with utilisation of sustainable urban drainage techniques including attenuation
and reduced discharge rates. Initially the attenuation proposed a 30% betterment
over existing discharge rates but following comments from Devon County Council as
the Lead Local Flood Authority (DCC (LLFA)) the attenuation design has been
changed to incorporate additional storage capacity to achieve a betterment over
existing discharge rates of 50%.
The initial consultation response of DCC (LLFA) requested further information and
changes, and negotiations between them and the applicant resulted in a revised
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy incorporating the above. The revised
consultation response of the LLFA is awaited.
Devon County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority confirmed it has no in-principle
objections to the drainage scheme, subject to a pre-commencement condition

Page 84

securing the detailed design of the systems for the construction and operational
phases, and proposals for the adoption and maintenance of the final system.
Therefore, the proposal is considered to be in conformity with Policy CP12.
15. Sustainable Construction and Energy Conservation
Policy CP15 requires development proposals to demonstrate how sustainable design
and construction methods will be incorporated. An Energy and Sustainability
Statement has been provided accordingly. This states that the development will
utilise a fabric first approach with enhanced insulation, inclusion of photovoltaics and
air source heat pumps (for hot water) to achieve reduced CO2 emissions over and
above the requirements of the Building Regulations (10%) betterment. The scheme
has also been designed so as not to preclude future connection to a District Heating
Network when one is available within the vicinity of the site.
Policy CP15 requires residential development to be zero carbon from 2016.
However, national Planning Practice Guidance states that local planning authorities
can set energy performance standards for new housing that are higher than the
building regulations, but only up to the equivalent of Level 4 of the Code for
Sustainable Homes. Therefore, this is the standard currently sought in respect of
energy and CO2 emissions for residential development within the city. The
development is being designed to achieve a BREEAM Excellent rating in line with
policy CP15.
Conditions should be imposed if permission is granted to ensure that the sustainable
design and construction standards required by Policy CP15 are implemented.
Policy CP13 requires new development with a floor space of at least 1,000 sq. m, or
comprising 10 or more dwellings, to connect to any existing, or proposed,
Decentralised Energy Network (DEN) in the locality. The site is located within Local
Energy Network B, as shown on the Proposals Map of the Development Delivery
DPD (Publication Version), therefore a condition will be added to ensure that the
development is constructed so that it is capable of connecting to the network.
Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan requires planning applications for major
development to include a Waste Audit Statement. In this case it has been agreed to
add a pre-commencement condition requiring this.
16. Development Plan, Material Considerations and Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development
Following assessment of the application, it’s considered that the proposed
development accords with the relevant policies of the development plan.
The key in-principle policies are Policy CP1 that guides development towards the
most sustainable locations and Policy AP2 that gives priority to re-using previously

Page 85

developed land. The site is clearly in a sustainable location and re-uses previously
developed land. The proposed development clearly therefore accords with relevant
development plan policies in relation to the principal of developing the site.
In terms of the uses proposed, the co-living element accords with the ethos of Policy
CP5 that supports the provision of housing to meet the needs of all members of the
community. The student accommodation element is specifically supported by Policy
CP5. 20% of the co-living accommodation would also be for affordable housing. The
proposed uses therefore accord with the relevant development plan policies.
Of prime consideration is the compatibility of the proposals with the character and
appearance of the area and compliance with policies CP4 and DG1. This is an
outline application, with landscaping a reserved matter only. Therefore the access,
layout, scale and appearance of the development are to be determined at this stage.
It is relevant to consider whether the design in regard to these matters is capable of
being compatible with the character and appearance of the area. In this regard Policy
CP4 supports the proposed high density development. The remaining part of Policy
CP4 and Policy DG1 both deal with the important consideration of character and
appearance. As set out in ‘6’ above, the proposals are considered to provide a
balance between achieving the effective use of a brownfield site within a sustainable
location, whilst responding to the character of the area. Importantly the context of the
approach to the city centre and the width of this section of arterial road are both
factors that warrant the provision of taller buildings at the site. It should be noted that
the Design Review Panel agree to this approach.
Given the above, the proposals are considered to accord with the key development
plan policies that are most important for determining the application.
Section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning
applications to be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. If Members consider the application fails
against any of the above development plan policies, officers consider there are
material considerations that indicate that planning permission should be granted, in
particular the economic, social and environmental sustainable benefits of the scheme
through the provision of employment during the construction and operational phases
of the development, residential accommodation likely to be in the price range of
young people who can’t obtain a mortgage, purpose built student accommodation
that reduces the need to convert the existing housing stock to HMO’s, the provision
of 20% affordable housing and the re-use of a brownfield site in a sustainable
location that reduces the need for reliance upon car travel.
Furthermore, members must consider the effect of the ‘tilted balance’ as in a situation
where a 5 year housing supply cannot be demonstrated, the NPPF requires
permission to be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. Paragraph 120 of the NPPF places
‘substantial’ weight to the value of re-using brownfield land. Appeal decisions tell us

Page 86

that significant to substantial weight should be applied to affordable housing
provision. The weight afforded to these benefits represents a high bar to challenge.
Any harm, or non-compliance with policy, must be significantly and demonstrably
above this high bar of benefits.
17.0

Conclusion
The proposals have been developed with reference to Design Review Panels that
have supported the scale, massing and density of the proposals in this location. The
proposals have evolved with a significant reduction in height from earlier iterations,
such that officers are content that the scale and massing of the proposals are
positively respond to the context of the site in terms of respecting the character,
appearance of the area. Moreover, the proposals are considered to provide a strong
urban edge to the Gladstone Road junction and the graduated approach to storey
heights positively responds to the site levels and neighbouring residential uses.
Whilst indicative, the submitted cross section drawings and illustrative views
demonstrate the use of high quality architectural principles that will provide a more
positive active frontage, significantly improved when compared to the existing built
form of the site. Officers consider that the proposals provide a balance between
achieving the effective use of a brownfield site within a sustainable location, whilst
responding to the character of the area. Importantly the context of the approach to
the city centre and the width of this section of arterial road are both factors that
warrant the provision of taller buildings at the site. The standard of accommodation
has also been improved such that it accords with schemes previously approved by
the Council immediately adjacent the site and elsewhere in the City.
The development will deliver a number of substantial economic, social and
environmental sustainable benefits through employment during the construction and
operational phases of the development, residential accommodation likely to be in the
price range of young people who can’t obtain a mortgage, purpose built student
accommodation that reduces the need to convert the existing housing stock to
HMO’s, the provision of 20% affordable housing and the re-use of a brownfield site in
a sustainable location that reduces the need for reliance upon car travel. The coliving accommodation also contributes towards the Council’s requirement to provide a
5 Year Housing Land Supply. These substantial benefits weigh heavily in favour of
the scheme. The proposals benefit from a presumption in favour of granting
permission for the development through compliance with the Development Plan and
national planning policy in the form of the NPPF.

18.0

Recommendation
A) DELEGATE TO DIRECTOR OF CITY DEVELOPMENT TO GRANT
PERMISSION SUBJECT TO THE COMPLETION OF A LEGAL AGREEMENT
UNDER SECTION 106 OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT
1990 (AS AMENDED) TO SECURE THE FOLLOWING:

Page 87

20% of the co-living units (i.e. 72) will be affordable private rented (5% of
which will be wheelchair accessible) and priority will be given to essential local
workers.
Habitats Mitigation = £370,612.34 (in relation to the co-living development
only)
CCG contribution = £264,960.00 (£173,312 for PBSA and £91,648 for coliving)
Public open space contribution = £472,995.00 (£309,389 for PBSA and
£163,606 for co-living)
Play (outdoor adult fitness equipment) contribution = £121,095.00 (£79,209 for
PBSA and £41,886 for co-living)
Student Management Plan for PBSA block
Co-living Management Plan/Monitoring for Co-living block
Highway/transportation related provisions TBC
And the following conditions:
(Details to be provided on the Additional Information Update Sheet before
Planning Committee)
B) REFUSE PERMISSION FOR THE REASONS SET OUT BELOW IF THE
LEGAL AGREEMENT UNDER SECTION 106 OF THE TOWN AND
COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED) IS NOT COMPLETED BY
25 DECEMBER 2022 OR SUCH EXTENDED TIME AS AGREED BY THE
DIRECTOR OF CITY DEVELOPMENT
20% of the co-living units (i.e. 72) will be affordable private rented (5% of
which will be wheelchair accessible) and priority will be given to essential local
workers.
Habitats Mitigation = £370,612.34 (in relation to the co-living development
only)
CCG contribution = £264,960.00 (£173,312 for PBSA and £91,648 for coliving)
Public open space contribution = £472,995.00 (£309,389 for PBSA and
£163,606 for co-living)
Play (outdoor adult fitness equipment) contribution = £121,095.00 (£79,209 for
PBSA and £41,886 for co-living)
Student Management Plan for PBSA block
Co-living Management Plan/Monitoring for Co-living block
Highway/transportation related provisions TBC
the proposal is contrary to Exeter Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2012
Objectives 1, 3, 5, 6, 8 and 10, and policies CP4, CP7, CP10, CP16 and CP18,
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 saved policies L4, LS2, LS3 and DG4,

Page 88

Exeter City Council Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document 2014,
Exeter City Council Sustainable Transport Supplementary Planning Document 2013
and Exeter City Council Public Open Space Supplementary Planning Document
2005.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Client

Structural Engineer

Services Engineer

Consultant

Key plan
92800

NOTES:

THIS DRAWING IS PROTECTED BY COPYRIGHT.
ALL AREAS HAVE BEEN MEASURED FROM CURRENT DRAWINGS. THEY
MAY VARY BECAUSE OF (EG) SURVEY, DESIGN DEVELOPMENT,
CONSTRUCTION TOLERANCES, STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS OR
RE-DEFINITION OF THE AREAS TO BE MEASURED.
92750

Page 91

PLANNING APPLICATION
RED LINE BOUNDARY

92700

I1

27.09.21

Rev.

Date

MS

Issued for planning

Drawn

Comment

NR
Checked

Issue Purpose

INFORMATION

92650

tp bennett
One America Street London SE1 0NE

|

+44 (0)20 2408 2000

|

www.tpbennett.com

Project

north

293100

293050

293000

292950

292900

Heavitree Road
Exeter
Drawing Title

Location Plan

Drawn

RCR
0
1:1250

10m

15.09.21

tp bennett Project No.

50m
25m

Date

100m

A11910

Scale @ A3

Alt. Ref.

1:1250
Drawing Number

D 0001

A11910D0001
Rev

I1
c

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Planning Committee Report – 21/0496/FUL
1.0

Application Information
Number:
Applicant:
Proposal:
Site Address:
Registration Date:
Link to Application:
Ward Member(s):

21/0496/FUL
Mr Alex Graves
Construction of 184 dwellings, means of access,
public open space and associated infrastructure (Resubmission of refusal 19/1647/FUL - Revised Plans).
Land at Ikea Way Ikea Way Exeter
20210322
https://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=su
mmary&keyVal=QQD3NZHBMK700
Cllrs Leadbetter, Newby, and Ellis-Jones.

Reason Application is going to Committee: Major application with objections.
2.0

Summary of recommendation
APPROVE subject to recommended conditions and completion of a Section 106
agreement.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation:
The site is allocated for development in the Exeter Core Strategy and is a
sustainable location with access to a range of services and transport links. There
is no objection in principle to the development of this former agricultural and
highway land for residential development which is considered to accord with
policy H1 of the Exeter Local Plan 1st Review and the Exeter Core Strategy. The
proposal is considered to accord with the Development Plan as a whole, subject
to the imposition of conditions and completion of a S106 Legal Agreement.

4.0

Table of key planning issues
Issue

Conclusion

Page 93

Principle of development

The Newcourt Area was allocated for
development in the Exeter Core
Strategy 2012, and in particular policy
CP19. Residential development was
consented on the site in 2014, however
that consent has now lapsed. The site
is considered sustainable location with
access to a range of services and
transport links. There is no objection in
principle to the development of this
former agricultural and highway land
for residential development which is
considered to accord with policy H1 of
the Exeter Local Plan 1st Review and
the Exeter Core Strategy.

Scale, design, impact on character and
appearance

The development plan guides that sites
should be developed at the highest
density that can be achieved, whilst
meeting criteria set out in policies H2
and DG4 of the Local Plan and Policy
CP4 of the Core Strategy.
The Residential Design Guide SPD,
National Design Guide and Local Plan
Policies DG1, DG2 and DG4, DG6 and
DG7 set out our approach to residential
design.
The number of dwellings has been
reduced to 184 to achieve an
acceptable layout. The internal designs
have been amended to meet national
space standards. The buildings
proposed have an appropriately
residential scale and massing and use
of materials. Street scene landscaping
is considered adequate to reinforce the
residential character of the area.

Page 94

Impact on amenity of neighbouring
dwellings.

The layout has been amended since
first submitted to remove residential
buildings from the southern boundary
of the site. The Multi Use Games Area
proposed is located to be 30m from the
nearest existing dwelling and 24m from
the front façade of new dwellings. The
existing landscape buffer to the
neighbouring residential and open
spaces to the south is retained and
landscape secured by condition.

Public Spaces and parks

The development provided the required
10% of site area as green space that
can be landscaped as useable public
space. The development will provide
two LAP standard play spaces
positioned to be within 100m of
dwellings. A LEAP Standard play
space required can be delivered on site
or by enhancement of the adjacent offsite. Similarly provision is made for the
MUGA to be delivered on site, however
the potential for the MUGA to be
delivered on third party land closer to
the Newcourt Community Centre site is
still being explored.

Economic benefits

The development would be CIL Liable
at the residential rate and would
contribute toward NHS GP surgeries,
NHS Acute Care, and affordable
housing provision. In occupation the
dwellings would pay Council Tax, and
would provide jobs and economic
stimulus during construction phase.

Page 95

Access and Parking

Vehicular access is from Ikea way only,
with bus only access to Russell Way is
considered acceptable and to
encourage sustainable travel by
reducing conflict. Car parking is
accommodated in small parking courts
and on plot/on street in a manner that
limits domination of the public realm by
car parking. Cycle parking is provided
in enclosed stores for apartments and
in gardens for dwellings details of
which can be secured by condition. EV
Charging points are provided for all
dwellings and within the parking areas
for the apartments..
National Highways have raised no
objection.

Drainage

An acceptable drainage scheme has
been submitted designed on a worst
case scenario for infiltration. Approval
of this should be reserved to allow
further investigation and potential for
surface attenuation/treatment,
infiltration and source control solutions
be developed once investigation of the
underlying surface is undertaken.

Sustainable Construction

Conditions should be added to any
consent requiring compliance with Core
Strategy Policy CP15 for energy
performance and a Waste Audit
Statement, in accordance with Devon
Waste Plan policy W4.

Page 96

Biodiversity

A Biodiversity Enhancement Plan
should be conditioned to include an
appropriate number of bat and bird
boxes, in accordance with Policy LS4
and chapter 15 of the NPPF.
A tree protection plan will be required
to protect retained trees during
construction in accordance with Policy
DG1 and the NPPF, and further
landscape planting secured through a
detailed landscaping scheme condition.

Contaminated Land and air quality

A contaminated land strategy has been
submitted which indicates low risk.
There is no indication that this matter
cannot be controlled by conditions
attached to the consent to verify and to
ensure any unexpected contamination
that may be encountered during
construction is adequately mitigated.
EV charging points are proposed to
encourage EV use and reduce
emissions form vehicles.

Page 97

Affordable Housing

The applicant has offered 35% of
dwellings as Affordable Housing which
can be secured through a S106
agreement.
Since the introduction of the First
Homes policy nationally the breakdown
of the affordable dwellings be 70%
Social Rent, 25% First Homes
(discounted for sale) and 5% other
intermediate affordable tenures. The
mix of dwellings would be
representative of the development as a
whole unless an alternative mix is
negotiated. 5% of the Affordable
Dwellings will be disabled accessible
standard. As such the proposals meet
the requirements of Exeter Core
Strategy policy CP7, Exeter Local Plan
1st Review policy H7 and the
Affordable Housing SPD.

Development Plan, five year housing
land supply, and presumption in favour
of sustainable development

5.0

The proposal is considered to accord
with the Development Plan as a whole,
subject to the imposition of conditions.
The Council cannot currently
demonstrate a five year housing land
supply, though the shortfall is modest,
the ‘tilted balance’ in the NPPF is
therefore engaged when considering
the application.

Description of site
The application site is 5.5 hectares located to the south of the A379, east of the
IKEA car park, west of the railway line, and north of existing two storey dwellings
in Bunker Square, Mulligan Drive and Old Rydon Close.
The main vehicular access to the site is from Ikea Way to the south of the Ikea
car park. There is a footway/cycleway along the eastern boundary of the site,
which provides a connection with Old Rydon Lane to the south and Russell Way
to the north via the bridge over the A379. The loop road which linked the A379
westbound to the bridge has been closed to traffic.

Page 98

The site has been used for the depositing of earth resulting from the
development of the Ikea store. Consequently the site has a varying levels, which
exceed the pre-existing ground level in the area. There is a foo and cycle way
along the eastern boundary of the site connecting Old Rydon Lane to Russell
Way over the existing road bridge crossing of the A379.
A number of existing trees are located to the boundaries and within the site
particular to north eastern section of the site where they provide a buffer to the
A379.
6.0

Description of development
The proposal relates to the development of the site for 184 dwellings. These
comprising 137 houses as a mix of terraced, semi-detached, and detached
properties, 39 one, two, and three bed flats in apartment blocks and 8 flats over
garages. The dwellings are proposed to be either two or two and a half storeys in
height with parking for each dwelling located within either garages or parking
spaces to the front, side or rear of the property. The apartments along the
western side of the site would be three storeys.
The proposal includes provision for 307 car parking spaces, with all vehicular
access to the site via the eastern end of Ikea Way. There is pedestrian and cycle
access connecting to the existing route along the eastern edge of the site. A bus
only connection is proposed to link to the existing road bridge allowing two-way
bus movement through the site from Russell Way to Ikea Way. Two bus stops
are proposed within this site.
The main public open space is located south of the main access road, where the
MUGA is positioned, and alongside the eastern boundary with the railway line,
where there is space for a LEAP standard play area. Local Area for Play
provision in made two locations within the layout.
The application has been amended since first submitted to reposition the Multi
Use Games area to the south side of the site and away from the railway line, to
provide two LAP standard play spaces on site and close to dwellings, to redesign
the apartment blocks to provide direct access to private communal space, and to
address issues around the positioning of buildings relative to the neighbouring
development to the south.

7.0

Supporting information provided by applicant

Page 99

Site Location Plan
Planning Statement
Design and Access Statement
Layout Plan
Building Plans and Elevations
Refuse Plan
Adoptable Areas Plan
Boundaries/Surfaces plan
Materials Plan
Building Heights Plan
Illustrative Sections
Masterplan
Soft Landscape Plans
Engineering Appraisal
Drainage Strategy
Swept Path Analysis
Air Quality Assessment (updated)
Ground Investigation Report (contamination)
Flood Risk Assessment
Tree Plan
Ecological Impact Assessment
Transport Note
Stockpile Assessment
The application was received in July 2021. Revised plans were received in March
2021, November 2021, and January 2022.
8.0

Relevant planning history
Reference
13/4524/OUT

16/1317/DIS

19/1647/FUL

Proposal
Outline planning application
(with all matters reserved except
access) for erection of between
180-220 residential units
together with associated access,
car parking, landscaping and
associated works.
Please see Archaeological
Investigation (reference 880150)
prepared by Cotswold
Archaeology.
Construction of 200 dwellings,
means of access, public open
space and

Page 100

Decision
Permitted

Decision Date
26.11.2014

Permitted

27.10.2016

Refused

04.12.2020

associated infrastructure
(Amended Scheme).
9.0

List of constraints
Aerodrome Safeguarding Area
Area of special Advertisement Control

10.0

Consultations

Appeal
Dismissed

06.12.2021

All consultee responses can be viewed in full on the Council’s website.
National Highways Offer no objection.
Network Rail raise no objection in principle, but there is uncertainty regarding
what the MUGA will look like and how close this will be to the Network Rail
boundary, request that the applicant contact Asset Protection at an early stage to
discuss the detailed design and proposed works so that risk to the railway can be
considered by Network Rail and mitigation measures agreed.
Natural England advise that this development falls within the ‘zone of influence’
for the East Devon Pebblebed Heaths SAC, East Devon Heaths SPA and Exe
Estuary SPA as set out in the Local Plan and the South East Devon European
Sites Mitigation Strategy (SEDEMS). It is anticipated that new housing
development in this area is ‘likely to have a significant effect’, when considered
either alone or in combination, upon the interest features of the SAC/SPA due to
the risk of increased recreational pressure caused by that development. In line
with the SEDEMS and the Joint Approach of Exeter City Council, Teignbridge
District Council and East Devon District Council, we advise that mitigation will be
required to prevent such harmful effects from occurring as a result of this
development. Permission should not be granted until such time as the
implementation of these measures has been secured.
South West Water is able to provide clean potable water services from the
existing public water main, and to provide foul sewerage services from the
existing public foul or combined sewer in the vicinity of the site.
Wales and West utilities no response received.
Police Architectural Liaison Officer notes and appreciates that access paths that
were previously have now been gated which is supported. Please ensure all
such rear service paths that serve multiple plots are gated. The improved
arrangements of parking around the apartment blocks are also welcomed. I
would like to make the following comments and recommendations for your
consideration and respectfully request that two suggested planning conditions

Page 101

(secure gates to alleyways and gardens) are implemented should the scheme
progress. Recommendations on matters of detailed design are also provided.
NHS CCG response has been informed by the Devon Health Contributions
Approach: GP Provision which was jointly prepared by NHS England and Devon
County Council. The CCG’s concern is that the combined surgeries of Wonford
Green Surgery and Hill Barton Surgery are already over capacity within their
existing footprint therefore it follows that to have a sustainable development in
human health terms the whole local healthcare provision will require review. The
combined surgeries already have 10,590 patients registered between them and
this new development will increase the local population by a further 456 persons.
Taking this into account and drawing upon the document “Devon Health
Contributions Approach: GP Provision document” which was agreed by NHS
England and Devon County Council, 36.48 m2 additional space required and
hence a total contribution of £116,736.
RD&E NHS Foundation Trust is currently operating at full capacity in the
provision of acute and planned healthcare. It is further demonstrated that this
development will create potentially long term impact on the Trust ability provide
services as required. S 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) allows the Local Planning Authority to request a developer to
contribute towards the impact it creates on the services. The contribution in the
amount £254,464.00 sought will go towards the gap in the funding created by
each potential patient from this development.
RSPB note that the LEMP has been revised and are disappointed that the ratio
of integral bird to bat boxes remains unchanged. We recommend "Universal
Boxes". We trust you will give due consideration when deciding on which
Biodiversity Enhancements and make them a condition of the consent if granted.
DCC Lead Local Flood Authority (following submission of revised plans) have no
in-principle objections to the above planning application at this stage, assuming
that suggested pre-commencement planning condition is imposed on any
permission.
DCC Waste Planning Authority: Paragraph 8 of the National Planning Policy for
Waste and Policy W4 of the Devon Waste Plan requires major development
proposals to be accompanied by a Waste Audit Statement. The application is not
supported by any such statement and it is therefore recommended that a
condition is attached to any consent to require the submission of a statement in
advance of the commencement of development.
DCC Highways and Transport does not wish to raise an objection to the
proposals, subject to the inclusion of the recommended planning conditions. A

Page 102

number of conditions have been requested in order to make the application
acceptable in highway planning grounds.
DCC Education updated response is based on our new S106 education
approach. This is in accordance with Devon County Council’s Education
Infrastructure Plan 2016-2033. Regarding the above planning application, Devon
County Council has identified that a development up to 175 family type dwellings
[2 or more beds] will generate an additional 43.75 primary pupils and 26.25
secondary pupils which would have a direct impact on the primary and secondary
schools in Exeter. Local primary schools and early years providers have
sufficient spare capacity for the pupils expected to be generated by this
development. Matford Brook Academy, is under construction and planning to open to
its first intake in September 2023, DCC has forecast that the local secondary
schools will have capacity for the number of pupils likely to be generated by the
proposed development. Therefore, Devon County Council will seek contributions
towards SEN education infrastructure to serve the address of the proposed
development in order to make the development acceptable in planning terms and
to mitigate its impact. The contributions request will total £113,783 (based on the
SEN extension rate of £81,274 per pupil) equivalent to 0.88 primary pupil and
0.52 secondary pupils. This equates to a per family type dwelling rate of £650.19.
ECC Environmental Health: Approval with conditions for CEMP, acoustic design
statement, air quality mitigation and contaminated land.
ECC Trees Officer (following submission of revised plans) no objections to the
proposed site layout, tree protection condition recommended.
ECC Parks and Public Spaces objection to the application on the basis of
insufficient play area provision, until we have evidence that the adjacent LEAP
will be upgraded and appropriate pedestrian links will be created. If the
developer cannot guarantee that the Bunker Square site will be enhanced, and
that new pedestrian connections will be provided, we would expect to see the
developer allowing for the provision of a LEAP (toddler and junior provision)
within the plans. Should you be minded to approve the planning application for
the development in its current form, we would expect specific conditions /
financial contributions to apply in addition to the expected contributions set out in
the Planning Obligations SPD and the Public Open Space SPD for details of the
proposed MUGA and provision of a LEAP.
Exeter Cycling Campaign warmly welcome that there are now changes to the
trafﬁc that can use the A379 Overbridge - making it available only to buses,
pedestrians and cyclists. This is a signiﬁcant improvement. We do however
continue to have concerns about some of design (or lack of detail) about this
proposal: Connection to Russell Way, cycle parking and cycle junctions. We
would ask that these concerns are addressed please so that our objection can be
lifted.

Page 103

11.0

Representations
The application has been advertised by Site Notices, Press Notice, and
Neighbour Letter.
27 objections received raising the following concerns:3 storey flats out of keeping with area
Bus Route on bridge over A379 is a danger to cyclists an pedestrians
Cycle Parking should be provided
MUGA should be within the housing area and should not be relatively
isolated
MUGA close to unsupervised spaces will give rise to antisocial behaviour
MUGA users should not have to cross road to use it
Old Rydon Close is poorly lit and dangerous at night
Car drivers will use bridge as short cut
MUGA too small
Density of development too high
Not enough provision for car parking
Garages will not be used and car parking will be on street blocking
pavements
Not enough green space provided on site
Loss of privacy for adjacent dwellings
Single point of vehicular access will cause bottleneck

12.0

Relevant policies
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021)
2.
Achieving sustainable design
4.
Decision-making
5.
Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
8.
Promoting healthy and safe communities
9.
Promoting Sustainable Transport
11.
Making effective use of land
12.
Achieving well-designed places
15.
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
16.
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
National Design Guide – Planning Practice Guidance
Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February 2012)
Core Strategy Objectives
CP1 – Spatial Strategy
CP3 – Housing

Page 104

CP4 – Density
CP5 – Mixed Housing
CP7 – Affordable Housing
CP9 – Transport
CP10 – Meeting Community Needs
CP11 – Pollution
CP12 – Flood Risk
CP14 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
CP15 – Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Green Infrastructure, Landscape and Biodiversity
CP17 – Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP18 – Infrastructure
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
AP1 – Design and Location of Development
AP2 – Sequential Approach
H1 – Search Sequence
H2 – Location Priorities
H3 – Housing Sites
H5 – Diversity of Housing
H7 – Housing for Disabled People
T1 – Hierarchy of Modes
T2 – Accessibility Criteria
T3 – Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
T5 – Cycle Route Network
T10 – Car Parking Standards
C5 – Archaeology
LS4 – Nature Conservation
EN2 – Contaminated Land
EN3 – Air and Water Quality
EN4 – Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
EN6 – Renewable Energy
DG1 – Objectives of Urban Design
DG2 – Energy Conservation
DG4 – Residential Layout and Amenity
DG5 – Provision of Open Space and Children’s Play Areas
DG6 – Vehicle Circulation and Car Parking in Residential Development
DG7 – Crime Prevention and Safety
Devon Waste Plan 2011 – 2031 (Adopted 11 December 2014) (Devon County
Council)
W4 – Waste Prevention
W21 – Making Provision for Waste Management

Page 105

Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version, July
2015)
This document represents a material consideration but has not been adopted
and does not form part of the Development Plan and therefore carries limited
weight.
DD1 – Sustainable Development
DD9 – Accessible, Adaptable and Wheelchair User Dwellings
DD13 – Residential Amenity
DD20 – Accessibility and Sustainable Movement
DD21 – Parking
DD22 – Open Space, Allotments, and Sport and Recreation Provision
DD25 – Design Principles
DD26 – Designing out Crime
DD28 – Conserving and Managing Heritage Assets
DD30 – Green Infrastructure
DD31 – Biodiversity
DD33 – Flood Risk
DD34 – Pollution and Contaminated Land
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents
Affordable Housing SPD (April 2014)
Archaeology and Development SPD (Nov 2004)
Sustainable Transport SPD (March 2013)
Planning Obligations SPD (April 2014)
Public Open Space SPD (Sept 2005)
Residential Design Guide SPD (Sept 2010)
Trees and Development SPD (Sept 2009)
Devon County Council Supplementary Planning Document
Waste Management and Infrastructure SPD (July 2015)
Other documents
Newcourt Masterplan Study November 2010.
13.0

Human rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property
The consideration of the application in accordance with Council procedures will
ensure that views of all those interested are considered. All comments from
interested parties have been considered and reported within this report in
summary with full text available via the Council’s website.

Page 106

It is acknowledged that there are certain properties where they may be some
impact. However, any interference with the right to a private and family life and
home arising from the scheme as a result of impact on residential amenity is
considered necessary in a democratic society in the interests of the economic
well-being of the city and wider area and is proportionate given the overall
benefits of the scheme in terms of provision of homes, including affordable
homes.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance
with the Town and Country planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the
development of land. This recommendation is based on the consideration of the
proposal against adopted Development Plan policies, the application of which
does not prejudice the Human Rights of the applicant or any third party.
14.0

Public sector equalities duty
As set out in the Equalities Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their
functions must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the Act;
b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and person who do not
share it involves having due regard in particular to the need to:
a) removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of other persons who do
not share it
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by
such persons is disproportionately low.
Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage the
Duty is to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in
considering the merits of this planning application the planning authority has had
due regard to the matters set out in section 149 of the equality Act 2010.

Page 107

15.0

Financial Issues
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning
application is set out in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. This requires
that local planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for the purposes of a nondelegated determination of an application for planning permission; and
b) contains a recommendation as to how the authority should determine the
application in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
The information or financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development which officers consider are likely to
be obtained by the authority if the development is carried out including their value
if known and should include whether the officer considers these to be material or
not material.
Material considerations
Affordable housing: 64 affordable housing units which represents a 35%
affordable housing provision which would be split as 70% social rent, 25 % First
Homes and 5% other intermediate affordable housing.
Two LAP standard play spaces, a LEAP standard Space and a Multi-Use Games
Area
Contributions of £107,397 to NHS GP and £237,242 NHS Acute Services
Contribution of £113,783 to Special Educational.
Additional jobs created during construction phase.
Non material considerations
CIL contributions: The adopted CIL charging schedule applies a levy on
proposals that create additional new floor space over and above what is already
on a site. This proposal is CIL liable.
The rate at which CIL is charged for this development is £118.57 per square
metre at 2022 rates. Confirmation of the final CIL charge will be provided to the
applicant in a CIL liability notice issued prior to the commencement of the
development. All liability notices will be adjusted in accordance with the national
All-in-Tender Price Index of construction costs published by the Building Cost
Information Service (BCIS) of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors for the

Page 108

year when planning permission is granted for the development. Full details of
current charges are on the Council’s website.
The proposal will generate Council Tax in occupation phase.
16.0

Planning assessment
Principle of development
The Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year housing land supply,
though the shortfall is modest, the ‘tilted balance’ in the NPPF is therefore
engaged when considering the application.
The Newcourt Area was allocated for development in the Exeter Core Strategy
2012, and in particular policy CP19. Residential development was consented on
the site in 2014, however that consent has now lapsed. The site is considered
sustainable location with access to a range of services and transport links. There
is no objection in principle to the development of this former agricultural and
highway land for residential development which is considered to accord with
policy H1 of the Exeter Local Plan 1st Review and the Exeter Core Strategy.
The application seeks to overcome the three refusal reasons associated with
planning application 19/1647/FUL, which was for 200 dwellings.
Scale, design, layout of dwellings
The development plan guides that sites should be developed at the highest
density that can be achieved, whilst meeting criteria set out in policies H2 and
DG4 of the Local Plan and Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy.
The Residential Design Guide SPD, National Design Guide and Local Plan
Policies DG1, DG2 and DG4, DG6 and DG7 set out our approach to residential
design.

Page 109

The number of dwellings has been reduced to 184 in the interest of achieving an
acceptable layout with sufficient public and private open space, including
defensive space, to allow residents to feel at ease within their homes.
The internal designs of buildings have been amended to meet national space
standards and to provide private egress to communal garden spaces for the flats.
The scale of development matches that of surrounding areas. The use of taller
(three-storey) apartment buildings on the western boundary adjacent the wider
open area of the Ikea car park is considered appropriate response to that space.
The buildings proposed have an appropriately residential scale and massing and
use of materials.
Whilst the layout includes a small number of gardens that do not fully accord with
the Local Plan and Residential Design Guide standard of 55 sqm these are
related to small dwellings and this si snot by itself considered a reason for refusal
of the application.
The layout now includes two Local Area for Paly standard play spaces within the
residential layout which provide a focal points within that layout giving it greater
character and legibility and visual interest. Street scene landscaping is
considered adequate to reinforce the residential character of the area. The
Inspector at appeal concluded that the size and positioning of tree planting within
streets was sufficient to ensure their long term survival. A replacement planting
condition should be attached to any consent in the event that landscape tree
planting fails this replacement can be secured.
The amended proposals are considered to accord with the aims of the
Residential Design Guide SPD, National Design Guide and Local Plan Policies
DG1, DG2 and DG4, DG6 and DG7 and as such are considered acceptable.
Impact on amenity of neighbouring dwellings

Page 110

The layout has been amended since first submitted (and from the appeal
scheme) to remove residential buildings from the southern boundary of the site
where their relative position and raised levels resulted in an unacceptable
relationship to neighbouring buildings. This amendment has successfully
addressed one of the reasons for refusal of the previous scheme that was upheld
at appeal.
The Multi Use Games Area (MUGA) is proposed to be located in this area of the
site, moving it away from its constrained position adjacent to the railway line. The
MUGA is located to be 30m from the nearest existing dwelling off site which have
their rear gardens orientated towards the MUGA, and to be 24m from the front
façade of new dwellings on the site. The distance and existing landscape buffer
to the neighbour residential and open spaces to the south is retained and
additional landscape planting secured by condition.
The proposed stepped access between the site and the green space in Bunker
Square is removed to reduce movement between these spaces and encourage
their separate use for the different purposes these green spaces were designed
to provide for. The landscape buffer between these developments reduces light
spill to the front of existing dwellings. Pedestrian linkage is achieved via IKEA
Way. As such the proposal is considered to accord with the aims of Polices DG4
of the Exeter Local Plan 1st Review.
Public Spaces and parks
In determining the appeal the Inspector agreed with the Council regards to the
absence of provision for young children’s play as a reason for refusal of the
previously submitted 200 dwelling scheme for this site. This amended layout for
184 dwellings incorporates the required 10% of site area as green space that can
be landscaped as useable public space. The amended development layout will
provide two LAP standard play spaces positioned to be within 100m of dwellings.
A LEAP Standard play space can be delivered on site in an area of openspace
adjacent the cycle path on the eastern boundary or by enhancement of the
adjacent off-site play space at Bunker Square. Provision can be secured to be
delivered in a timely manner through the S106 agreement and conditions.
Similarly provision is made for the MUGA to be delivered on site as shown near
the southern boundary, however the potential for the MUGA to be delivered on
third party land closer to the Newcourt Community centre site is still being
explored. Provision for delivery on site-or off-site in a timely manner can be
secured by appropriate S106 and condition wording. As such the proposal is
considered to accord with the aims of Polices DG5, L4 and L6 of the Exeter Local
Plan 1st Review and Policy CP10 and CP17 of the Exeter Core Strategy.

Page 111

Access and Parking
Vehicular access from Ikea way only, with bus only access to Russell Way is
considered acceptable and to encourage sustainable travel by reducing conflict.
Car parking is accommodated in small parking courts and on plot/on street in a
manner that limits domination of the public realm by car parking. Cycle parking is
provided in enclosed stores for apartments and in gardens for dwellings details of
which can be secured by condition. EV Charging points are provided for all
dwellings and within the parking areas for the apartments. The access and
parking arrangements are considered to accord with the aims of local with the
Council’s standards in Policies DG6 and T10, and the Sustainable Transport
SPD.
National Highways withdrew a recommendation that the application not be
approved following confirmation that there would be no significant impact on J30
of the M5.
Drainage

Page 112

The imported fill material on the site impedes proper understanding of infiltration
.An acceptable drainage scheme has been submitted designed on a worst case
scenario for infiltration. Approval of this should be reserved to allow further
investigation and potential for surface attenuation/treatment, infiltration and
source control solutions be developed once investigation of the underlying
surface is undertaken.
Sustainable Construction
Conditions should be added to any consent requiring compliance with Core
Strategy Policies CP14 and CP15 for carbon emissions reductions above those
required by the Building Regulations and use of decentralised and renewable or
low carbon energy sources, and a Waste Audit Statement, in accordance with
Devon Waste Plan policy W4.
Ecology
A condition to secure a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan should be attached to
any consent to include an appropriate number of bat and bird boxes, in
accordance with Policy LS4 and chapter 15 of the NPPF.
A tree protection plan will be required to protect retained trees during
construction in accordance with Policy DG1 and the NPPF, and further
landscape planting secured through a detailed landscaping scheme condition.
Contaminated Land and Air Quality
A contaminated land strategy has been submitted which indicates low risk. There
is no indication that this matter cannot be controlled by conditions attached to the
consent to verify and to ensure any unexpected contamination that may be
encountered during construction is adequately mitigated. The proposals include
for EV charging points for each dwelling and for communal parking areas. The
measures proposed will reduce emissions frorm vehicle movements associated
with the site. As such the proposals are considered to accord with the aims of
policy EN2 of the Exeter Local Plan First review and Chapter 15 of the NPPF.
Affordable housing
The prosed residential development meets the requirements of Policy CP7 and
the applicant has offered 35% of dwellings as Affordable Housing which can be
secured through a S106 agreement.
Since the introduction of the First Homes policy nationally the breakdown of the
affordable dwellings be 70% Social Rent, 25% First Homes (discounted for sale)
and 5% other intermediate affordable tenures. The mix of dwellings would be
representative of the development as a whole unless an alternative mix is

Page 113

negotiated. 5% of the Affordable Dwellings will be disabled accessible standard.
As such the proposals meet the requirements of Exeter Core Strategy policy
CP7, Exeter Local Plan 1st Review policy H7 and the Affordable Housing SPD.
Contributions to healthcare provision
IN determining the appeal on application 19/1647/FUL the Inspector concluded
that, notwithstanding that there was no established consensus on the matter of
NHS services contributions, development would harmfully impact upon the ability
to provide healthcare services to residents of the development and other existing
residents in the area. This would not be adequately mitigated by existing funding
streams and the GP Surgery Contribution and Foundation Trust Contribution
were justified and required to ensure healthy communities in accordance with the
NPPF, and the aims of CS Policy CP10 to provide facilities to meet community
needs. Whilst the Council remains of the view that the GP Services contribution
is justified the Foundation Trust Contribution is not based on a view that, among
other matters, insufficient information has been provided of how this arises as
new demand, what such contributions would be spent on, and whether such
contributions meet the ‘tests’ for planning obligations specified in CIL Regulation
122(2) and NPPF 2021 section 57. Nevertheless the Council is mindful of the
role of the Inspectorate as a higher determining authority and the decision of the
Inspector with regard to the evidence presented at appeal in respect of this
individual case. Both GP Surgeries contribution of £107,397 and NHS Foundation
Trust acute services contributions of £237,242 are proposed to be secured by
S106 agreement attached to any consent.
Economic benefits
The development would be CIL Liable at the residential rate and would contribute
toward NHS GP surgeries, NHS Acute Care, and affordable housing provision. In
occupation the dwellings would pay Council Tax, and would provide jobs and
economic stimulus during construction phase.
Development Plan, five year housing land supply, and Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development
The proposal, subject to the imposition of conditions and completion of a Section
106 agreement as described, is considered to accord with the Development Plan
as a whole. The Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year housing land
supply, though the shortfall is modest, the ‘tilted balance’ in favour of sustainable
development set out in the NPPF is therefore engaged when considering the
application.
17.0

Conclusion

Page 114

The site is allocated for development in the Exeter Core Strategy and is a
sustainable location with access to a range of services and transport links. There
is no objection in principle to the development of this former agricultural and
highway land for residential development which is considered to accord with
policy H1 of the Exeter Local Plan 1st Review and the Exeter Core Strategy. The
Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year housing land supply, though the
shortfall is modest, the ‘tilted balance’ in the NPPF is therefore engaged when
considering the application. The proposal is considered to accord with the
Development Plan as a whole, subject to the imposition of conditions and
completion of a S106 Legal Agreement as detailed above.
18.0

Recommendation
a) DELEGATE TO THE SERVICE LEAD (CITY DEVELOPMENT) TO GRANT
PERMISSION SUBJECT TO THE COMPLETION OF A LEGAL
AGREEMENT UNDER SECTION 106 OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY
PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED) TO SECURE THE FOLLOWING:
Affordable Housing 35% of dwellings on site (split 70% Social Rent, 25%
First Homes, 5% intermediate)
Traffic Orders £15,000
NHS GP Surgeries contribution £107,397
NHS Acute services contribution £237,242
Open space provisions LEAP and MUGA (onsite but provision to be made
in S106 for alternative off site delivery)
Sustainable Travel Planning £500/ per dwelling
DCC Education contributions SEN totalling £113,783.
Sustainable Transport Infrastructure, £500 per dwelling
Provision of SEDEMS payments where not secured for the dwelling by
other means, such as CIL.

All S106 contributions should be index linked from the date of resolution.
And the following conditions (and their reasons) the wording of which may be
varied:
1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later
than the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this
permission is granted.
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

Page 115

2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in
strict accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning
Authority on 25 January 2022 listed below as modified by other conditions of this
consent.
JBA 19-269 Masterplan rev J
P18-2919_05 rev AY SITE LAYOUT
P18-2919_06 rev P HOUSE PACK
P18-2919_07 rev N BUILDING HEIGHTS
P18-2919_08 rev P MATERIALS
P18-2919_09 rev P PARKING
P18-2919_10 rev P BOUNDARIES & SURFACES
P18-2919_11 rev Q ADOPTION PLAN
P18-2919_12 rev M REFUSE
P18-2919_14 rev L MOVEMENT PLAN
P18-2919_15-01L_01-STREET SCENES (1OF2)
P18-2919_15-01L_02-STREET SCENES (20F2)
JBA 19-269 100 rev F Detailed Soft Landscape Proposals for Plots & POS
19-269 101 rev F Detailed Soft Landscape Proposals for Plots & POS
19-269 102 rev F Detailed Soft Landscape Proposals for Plots & POS
19-269 103 rev F Detailed Soft Landscape Proposals for Plots & POS
19-269 104 rev F Detailed Soft Landscape Proposals for Plots & POS
19-269 105 rev F Detailed Soft Landscape Proposals for Plots & POS
19-269 106 Off-site Strategic Landscaping Plan
13055-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2000 Engineering Appraisal rev P17
13055-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2006 Adoption Plan rev P06
13055-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2200 Drainage Strategy rev P16
13055-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2310 Swept Path Analysis (Refuse) rev P15
13055-HYD-XX-XX-DR-C-2311 Swept Path Analysis (Bus) rev P11
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
3) A schedule of materials it is proposed to use externally in the construction of
the development shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. No external
finishing material shall be used until the Local Planning Authority has confirmed
in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials used in the
construction of the development shall correspond with the approved schedule in
all respects.
Reason: To ensure that the materials conform with the visual amenity
requirements of the area.
4) No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall
take place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide
for:

Page 116

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)

The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction
phase.
The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
The areas for loading and unloading plant and materials.
Storage areas of plant and materials used in constructing the
development.
The erection and maintenance of securing hoarding, if appropriate.
Wheel washing facilities.
Measures to monitor and control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction.
No burning on site during construction or site preparation works.
Measures to monitor and minimise noise/vibration nuisance to neighbours
from plant and machinery.
Unless otherwise agreed in writing construction working hours and
deliveries from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on
Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
No driven piling without prior consent from the LPA.

The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction
period of the development.
5) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved (including
demolition and all preparatory work), a scheme for the protection of the retained
trees, in accordance with BS 5837:2012, including a tree protection plan(s) (TPP)
and an arboricultural method statement (AMS) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by Exeter City Council
Reason: Required prior to commencement of development to satisfy the Local
Planning Authority that the trees to be retained will not be damaged during
demolition or construction and to protect and enhance the appearance and
character of the site and locality, in accordance with Trees in Relation to
Development Supplementary Planning Document and pursuant to section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
6) No construction shall commence until the following information has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:
(a) Soakaway test results in accordance with BRE Digest 365 (2016),
groundwater monitoring results in line with our DCC groundwater monitoring
policy and evidence that there is a low risk of groundwater re-emergence
downslope of the site from any proposed soakaways or infiltration basins.
(b) A detailed drainage design based upon the approved Flood Risk Assessment
and Drainage Strategy and the results of the information submitted in relation to
(a) above.

Page 117

(c) Detailed proposals for the management of surface water and silt runoff from
the site during construction of the development hereby permitted.
(d) Proposals for the adoption and maintenance of the permanent surface water
drainage system.
(e) A plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed at the site.
(f) Evidence there is agreement in principle from South West Water/landowner to
connect into their system.
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the works have been
approved and implemented in accordance with the details under (a) - (f) above.
Reason: The above conditions are required to ensure the proposed surface water
drainage system will operate effectively and will not cause an increase in flood
risk either on the site, adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for Devon
Guidance (2017) and national policies, including NPPF and
PPG. The conditions should be pre-commencement since it is essential that the
proposed surface water drainage system is shown to be feasible before works
begin to avoid redesign / unnecessary delays during construction when site
layout is fixed.
7) Prior to commencement of the development the applicant shall submit for
approval in writing by the LPA an updated Acoustic Design Statement, including
assessment of overheating conditions. The Acoustic Design Statement should
demonstrate good acoustic design, including achieving both sustainable acoustic
comfort and sustainable thermal comfort. Any mitigation measures required shall
be implemented in full prior to occupation of the development, and maintained
thereafter.
The Professional Practice Guidance Note (ProPG): Planning and Noise for New
Residential Development May 2017 (ANC, IoA and CIEH) describes the
expected content and approach of an Acoustic Design Statement. The ANC/IoA
guidance 'Acoustics Ventilation and Overheating: Residential Design Guide'
provides methods by which the overheating assessment can be conducted.
8) No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site has
taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any contamination of
the land and the results, together with any remedial works necessary, have been
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The dwellings shall not be
occupied until the approved remedial works have been implemented and a
remediation statement submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what
contamination has been found and how it has been dealt with together with
confirmation that no unacceptable risks remain.
Reason: In the interests of human health and protection of the natural
environment.

Page 118

9) No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. The statement should include details of access
arrangements and timings and management of arrivals and departures of
vehicles. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the
construction period.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and public amenity
10) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until
details of the three pedestrian / cycle access points onto Old Rydon Close,
including a programme for implementation, has been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and Local Highway Authority, and the
access points shall be provided in accordance with the submitted details and
programme and maintained thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to reduce
reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraph 110 of the NPPF.
11) Prior to commencement of construction of any dwelling hereby approved
details of the proposed MUGA, LEAP and LAP play areas (including access
routes, fencing, lighting, equipment, etc) that are being provided on site shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the should be approved by
the Local Authority prior to commencement of any works on site. The approved
details shall subsequently be implemented on site.
Reason: In the interest of the amenity of the area.
12) Prior to commencement of construction a Waste Audit Statement, that
includes the below points, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Authority.
The amount of construction waste in tonnes is also provided;
The type of material the waste will arise from during construction;
The method for auditing the waste produce including a monitoring scheme
and corrective measures if failure to meet targets occurs;
The predicted annual amount of waste (in tonnes) that will be generated
once the development is occupied;
Identify the main types of waste generated when development is occupied
(If possible);
Identify measures taken to avoid waste occurring; and
Provide detail of the waste disposal method including the name and
location of the waste disposal site.
Devon County Council has published a Waste Management and Infrastructure
SPD that provides guidance on the production of Waste Audit Statements. This

Page 119

includes a template set out in Appendix B, a construction, demolition and
excavation waste checklist (page 14) and an operational waste checklist (page
17). Following the guidance provided in the SPD will enable the applicant to
produce a comprehensive waste audit statement that is in accordance with Policy
W4: Waste Prevention of the Devon Waste Plan. This can be found online at:
https://www.devon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policies/minerals-and-wastepolicy/supplementary-planning-document
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development and in accordance with
Policy W4: Waste Prevention of the Devon Waste Plan.
13) Prior to the construction of the foundations of any dwelling hereby permitted,
the Design SAP calculation(s) of the dwelling(s) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall demonstrate that
the dwelling(s) will achieve a 19% reduction in CO2 emissions in relation to the
level required to meet Part L of the 2013 Building Regulations if the dwelling is to
be constructed to the 2013 Building Regulations, or to achieve a 10% reduction
in CO2 emissions above the levels set out in Part L of the 2022 Building
Regulations if the dwelling is to be constructed to the 2022 Building Regulations.
No individual dwelling shall be occupied until the As-Built SAP calculation of the
dwelling has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority to confirm that the required reduction in CO2 emissions in relation to
the relevant Building Regulations has been achieved.
Reason: To ensure the dwelling(s) will achieve the energy performance standard
required by Policies CP14 and CP15 of the Core Strategy.

14) Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted a Landscape
and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The LEMP shall include the following
details:
a) a description and evaluation of features to be managed;
b) ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence
management;
c) aims and objectives of management;
d) appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives;
e) prescriptions for management actions;
f) a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled
forward over a five-year period);
g) identification of the body or organization responsible for implementation of
the LEMP;
h) ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; and

Page 120

i) the legal and funding mechanisms by which the long-term implementation
of the LEMP will be secured with the management bodies responsible for
its delivery.
The LEMP shall also set out how contingencies and/or remedial action will be
identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully
functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme. The
development shall then be implemented and thereafter managed in accordance
with the approved LEMP.
15) A detailed scheme for landscaping, including the planting of trees and or
shrubs, the use of surface materials and boundary screen walls and fences shall
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and no dwelling or building shall be
occupied until the Local Planning Authority have approved a scheme; such
scheme shall specify materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers and
planting densities, and any earthworks required together with the timing of the
implementation of the scheme. The landscaping shall thereafter be implemented
in accordance with the approved scheme in accordance with the agreed
programme.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
these respects and in the interests of amenity.
16) No individual dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until secure cycle
parking facilities for that dwelling have been provided in accordance with details
that shall previously have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the cycle parking facilities shall be retained
for that purpose at all times.
Reason: To ensure that cycle parking is provided, in accordance with Exeter
Local Plan Policy T3 and paragraph 110 of the NPPF.
17) Prior to the occupation of any residential unit hereby permitted with allocated
parking space(s) (whether on plot, on street or in off road communal parking) one
Electric Vehicle ready (active) domestic charging point shall have been provided
per dwelling, which shall thereafter be provided and permanently retained. The
unallocated parking spaces shall be provided with a Electric Vehicle ready
(active) domestic charging points at a ratio of 1 charging point per 10 spaces,
which shall thereafter be provided and permanently retained.
Reason: To ensure construction of a satisfactory development and to promote
sustainable development in accordance with paragraph 112 of the NPPF
18) Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, each residential
car parking space shall incorporate an Electric Vehicle ready (active) domestic
charging point which shall thereafter be provided and permanently retained.

Page 121

Reason: To ensure construction of a satisfactory development and to promote
sustainable development in accordance with paragraph 112 of the NPPF
19) Prior to occupation of the development, details shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority of cycle parking provision for the development.
Development shall not be occupied until such details have been agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority and Local Highway Authority, and prior to
occupation the cycle parking shall be provided in accordance with the submitted
details.
Reason: To ensure that the development promotes all travel modes to reduce
reliance on the private car, in accordance with paragraph 110 of the NPPF.
20) No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until two bus
stops with suitable crossing facilities have been provided and approved in writing
by, the Local Planning Authority and Local Highway Authority.
Reason: To provide a safe and suitable access for vehicles, pedestrian and
cyclists, in accordance with Paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF.
21) No part of the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until details
and specifications of the pedestrian link to the southern boundary have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA and Highway Authority. Prior to
occupation of the 140th dwelling, the works shall be completed in accordance
with the approved details and specifications and be retained thereafter.
Reason: In the interest of accessibility.
22) No lighting shall be installed for the Multi Use Games Area until details of that
lighting and a lighting assessment has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Lighting shall thereafter only be installed in
accordance with the approved details and the lighting shall be maintained in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of local residential occupiers and the
environment.
23) Any contamination not previously identified which is found whilst
implementing the development hereby permitted must be immediately reported in
writing to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site
affected shall be suspended and a risk assessment carried out and submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where unacceptable
risks are found remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These approved schemes

Page 122

shall then be carried out before the development, or the relevant part of it, is
resumed or continued.
Reason: In the interests of protecting human health and the environment.
24) Rear access paths must be gated, the gates to those paths and those giving
access to rear gardens must be fitted with a lock operable from both sides.
Reason: To prevent access to the rear of dwellings which leaves them vulnerable
to crime, particularly burglary offences.
25) In the event of failure of any trees or shrubs, planted in accordance with any
scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority, to become established and to
prosper for a period of five years from the date of the completion of
implementation of that scheme, such trees or shrubs shall be replaced with such
live specimens of such species of such size and in such number as may be
approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in
these respects and in the interests of amenity.
b) REFUSE PERMISSION FOR THE REASONS SET OUT BELOW IF THE
LEGAL AGREEMENT UNDER SECTION 106 OF THE TOWN AND
COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED) IS NOT COMPLETED BY
6 MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF COMMITTEE OR SUCH EXTENDED
TIME AS AGREED IN WRITING BY THE SERVICE LEAD (CITY
DEVELOPMENT)

Page 123

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 125

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Planning Committee Report 22/0313/FUL and
22/0384/LBC
1.0

Application information
Number:
Applicant Name:
Proposal:

Site Address:
Registration Date:
Link to Documentation:
Case Officer:
Ward Member(s):

22/0313/FUL and 22/0384/LBC
Mr Andy Marshall
Redevelopment of the Honeylands building including
demolition of existing extensions and the construction of
replacement part single, part single/part two storey side and
rear extensions to create a 64 bedroom older persons care
home (Use Class C2) together with associated car parking,
landscaping, drainage and other associated works including
the creation of a replacement vehicular access onto Pinhoe
Road (Amended plans).
Honeylands Hospital For Children, Pinhoe Road, Exeter
7 March 2022
https://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyV
al=R8DTVJHBM9600
Howard Smith
Cllr Allcock, Cllr Williams, Cllr Morse.

Reason application is going to committee: Major application with objections.
2.0

Summary of recommendation:
APPROVE subject to conditions.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation:
The site previously is developed and is in sustainable location with access to a range
of services and transport links. The harm to the Listed Building of the proposals is
considered to be outweighed by the positive benefits of the scheme, and the loss of
the Common Yew tree considered justified. The proposal, subject to the imposition of
conditions including replacement landscaping, is considered to accord with the
Development Plan as a whole. The Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year
housing land supply, though the shortfall is modest, the ‘tilted balance’ in favour of
sustainable development set out in the NPPF is therefore engaged when considering
the application for a residential institution.

4.0

Table of key planning issues

Page 127

Issue
Principle of development

Conclusion
The site is previously developed and
located within the urban area. It is
accessible by a range of modes of
transport and well located in relation to
local services. The former use having
ceased and relocated there is no
objection in principle to the
redevelopment of the site for a care
home which is considered to accord
with policies AP1 and AP2 of the
Exeter Local Plan 1st Review and the
Objectives of the Exeter Core Strategy.
The National Planning Policy
Framework recognises that the need to
provide housing for older people is
critical, and that older people have a
wide range of housing needs. Core
Strategy Policy CP5 seeks to ensure
that the supply of housing meets the
needs of all members of the community
and therefore should include housing
catering to the specific needs of older
people.

Impact on Heritage Assets

Consequently the provision of care
home accommodation on the site is
considered acceptable in principle.
The existing building is increasingly
falling into disrepair since the former
use ceased. The setting of the original
building has been lost to development.
The proposals retain the central part of
the building which is of greatest
heritage value. The extensions to be
removed have a negative impact on the
building and there is no objection to the
proposed demolitions.
There is a WWII era modular bomb
shelter in the grounds which is it
proposed to record and, if possible,
relocate off site.

Page 128

Issue

Conclusion
The net impact on Heritage Assets is
considered positive.
There are a number of trees on the site
which make an amenity contribution to
the site but also to the wider
landscape. Three trees have been
considered worthy of preservation. Two
of which are retained in the proposed
layout. The new access proposed
necessitate the removal of the
Common Yew on Pinhoe Road
frontage. Given the necessity or
removal for highway safety reasons it is
considered acceptable provided
replacement planting is secured.
The proposals are not considered to
result in unacceptable impact on the
amenity on neighbouring dwellings, the
Children’s Centre or the school in the
operation phase of the care home
through overlooking, overbearing or
loss of light.

Impact on landscape assets

Impact on amenity

Conditions to secure control of
construction activities are proposed.
It is proposed that the exiting access
through Lammacraft Drive is stopped
up. The Highway Authority have
advised that the proposed new access
on to Pinhoe Road is considered
acceptable in highways terms.

Access and Parking

Cycle parking and EV Charging points
are provided within the parking areas.

Scale, design, impact on character and
appearance

The access and parking arrangements
are considered to accord with the aims
of local with the Council’s standards in
Policy T10 and the Sustainable
Transport SPD.
The proposals have been amended
since first submitted to improve the

Page 129

Issue

Economic benefits

Healthcare Impact

Conclusion
quality of architectural treatment of the
façade on to Pinhoe Road. The wall
and hedge fronting Pinhoe Road are
retained, except for the new entrance
being formed. The area is residential in
nature and the design, scale height and
materials of the buildings is considered
acceptable in this setting.
Construction and operation phase
benefits will accrue form the
development.
The NHS has sought contributions
towards GP surgeries provision
however the Care Home operators have
their own private GP contract so would
have no impact upon local capacity. Acute
Service contributions are not considered
robustly justified.

Impact on Ecology

Due to the nature of the residential
accommodation proposed, it has been
concluded that the proposed
development will not have likely
significant effects on the European
sites.
Relevant site surveys and
investigations have been undertaken,
including protected species surveys,
and it is considered that the impacts of
the proposed developments are
acceptable given that the
recommended mitigation measures can
be secured by condition and that there
is capacity to deliver these measures
on site.

5.0

Description of site
The application site on the south side of Pinhoe Road is 0.75 hectares of landscaped
gardens with the predominantly two storey Grade II listed building on the eastern
boundary. This formerly housed the Honeylands Children’s Centre and has operated
as a children’s hospital or medical facility since the 1920s. The former Honeylands
Children’s Centre operated until 2012 when it became surplus to NHS requirements
with Honeylands Specialist Children’s Assessment Centre constructed on adjacent
land.

Page 130

Honeylands House was constructed as a neo-classical villa between 1801 and 1838
in the Greek-Revival style. The building was used as a TB Sanatorium and later in it
was a Children’s Centre. Due to its special architectural and historic interest, the
house is listed at grade II due to its national significance. It has been altered and
extended, both in residential and more extensively in institutional use, and the
majority of the original extensive landscaped grounds of the house have been lost to
development and to highway alterations in Pinhoe Road. Much of the internal layout
of the original dwelling and many details have however survived.
The site is on the brow of a hill on Pinhoe Road in an area of predominantly
residential development. The site contains a number of mature trees which are
prominent in wider views. Immediately adjacent the site to the east is the current
Honeylands Children’s Assessment centre in a modern building and Vranch House
School. Vranch House School provides education, treatment and welfare for children
with physical difficulties.
The site lies close to Whipton Village centre and to Polsloe Bridge which provide a
range of local services.
6.0

Description of development
Redevelopment of the Honeylands building including demolition of existing
extensions and the construction of replacement part single, part single/part two
storey side and rear extensions to create a 64 bedroom older persons care home
(Use Class C2) together with associated car parking, landscaping, drainage and
other associated works including the creation of a replacement vehicular access onto
Pinhoe Road.
The proposed accommodation is arranged as two-storey wings both sides of and
connecting behind and to the original dwelling which is retained. Later additions and
extensions are substantially removed including the three storey element. The internal
layout of the original dwelling is largely retained with a notable a new access through
the side wall to connect to the new reception area.
A new vehicular and pedestrian access is formed on to Pinhoe Road, and parking
and turning provision is accommodated on a loop road within the site.

7.0

Supporting information provided by applicant
Drawings and Plans
Planning Statement
Design and Access Statement
Heritage Assessment
Geophysical Survey

Page 131

Ecology Report
Bat Emergence Study
Transport Statement
Tree Survey and Protection Plan
Noise Assessment
Flood Risk and Drainage Assessment
Sustainability Statement
8.0

9.0

Relevant planning history
Reference

Proposal

Decision

Decision Date

18/1525/FUL

Part demolition,
refurbishment and up to 3storey extension of
Honeylands House and
associated parking and
landscaping to form 45 units
of retirement living
accommodation and siting of
an electricity substation.

Withdrawn

10.02.2022

18/1526/LBC

Part demolition and part
Withdrawn
refurbishment of Honeylands
House and redevelopment of
the site to form 45 units of
retirement living
accommodation with
associated parking,
landscaping and siting of an
electricity substation.

10.02.2022

List of constraints
Listed Building – Grade II Honeylands House
Unlisted Heritage Assets – Bomb Shelter
Trees of High Amenity Value
Sensitivity of neighbouring occupiers to disturbance

10.0

Consultations
All consultee responses can be viewed in full on the Council’s website.

Page 132

Historic England: The proposed loss of the tower offers a positive opportunity to
better reveal the significance of the grade II listed Honeylands. However, the erosion
of the rear service ranges and the 2 substantial extensions introduce a certain level
of conflict. Opportunities should be sought to avoid and minimise any potential
conflict, input from the Design Review Panel may assist in this aspect of the scheme
(NPPF, Para 195). The council will need to consider any harm within the wider
planning balance ensuring that great weight is given to the asset’s conservation
(NPPF, 199 and 202).
Natural England: This development falls within the ‘zone of influence’ for the Exe
Estuary SPA, as set out in the Local Plan and the South East Devon European Sites
Mitigation Strategy (SEDEMS). It is anticipated that new housing development in this
area is ‘likely to have a significant effect’, when considered either alone or in
combination, upon the interest features of the SAC/SPA due to the risk of increased
recreational pressure caused by that development. In line with the SEDEMS and the
Joint Approach of Exeter City Council, Teignbridge District Council and East Devon
District Council, we advise that mitigation will be required to prevent such harmful
effects from occurring as a result of this development. Permission should not be
granted until such time as the implementation of these measures has been secured.
Natural England’s advice is that this proposed development, and the application of
these measures to avoid or reduce the likely harmful effects from it, may need to be
formally checked and confirmed by your Authority, as the competent authority, via an
appropriate assessment in view of the European Site’s conservation objectives and in
accordance with the Conservation of Habitats & Species Regulations 2017 (as
amended).
Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue service have no objections to the proposals
but would like to highlight a few points for the developers: The proposed scheme
should comply with Approved Document B or the functional requirements, at the early
stages it is ensuring access for firefighting and emergency vehicles is complied with
and provision of hydrants as appropriate, recommended for a building of this nature
sprinklered throughout. We are happy to pre-consult on the design.
Devon and Cornwall Police: Given that the area has suffered from anti-social
behaviour and the nature of the site housing vulnerable members of society, it is vital
that designing out crime principles are considered and implemented in the design of
the scheme. Following the receipt of amended plans: I note and appreciate the
amendments made that have introduced additional boundaries that will help to clearly
define public and private / semi-private space as well as restricting and controlling
movement throughout the site. Further recommendations provided.
South West Water is able to provide clean potable water services from the existing
public water main and foul sewerage services from the existing public foul or
combined sewer in the vicinity of the site. The proposed surface water disposal for
its development, please note that method proposed to discharge via SuDS (rain

Page 133

garden, permeable paving) and attenuation tank into a public surface water
sewerage network at a maximum discharge rate of 13.5 litre/sec as per Drawing No
1001_PDL-101 Rev D in Appendix C of the Flood Risk & Drainage Technical Note
(dated 21.02.2022) is acceptable and meets with the Run-off Destination Hierarchy.
NHS Devon Clinical Commissioning Group response has been informed by the
Devon Health Contributions Approach: GP Provision which was jointly prepared by
NHS England and Devon County Council. The CCG’s concern is that the combined
surgeries of Whipton Surgery and Southernhay House Surgery – The Branch
Surgery are already over capacity within their existing footprint therefore it follows
that to have a sustainable development in human health terms the whole local
healthcare provision will require review. The combined surgeries already have 7,542
patients registered between them and this new development will increase the local
population by a further 64 persons. Taking this into account and drawing upon the
document “Devon Health Contributions Approach: GP Provision document” which
was agreed by NHS England and Devon County Council, the following calculation
has been made: Based on a residential development of 64 dwellings, the increased
population from this development is 64, additional [GP Surgery] space required is
5.12m2 and the total contribution required is £16,384.
Royal Devon University Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust is currently operating at
full capacity in the provision of acute and planned healthcare. It is further
demonstrated that this development will create potentially long term impact on the
Trust ability provide services as required. The Trust’s funding is based on previous
year’s activity it has delivered subject to satisfying the quality requirements set down
in the NHS Standard Contract. Quality requirements are linked to the on-time delivery
of care and intervention and are evidenced by best clinical practice to ensure optimal
outcomes for patients. The contract is agreed annually based on previous year’s
activity plus any pre-agreed additional activity for clinical services. The Trust is
unable to take into consideration the Council’s housing land supply, potential new
developments and housing trajectories when the contracts are negotiated. Further,
the following year’s contract does not pay previous year’s deficit retrospectively. This
development creates an impact on the Trust’s ability provide a services required due
to the funding gap it creates. The contribution sought is to mitigate this direct impact.
S 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) allows the Local
Planning Authority to request a developer to contribute towards the impact it creates
on the services. The contribution in the amount £34,547.00 sought will go towards
the gap in the funding created by each potential patient from this development.
Without the requested contribution, the access to adequate health services is
rendered more vulnerable thereby undermining the sustainability credentials of the
proposed development due to conflict with NPPF and Local Development Plan
policies.
Devon County Council Children’s Services has reviewed the above planning
application. We note the views that Vranch House School has already expressed
with regard to proximity of the development, loss of privacy and overlooking

Page 134

concerns. The Design & Access statement takes into account the close proximity of
Vranch House School and notes that further to discussions with the school there has
been a subsequent redesign to reduce the potential of overlooking. The Education
Authority fully supports these measures and expect them to be integral to the design
of the new building. We would also encourage and welcome any further mitigation
measures to minimise the impact of the proposed development on the existing school
site, the school community and its operation.
DCC Local Highway Authority
Traffic Impact: The proposal would likely generate 6 traffic movements in the AM
peak and 7 in the PM peak. It is the opinion of the Highway Authority that this would
not place the local highway network over capacity and it would therefore be
unreasonable to recommend refusal under section 9 paragraph 111 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).
Highway Safety: There has been one recorded personal injury collision within close
proximity to the proposed access, however it would seem that this was not due to
highway safety and down to driver error.
Vehicular Access: The proposals include vehicular access via a new access on
Pinhoe Road which shows visibility splays of 2.4m x 43m. It is noted that there is a
bus stop which passes close to the proposed visibility splay to the east. The Highway
Authority would raise no objection to the access as shown. This does mean that there
is a tree in the western visibility splay but this will be a matter for the planning officer
to weigh up between highway safety and the arboriculture report. The Highway
Authority have reviewed the access arrangement and are satisfied with the
proposals. The access and all off-site works (including the closure of the existing
access and reinstatement of footway) must be delivered via a S278 agreement with
the Highway Authority.
Pedestrian & Cycle Access: Pedestrian and cycle access will be adjacent to the
vehicular access. This appears to have sufficient width to access the site and help to
promote non-vehicular movements.
Refuse / Servicing / Emergency Access: Looking at the proposed access, it is the
opinion of the Highway Authority that there is sufficient space for a fire appliance can
enter and exit the site in a forward gear.
Car Parking: The proposal includes the provision of 27 spaces which is lower than
other care homes in Exeter. Ultimately parking is a matter for the LPA to consider.
The Transport Statement notes that there are to be 2 electric vehicle charging points.
It might be beneficial to provide more but the electric charging points must be
available prior to first occupation.

Page 135

Cycle Parking: There will be a total of 16 secure and sheltered cycle parking spaces
will be provided onsite for residents, staff and visitors, including 5 spaces for electric
cycle charging. This does appear to be in line with local policy.
CTMP: If the application is permitted, a construction traffic management plan will be
requested by way of planning conditions. This is to mitigate the impact of the
construction and associated traffic to the operation of the local highway/footway/cycle
networks.
The Highway Authority have reviewed the development proposals and does not wish
to raise an objection subject to the inclusion of planning conditions, informatives, and
agreements
DCC Flood Risk and Drainage: No in-principle objection to the above planning
application at this stage, the applicant must submit additional information in order to
demonstrate that all aspects of the proposed surface water drainage management
system have been considered.
DCC Waste Planning: No comments received. Standard Waste Audit Condition
proposed.
Living Options Devon is a visitor’s wheelchair accessible toilet included and
storage/charging facilities for mobility scooters included?
ECC Heritage Officer: Honeylands is Grade II Listed due to its significant
architectural and historical merit, however numerous 20th Century additions and the
institutional use of the building have combined to diminish the significance of the
asset. The Villa is now in very poor condition due to vandalism and neglect, and
should be considered to be at risk of total loss.
The proposed development would significantly alter the setting of the building, with
the demolition of most of the 20th century additions and addition of two new ranges
of considerable size and associated landscaping. The proposal would also require
the removal of the 1941 Air Raid Shelter which remains substantially intact.
The applicant has responded positively to feedback and has altered the proposal in
response, the investment in the repair and sensitive reinstatement of the Listed
building is of considerable benefit to the asset and in my opinion the demolition and
rationalisation of the additional structures is acceptable in that it represents a
cohesive scheme which maintains the primacy of the Villa. The additional buildings
will inevitably reduce the parkland setting, however the parkland setting has been
diminished in the 20th century to a garden setting which will for the most part be
retained.

Page 136

The loss of the air raid shelter is regrettable, however it is constructed in sectional
concrete and is of a type issued by central government and is therefore not specific
to this location. With that in mind the applicant have indicated that they are willing to
meet the cost of donating the structure to a museum. The Cobbaton Combat
Collection in North Devon have expressed an interest in acquiring the shelter where it
would be used to facilitate their schools offer. If upon later examination the shelter is
in too poor condition to dismantle and rebuild, the principle of preservation by record
could be observed and secured by condition.
For these reasons I advise that the harm to the setting of the Listed Building is
outweighed by the positive benefits of the scheme and the proposal meets the
criteria for approval under national and local guidance.
ECC Tree Officer: The loss of trees (T2-T11) and hedges (H1 (part) H2 and H3) is of
course regrettable, but understandable given their limited stature, indifferent quality
and the need to make way for the new development. Removed trees will need to be
mitigated for by a significantly robust planting scheme that is to be approved by the
council’s Landscape officer. The Arboricultural survey identified four key trees
(BS5837 Cat A). The key trees consist of a mature Common yew - T1, a semi-mature
London plane - T7 a mature Sweet chestnut - T10, and a mature Deodar cedar (off
site) - 0/T2. These trees are considered to make a significant contribution to the
visual amenity value and character of the area. The retained trees (T7, T10 and 0/T2)
are expected to provide continued benefits and would enhance any new
development. Due to the importance of these key trees, it is recommended that they
are protected by the creation of a new Tree Preservation Order, so that they are
afforded long term protection. The proposal includes the removal of T1 – Common
yew (Cat A), because of its position and the need to create highways access and
associated visibility splay. The loss of this tree would undoubtedly result in a negative
impact on the visual amenity of the local area. If the removal of the tree is necessary
to achieve safe access, provided the removal of this tree is addressed by a significant
and robust tree planting scheme, including the use of large established planting stock
(extra heavy standards), it is considered that the loss can be adequately
compensated for in the longer term.
ECC Environmental Health: Approval with conditions: CEMP, noise insulation,
Contaminated Land, and plant noise.
ECC Ecology Advice: Further to the additional clarifications and Emergence Survey
no objection are raised. Proposals are acceptable subject to conditions.
Whilst the use of the government’s Biodiversity Metric (v3.1) is not currently
mandated, the NPPF calls for measurable net gain. It is noted that Appendix 3 states
that a min. of: ten integrated bird boxes, ten integrated bee bricks, six integrated bat
roost features, and three habitat piles will be created within the grounds. These
measures are welcome. Whilst it is not entirely clear what the level of net gain of bird
nesting and bat roosting provisions is over and above the mitigation required for the

Page 137

loss of habitat and roosts, it is recommended that these measures are secured via
planning condition.
Compensatory bat roosts will be required to replace those destroyed. It is
acknowledged that Natural England will accept bat boxes as mitigation for Brown
long-eared roost (low numbers) loss. However, this does not represent like-for-like
mitigation. It would be desirable to see a built-in void roost for this species if at all
possible. In the absence of such, a planning condition should be used to secure the
proposed integrated roost features.
A single sweet chestnut tree was recorded as having potential roost features for bats.
A further survey of the tree was undertaken. The results confirm that the Potential
Roost Features noted in the previous assessment were not suitable for bats to use as
roosts. The updated report indicates the tree is to be retained. No mitigation is
therefore required either to account for tree loss or for impacts from lighting.
The site is within a great crested newt (GCN) consultation zone. The ecological
assessment has scoped out the presence of GCN onsite. Clarification regarding the
habitat between the pond within the neighbouring school and the site was provided.
Nothing further is required.
No evidence of badgers was found during the surveys. Precautionary mitigation is
included in the report. It is recommended that this is expanded to include a pre-works
check no more than one month prior to works commencing.
Nesting birds Habitat present considered to support a range of typical urban fringe
species. Impacts from the removal/cutting of vegetation, construction activities, loss
of habitat and increased disturbance are likely. Precautionary mitigation measures
are included. The loss of nesting opportunities will be mitigated by integrated bird
bricks, to include swift bricks. This should equate to/exceed a rate of one bird brick
per dwelling in line with the ECC Residential Design Guide SPD (2010).
Common reptiles and amphibians assumed present. Therefore, potential impacts
include direct killing and injury during pre-works and construction period.
Precautionary mitigation measures are included.
Hedgehog suitable habitat present. Precautionary measures can be included to
protect hedgehogs during pre-work and construction phases. Post development, any
fencing within the grounds/development should be wildlife permeable (min. 13cm x
13cm gaps in gravel boards, walls etc).d subject to conditions requiring Construction
Environmental Management Plan, Landscape and Ecological Management Plan and
Lighting Strategy.
Exeter Cycling Campaign object to this application. Our objection is based on a
number of concerns: Cycle storage / parking and Lack of ambition to meet the
councils’ policies for enabling half of journeys to be done by foot or bike.

Page 138

RSPB supports the LPA Ecology Comments regarding the Biodiversity of the site.
We strongly recommend that the advice contained in BS42021:20221 Integral Nest
Boxes Selection and Installation for New Developments is taken into consideration as
well, it's designed to create a relatively simple pathway for Planners, Ecologists and
the Construction Industry to achieve "Best Practise”. We have found that most
species that nest in cavities in older buildings and mature trees will use swift boxes
and recommend their use in all but exceptional circumstances, the "Standard" takes
a similar view. We recommend that a Biodiversity Plan including the above is made a
condition of the consent if granted.
11.0

Representations
The application has been advertised by neighbour letter, site notice and press notice.
15 objections received raising the following concerns:
Impact on Vranch House school through overlooking, noise, disturbance
Access on to Pinhoe Road not safe in this location
Inadequate car parking proposed
Will lead to parking in surrounding area
Location of kitchen will cause nuisance
Impact on trees
Future use of site
Too close to school boundary
Loss of value to neighbouring houses
Site should be safeguarded for children’s services
Impact on Listed Building
Electricity Substation to close to dwellings
1 representation in support for the following reasons
Urban area where development is to be expected.

12.0

Relevant policies
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021)
2.
Achieving sustainable design
4.
Decision-making
5.
Delivering a sufficient supply of homes
8.
Promoting healthy and safe communities
9.
Promoting Sustainable Transport
11.
Making effective use of land
12.
Achieving well-designed places

Page 139

15.
16.

Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

National Design Guide – Planning Practice Guidance
Core Strategy (Adopted 21 February 2012)
Core Strategy Objectives
CP1 – Spatial Strategy
CP3 – Housing
CP4 – Density
CP5 – Mixed Housing
CP7 – Affordable Housing
CP9 – Transport
CP10 – Meeting Community Needs
CP11 – Pollution
CP12 – Flood Risk
CP14 – Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
CP15 – Sustainable Construction
CP16 – Green Infrastructure, Landscape and Biodiversity
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
AP1 – Design and Location of Development
AP2 – Sequential Approach
H1 – Search Sequence
H2 – Location Priorities
H3 – Housing Sites
H5 – Diversity of Housing
H7 – Housing for Disabled People
T1 – Hierarchy of Modes
T2 – Accessibility Criteria
T3 – Encouraging Use of Sustainable Modes
T5 – Cycle Route Network
T10 – Car Parking Standards
C2 – Listed Buildings
C5 – Archaeology
LS4 – Nature Conservation
EN2 – Contaminated Land
EN3 – Air and Water Quality
EN4 – Flood Risk
EN5 – Noise
EN6 – Renewable Energy

Page 140

DG1 – Objectives of Urban Design
DG2 – Energy Conservation
DG4 – Residential Layout and Amenity
DG5 – Provision of Open Space and Children’s Play Areas
DG6 – Vehicle Circulation and Car Parking in Residential Development
DG7 – Crime Prevention and Safety
Devon Waste Plan 2011 – 2031 (Adopted 11 December 2014) (Devon County
Council)
W4 – Waste Prevention
W21 – Making Provision for Waste Management
Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Documents
Affordable Housing SPD (April 2014)
Sustainable Transport SPD (March 2013)
Planning Obligations SPD (April 2014)
Trees and Development SPD (Sept 2009)
Archaeology and Development SPD (2004)
Devon County Council Supplementary Planning Document
Waste Management and Infrastructure SPD (July 2015)
13.0

Human rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property
The consideration of the application in accordance with Council procedures will
ensure that views of all those interested are considered. All comments from
interested parties have been considered and reported within this report in summary
with full text available via the Council’s website.
It is acknowledged that there are certain properties where they may be some impact.
However, any interference with the right to a private and family life and home arising
from the scheme as a result of impact on residential amenity and the conditions of
the adjacent school is considered necessary in a democratic society in the interests
of the economic well-being of the city and wider area and is proportionate given the
overall benefits of the scheme in terms of provision of care home bed spaces.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance with
the Town and Country planning Act 1990 regime for controlling the development of

Page 141

land. This recommendation is based on the consideration of the proposal against
adopted Development Plan policies, the application of which does not prejudice the
Human Rights of the applicant or any third party.
The provisions of the Childrens Act 2004 and the duty on the Council to consider the
safeguarding of Children has been taken into account in making the
recommendations below.
14.0

Public sector equalities duty
As set out in the Equality Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their functions
must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;
b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it
involves having due regard in particular to the need to:
a) removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of other persons who do not
share it
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate
in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.
Whilst there is no absolute requirement to fully remove any disadvantage the Duty is
to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage and in considering the
merits of this planning application the planning authority has had due regard to the
matters set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.

15.0

Financial issues
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning application
is set out in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. This requires that local
planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for the purposes of a nondelegated determination of an application for planning permission; and

Page 142

b) contains a recommendation as to how the authority should determine the
application in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.
The information or financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development which officers consider are likely to be
obtained by the authority if the development is carried out including their value if
known and should include whether the officer considers these to be material or not
material.
Material considerations
Provision of 64 beds residential capacity with specialist care for the elderly.
Additional 50 FTE jobs created
Non material considerations
The adopted CIL charging schedule applies a levy on proposals that create additional
new floor space over and above what is already on a site. This proposal is not CIL
liable.
The proposal will generate Business rates in occupation.
16.0

Planning assessment
Principle of development
The site is previously developed land located within the urban area. It is accessible
by a range of modes of transport and well located in relation to local services. The
former use having ceased and relocated there is no objection in principle to the
redevelopment of the site for a care home which is considered to accord with policies
AP1 and AP2 of the Exeter Local Plan 1st Review and the Objectives of the Exeter
Core Strategy.
The National Planning Policy Framework recognises that the need to provide housing
for older people is critical, and that older people have a wide range of housing needs,
including with care provision. Core Strategy Policy CP5 seeks to ensure that the
supply of housing meets the needs of all members of the community and therefore
should include housing catering to the specific needs of older people. It is accepted
that there is a need for housing, which includes provision within residential
institutions, which addresses the various challenges arising from an ageing
population. Consequently the principle of provision of care home accommodation on
the site is considered acceptable in principle.
Impact on Heritage Assets and Design

Page 143

The existing Grade II Listed Building has fallen into disrepair since the former use
ceased. It is currently at risk of total loss. The proposals retain the internal layout and
remaining original features of the main range of the building and avoid any significant
loss of fabric. The repair and restoration to use of the building is of considerable
benefit to the asset.
The setting of the originally constructed dwelling has been lost to development
through highways alterations and residential development in the former grounds.
These impacts have occurred incrementally over a considerable span of time.
The proposals retain the central part of the building which is of greatest heritage
value. The extensions to be removed have significance, however the demolition and
rationalisation of those additional structures is acceptable in that it enables a
cohesive scheme which maintains the primacy of the Villa and therefore there is no
objection to the proposed demolitions.
The proposed new construction is designed as part single and part two storey and
uses the fall in land levels from north to south across the site to maintain the primacy
of the retained main range of the Listed Building.
There is a WWII era modular bomb shelter in the grounds which is it proposed to
record and, if possible, relocate off site. A scheme of preservation with preference to
re-siting the bomb shelter is proposed to be attached to any consent.
The net impact on Heritage Assets is considered positive, harm to the setting of the
Listed Building being outweighed by the positive benefits of the scheme and the
proposal meets the criteria for approval under national and local guidance including
the aims of Policy C2 of the Exeter Local Plan and Section 16 of the NPPF.
The design and appearance of the proposed development is lead by the setting of
the new built development within the curtilage of and linking to the retained main
range of the building. The proposed new build elements are in brick and render with
a parapet edge roof which is considered appropriate to the setting and to the
character of the wider area. A glazed link to the main building is formed at single
storey on the northern side which helps maintain the legibility of the building overall.
The development plan guides that sites should be developed at the highest density
that can be achieved, whilst meeting criteria set out in other polices. The developable
areas of the site are considerably constrained, and the benefit of a viable use for the
building have been taken into consideration in accepting proposals for development
close to the Northern boundary with Pinhoe Road. The proposals have been
amended since first submitted to improve the quality of the façade on to Pinhoe Road
and the building is set behind the exiting wall and hedge with private outdoor spaces
immediately in front of the building. The wall and hedge fronting Pinhoe Road are

Page 144

retained, except for the new site entrance being formed. The area is residential in
nature and the design, scale height and materials of the buildings is considered
acceptable in this setting.
A condition to secure the best BREEAM score achievable, whilst taking into account
the need to protect the features of special character and interest of the Listed
Building, is proposed to be attached to any consent. It is anticipated that the score
will be below that necessary to achieve BREEAM excellent standard set by policy
CP15 of the Exeter Core Strategy.
Impact on landscape assets
There are a number of identified key trees on the site which make an amenity
contribution to the site but also to the wider landscape including in Pinhoe Road and
in views from Hamlin Lane Playing Fields. Three trees within the site have been
identified as being considered worthy of preservation. The proposals have been
amended to better protect two key trees within (London Plane and Sweet Chestnut)
the site but also a key tree (Deodar Cedar) in the grounds of Vranch House School
the root protection area and canopy of which extend into the site.
One tree (Common Yew) on the PInhoe Road frontage is proposed to be removed to
achieve safe vehicular access. The necessity or removal for highway safety reasons
confirmed by the Highway Authority and the views of the Tree Officer that loss can be
adequately compensated for in the longer term provided the removal of this tree is
addressed by a significant and robust tree planting scheme secured by condition.
The landscape scheme should also compensate for the other trees proposed to be
removed which are not suitable for preservation order. A Tree Preservation Order is
proposed for the retained Key Trees. On this basis the loss of the Common Yew tree
is considered acceptable.
Impact on amenity of neighbouring properties
The dwellings on Lammacraft Drive adjoin the site to the west and are separated
from new buildings by distance of 28m at closest point. Areas of car parking are
proposed close to boundary but with hedge planting to soften that relationship and
restrict direct access to the fenced boundary.
A concern has been raised regarding the proposed electricity substation. However
this is located 19m from the nearest dwelling. The operation and safety such
electrical infrastructure is governed by separate legislation. However the distance of
separation is considered adequate for the required standard to be achieved.
The proposals are not considered to result in unacceptable detriment to the amenity
of adjoining residential occupiers.

Page 145

The south and east boundaries of the site adjoin the Honeylands Children’s
Assessment Centre and Vranch House School which. Vranch House is a day school
which provides education and healthcare for children nominated by the education
authority and who have physical and other special educational needs. It is
acknowledged that these uses have a particular sensitivity to some types of nuisance
impacts and a desire to retain privacy.
The former use of the site had a high degree of synergy with the adjoining school
site, however that use has ceased and the site has been vacant for a number of
years with windows facing the eastern boundary boarded up. The lawful use of site is
as a healthcare use and buildings could be brought into such use without planning
consent. A residential care home is not considered to be an inherently bad neighbour
to a school site.
The Assessment Centre and School site are laid out with a car park in the northern
part of the site boundary, buildings with circulation and play spaces in the central part
of the boundary and gardens paces adjoining the southern part of the boundary. The
design and layout of the proposed development has responded to this by orientating
the layout of the building to face away from the boundary and accommodating the
kitchens with extract at the northern part of the site where they adjoin car parking
areas on the neighbouring land. The height of proposed building is two storey at
height and is in part sunken in to the reducing site levels. Windows facing the eastern
boundary at a raised level have been kept to a minimum through the internal
arrangement of the building. In the southern part of the site the footprint of the
development has been amended since first submitted to move the residential
southern wing to be further from the site boundaries, with windows of habitable
rooms being no closer than12 metres from the site boundary, and it is proposed
through means of enclosure and landscaping to ensure that the open space created
in the south eastern corner of the site is used as visual amenity, with private sitting
out space, rather than a communal garden space.
The proposals are not considered to result in unacceptable impact on the amenity on
neighbouring dwellings, the Children’s Centre or the school in the operational phase
of the care home use and buildings through overlooking, overbearing or loss of light.
Conditions to secure control of construction activities are proposed. The demolition
and construction will be in close proximity to the Children’s Centre and the school
and the applicant will be encouraged to maintain dialogue with the school through
construction phase in the interests of minimising construction impacts on the school
through noise, vibration, dust, overlooking and other potential nuisance.
Access and Parking

Page 146

It is proposed that the exiting access from Pinhoe Road through Honeylands Drive
and Lammacraft Drive is stopped up. The Highway Authority have advised that the
proposed new access on to Pinhoe Road is considered acceptable in highways
terms. They have confirmed that the visibility spays and access arrangement are
appropriate for this location on Pinhoe Road which is a 30mph restriction in this
location. This is provided the Common Yew tree is removed as discussed above.
27 car parking spaces (including 3 disabled spaces), cycle parking for visitors and
staff are accommodated with this site in an acceptable layout with provision made for
deliveries and turning so as that vehicles can leave the site in forward gear.
Cycle parking is provided in enclosed stores for employees and outside the reception
entrance for visitors. EV Charging points are provided within the parking areas for the
apartments. The access and parking arrangements are considered to accord with the
aims of local with the Council’s standards in Policy T10 and the Sustainable
Transport SPD.
Scale, design, impact on character and appearance National Design Guide and
Local Plan Policies DG1, DG2 and DG4, DG6 and DG7 set out our approach to
residential design.
Economic benefits
Construction phase benefits through construction employment and in operation
phase thought 50 FTE posts will accrue form the development.
Healthcare Impacts
The NHS Devon CCG has sought contributions towards GP surgeries provision
based on a development of 64 dwellings and a population increase of 64 persons.
The NHS GP contribution request appears to be based on an Extra Care residential
use of 64 residents rather than Care Home use. However the Care Home operators
have their own private GP contract so would have no impact upon local capacity.
Royal Devon Universities Healthcare Foundation Trust, requesting a contribution of
£34,547.00 from the development towards the cost of providing provision of acute
and planned healthcare for the increased population resulting from the development.
In the absence of such a contribution the Trust objects to the application. It is
however considered that, among other matters, insufficient information has been
provided of how this arises as new demand, what this contribution would be spent on,
and whether it meets the ‘tests’ for planning obligations specified in CIL Regulation
122(2) and NPPF 2021 section 57.

Page 147

Impact on Ecology
The application has been screened to determine whether it is likely to have a
significant effect on the European sites. Due to the nature of the residential
accommodation proposed, it has been concluded that the proposed development will
not have likely significant effects on the European sites in question, either alone or in
combination with other residential developments in Exeter, as it is unlikely to result in
increased visitor pressures on the protected habitats.
The relevant site surveys and investigations have been undertaken to the appropriate
standards, including protected species surveys. It is considered that the impacts of
the proposed developments are acceptable given that the recommended mitigation
measures can be secured by condition, and that there is capacity to deliver these
measures on site.
17.0

Conclusion
The site is previously developed and is in sustainable location with access to a range
of services and transport links. The harm to the Listed Building of the proposals is
considered to be outweighed by the positive benefits of the scheme, and the loss of
the Common Yew tree considered justified. The proposal, subject to the imposition of
conditions including replacement landscaping, is considered to accord with the
Development Plan as a whole. The Council cannot currently demonstrate a five year
housing land supply, though the shortfall is modest, the ‘tilted balance’ in favour of
sustainable development set out in the NPPF is therefore engaged when considering
the application for a residential institution.

18.0

Recommendations
Planning Application 22/0313/FUL:
APPROVE subject to the following conditions (which may be varied):
1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this permission is granted.
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict
accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on 7
March 2022, as modified by details received 29 and 30 June (including the plans
listed below), and by conditions of this consent.

Page 148

7 March 2022
Existing Building - Demolition Plans
PL03 A Site Demolition Plan
Listed Building drawing set SK020-SK039 RevA
29 June 2022
Landscape Plan 05367 LSP Rev B 27.6.22[51]
30 June 2022
9588-PL06B Proposed Site Boundary Plan[33]
9588-PL07C Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan[14]
9588-PL08C Proposed Ground Floor Plan[29]
9588-PL09C Proposed First Floor Plan[63]
9588-PL10B Proposed Roof Plan[16]
9588-PL11D Proposed Elevations 1[16]
9588-PL12C Proposed Elevations 2[76]
9588-PL13C Proposed Elevations 3[96]
9588-PL14B Proposed Sections[10]
9588-PL18 Proposed Boundary Treatment - Fence Detail[38]
9588-PL05L Proposed Site Plan[97]
1001-PHL-101-F[5] Highway Access
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
3) Pre-commencement condition: No materials shall be brought onto the site or any
development commenced, until the developer has erected tree protective fencing
around all trees or shrubs to be retained, in accordance with plan ref Tree Protection
Plan 05367 LSP Rev B 27.6.22[51] received 29 June 2022, or such other plan that
shall previously have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This plan shall be produced in accordance with BS 5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and construction. The developer shall
maintain such fences to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority until all
development the subject of this permission is completed. The level of the land within
the fenced areas shall not be altered without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. No materials shall be stored within the fenced area, nor shall
trenches for service runs or any other excavations take place within the fenced area
except by written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Where such permission
is granted, soil shall be removed manually, without powered equipment.
Reason for pre-commencement condition - To ensure the protection of the trees
during the carrying out of the development. This information is required before
development commences to protect trees during all stages of the construction
process.

Page 149

4) Prior to commencement of construction a Waste Audit Statement, that includes the
below points, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the LO
The amount of construction waste in tonnes is also provided;
The type of material the waste will arise from during construction;
The method for auditing the waste produce including a monitoring scheme and
corrective measures if failure to meet targets occurs;
The predicted annual amount of waste (in tonnes) that will be generated once
the development is occupied;
Identify the main types of waste generated when development is occupied (If
possible);
Identify measures taken to avoid waste occurring; and
Provide detail of the waste disposal method including the name and location of
the waste disposal site.
Devon County Council has published a Waste Management and Infrastructure SPD
that provides guidance on the production of Waste Audit Statements. This includes a
template set out in Appendix B, a construction, demolition and excavation waste
checklist (page 14) and an operational waste checklist (page 17). Following the
guidance provided in the SPD will enable the applicant to produce a comprehensive
waste audit statement that is in accordance with Policy W4: Waste Prevention of the
Devon Waste Plan. This can be found online at:
https://www.devon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policies/minerals-and-wastepolicy/supplementary-planning-document
Reason: In the interests of sustainable development and in accordance with Policy
W4: Waste Prevention of the Devon Waste Plan.
5) No development (including ground works) or vegetation clearance works shall take
place until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Statement shall provide for:
a) The site access point(s) of all vehicles to the site during the construction phase.
b) The layout of the site including; parking of vehicles of site operatives and
visitors, the areas for loading and unloading plant and materials, storage areas
of plant and materials used in constructing the development.
c) The means of enclosure of the site
d) Wheel washing facilities and obligations
e) Provisions to ensure the disposal of surface water so that none drains on to
any County Highway
f) Measures to monitor and control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction
g) No burning on site during construction or site preparation works

Page 150

h) Measures to monitor and minimise noise/vibration nuisance to neighbours from
plant and machinery.
i) Hours for construction working and deliveries, which unless otherwise agreed
shall be from 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 8:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays and
at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays
j) There to be no driven piling without prior consent from the LPA
k) The proposed route of all construction traffic exceeding 7.5 tonnes
l) Details of proposals to promote sustainable travel modes and car sharing
amongst construction staff in order to limit construction staff vehicles parking
off-site
m) Photographic evidence of the condition of adjacent public highway prior to
commencement of any work.
n) A species mitigation strategy and accord with the structure and content detailed
in the BS42020: 2013 Biodiversity: Code of Practice for Planning and
Development.
The approved Statement shall be strictly adhered to throughout the construction
period of the development
6) No development shall take place on site until a full investigation of the site has
taken place to determine the extent of, and risk posed by, any contamination of the
land and the results, together with any remedial works necessary, have been agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building(s) shall not be occupied until
the approved remedial works have been implemented and a remediation statement
submitted to the Local Planning Authority detailing what contamination has been
found and how it has been dealt with together with confirmation that no unacceptable
risks remain.
7) Prior to commencement of construction (excluding demolitions and site clearance),
the developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority for approval a detailed
BREEAM design (interim) stage assessment report, to be written by a licensed
BREEAM assessor, which shall set out the BREEAM score expected to be achieved
by the building and the equivalent BREEAM standard to which the score relates. The
building must be completed fully in accordance with any approval given. A BREEAM
post completion report of the building is to be carried out by a licensed BREEAM
assessor within three months of substantial completion of the building and shall set
out the BREEAM score achieved by the building and the equivalent BREEAM
standard to which such score relates.
Reason for pre commencement condition: To ensure that the proposal complies with
Policy CP15 of Council's Adopted Core Strategy and in the interests of delivering
sustainable development. The design stage assessment must be completed prior to
commencement of development because the findings may influence the design for all
stages of construction.

Page 151

8) A Lighting Strategy for agreement with the authority that minimises impacts from
lighting associated with pre-construction, construction and operational activities, and
demonstrate how the current best practice (BCT/ILP, 2018) guidance has been
implemented. To include the provision of dark corridors that accord with Devon
guidance 'Maintaining dark corridors through the landscape for bats' (Jan 2022).
Reason: To ensure the site continues to support commuting and foraging bats within
the site.
9) No works of construction of the buildings hereby approved shall commence until
the following information has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority:
(a) Soakaway test results, groundwater monitoring results, and evidence that
there is a low risk of groundwater re-emergence downslope of the site from
any proposed soakaways or infiltration basins.
(b) A detailed drainage design based upon the submitted surface water
drainage management system detials and Flood Risk and Drainage
Technical Note, and the results of the information submitted in relation to (a)
above.
(c) Detailed proposals for the management of surface water and silt runoff from
the site during construction of the development hereby permitted.
(d) Proposals for the maintenance of the permanent surface water drainage
system.
(e) A plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed at the site.
(f) Evidence there is agreement in principle from South West Water/landowner
to connect into their system.
The building and use hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the works have
been approved and implemented in accordance with the details under (a) - (f) above.
Reason: The above conditions are required to ensure the proposed surface water
drainage system will operate effectively and will not cause an increase in flood risk
either on the site, adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for Devon Guidance
(2017) and national policies, including NPPF and
PPG. The conditions should be pre-commencement since it is essential that the
proposed surface water drainage system is shown to be feasible before works begin
to avoid redesign / unnecessary delays during construction when site layout is fixed.
10) A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to,
and be approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior first occupation of
the development. The content of the LEMP to include a species mitigation strategy
accord with the structure and content detailed in the BS42020: 2013 Biodiversity:

Page 152

Code of Practice for Planning and Development and shall include the following
details:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

a description and evaluation of features to be managed;
ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management;
aims and objectives of management;
appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives;
prescriptions for management actions;
a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled
forward over a five-year period);
g) identification of the body or organization responsible for implementation of
the LEMP;
h) ongoing monitoring and remedial measures; and
i) the legal and funding mechanisms by which the long-term implementation
of the LEMP will be secured with the management bodies responsible for its
delivery.
The LEMP shall also set out how contingencies and/or remedial action will be
identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully
functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme. The
development shall then be implemented and thereafter managed in accordance with
the approved LEMP.
11) Prior to occupation of the development, glazing and trickle vents shall be installed
which achieve at least the levels of sound insulation specified in the ACT
Acoustics report reference 200713-1008 (Noise Impact Assessment - Honeylands
Care Home) dated 24 February 2022.
12) A detailed scheme for landscaping (substantially in accordance with Landscape
Plan 05367 LSP Rev B 27.6.22[51] received 29 June 2022), including the planting of
trees and or shrubs, the use of surface materials and boundary screen walls and
fences shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and no dwelling or building
shall be occupied until the Local Planning Authority have approved a scheme; such
scheme shall specify materials, species, tree and plant sizes, numbers and planting
densities, and any earthworks required together with the timing of the implementation
of the scheme. The landscaping shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with
the approved scheme in accordance with the agreed programme.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these
respects and in the interests of amenity.
13) Prior to the access onto Pinhoe Road being brought into use visibility splays shall
be provided, laid out and maintained for that purpose at the site access generally in
accordance with Drawing Number PHL-101 Revision F where the visibility splays

Page 153

provide inter-visibility between any points on the X and Y axes at a height of 0.6
metres above the adjacent carriageway level and the distance back from the nearer
edge of the carriageway of the public highway (identified as X) shall be 2.4 metres
and the visibility distances along the nearer edge of the carriageway of the public
highway (identified as Y) shall be 43 metres in both directions.
Reason: To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles.
14) Noise from building services plant and equipment shall not exceed a rating noise
level at a residential receptor of 37 dB (07:00 to 23:00) and 29 dB (23:00 to 07:00)
(measured in accordance with BS4142:2014).
15) In the event of failure of any trees or shrubs, planted in accordance with any
scheme approved by the Local Planning Authority, to become established and to
prosper for a period of five years from the date of the completion of implementation of
that scheme, such trees or shrubs shall be replaced with such live specimens of such
species of such size and in such number as may be approved by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in these
respects and in the interests of amenity.
16) The works within the root protection zones of retained trees (as identified on the
Tree Protection Plan Rev B received on 29 June 2022 or such plan as may be
subsequently agreed) as part of the development hereby permitted shall only be
carried out in accordance with an Arboriculture Method Statement that shall have
been submitted to and approved agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to commencement of development on site. The approved Method Statement
shall thereafter be adhered to.
Reason: To ensure the protection of the retained trees during the carrying out of the
development and protecting the amenity of the area.
17) Before any works are undertaken that impact directly on the bomb shelter a
scheme and programme of preservation of the Bomb Shelter which shall detail the
relocation of the shelter off site to a suitable location, or in the absence of such shall
set out the efforts to achieve this that have been undertaken and the details of
recording and archiving of the details of the shelter, shall be submitted ot and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be
implemented in accordance with the agreed programme.
Reason: In the interests of preserving the historic environment for future generations.

Page 154

18) The site shall not be used for any purpose other than that hereby approved as a
Care Home within Use Class C2 and no other use (including any use within the same
Use Class as defined by the Town and Country Planning Use Classes Order 1987 or
any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) shall be carried out without the formal
consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: The use of the building for other uses falling within Use Class C2 other than
a Residential Care Home for the elderly could have different impacts to the approved
use and would therefore need to be assessed on their individual merits through a
separate application.

Listed Building Consent 22/0384/LBC
APPROVE with the following conditions:
1) The works to which this listed building consent relate must be begun not later than
the expiration of three years beginning with the date on which this consent is granted.
Reason: To comply with Section 18 of the Planning Listed Building and Conservation
Areas Act 1990 as amended.
2) The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict
accordance with the submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority on 7
March 2022, 29 June 2022 and 30 June 2022 (listed below) as modified by other
conditions of this consent:
7 March 2022
Existing Building - Demolition Plans
PL03 A Site Demolition Plan
Listed Building drawing set SK020-SK039 RevA
29 June 2022
Landscape Plan 05367 LSP Rev B 27.6.22[51]
30 June 2022
9588-PL06B Proposed Site Boundary Plan[33]
9588-PL07C Proposed Lower Ground Floor Plan[14]
9588-PL08C Proposed Ground Floor Plan[29]
9588-PL09C Proposed First Floor Plan[63]
9588-PL10B Proposed Roof Plan[16]
9588-PL11D Proposed Elevations 1[16]

Page 155

9588-PL12C Proposed Elevations 2[76]
9588-PL13C Proposed Elevations 3[96]
9588-PL14B Proposed Sections[10]
9588-PL18 Proposed Boundary Treatment - Fence Detail[38]
9588-PL05L Proposed Site Plan[97]
1001-PHL-101-F[5] Highway Access
Reason: In order to ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
3) A detailed Materials Schedule including the type, colour, image and location of
each item of the materials it is intended to use in the construction of the development
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority Physical samples shall be
submitted where required. No new material shall be used until the Local Planning
Authority has confirmed in writing that its use is acceptable. Thereafter the materials
used in the construction of the development shall correspond with the approved
samples in all respects.
Reason: In the interests of good design and to ensure that the materials used
preserve and or enhance the character and appearance of the listed building.
4) No windows, doors, sidelights, roof lights, stairs, fenestration or rainwater goods
shall be installed unless further drawings showing this element at a scale of not less
than 1:20, product specification and details of materials, have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority unless otherwise agreed. The
works shall be carried out as approved.

Page 156

This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick
Ltd and should not be reproduced in whole or in
part or used in any manner whatsoever without
their written permission.
Do Not scale off this drawing, use only figured
dimensions and report any discrepancies or
omissions to the Architect immediately.

Rev.

Date

Description

A 18.02.2022 Issued for Planning submission.

PINHOE ROAD

Page 157

PROJECT

Honeylands House Care Home, Exeter
CLIENT

Brackley Investments Ltd
DRAWING

Site Location Plan
STATUS

PLANNING
ROBERTS LIMBRICK LTD
The Carriage Building, Bruton Way
Gloucester, GL1 1DG
The Estates Office 25 - 26 Gold Tops
Newport, NP20 4PG

N

T. 03333 405 500
mail@robertslimbrick.com
www. robertslimbrick.com
Registered Office: England No. 06658029

18/02/2022 14:17:19

S
Site Location Plan
0 12.5 25

62.5
m

SCALE

ORIGINATOR NO

1 : 1250@A3

9588

DATE

AUTHOR

06/07/2020

JF

DRAWING NUMBER:

9588-PL01
PROJECT | ORIGINATOR | ZONE | LEVEL | TYPE | ROLE | NUMBER

A

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Planning Committee Report – 22/0361/FUL
1.0

Application Information
Number:
Applicant:
Proposal:
Site Address:
Registration Date:
Link to application:
Ward Member(s):

22/0361/FUL
Mr Sean Keaney
Single-storey rear extension to dwelling, with
associated modifications.
13 Monkswell Road Exeter Devon
4th April 2022
https://publicaccess.exeter.gov.uk/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summar
y&keyVal=R8SKJZHBMFO00
Pennsylvania Ward: Zion Lights, Josie Parkhouse,
Martyn Snow.

Reason application is going to Committee: The applicant is an Exeter City
Council staff member. Under the terms of the City Council’s constitution, the
application must be reported to the planning committee for transparency.
2.0

Summary of recommendation
Approve subject to conditions.

3.0

Reason for the recommendation: as set out in Section 18 at the end of the
report
o The design is acceptable in relation to the existing dwelling’s character.
o The design is acceptable in relation to the street scene and the broader
setting of the development.
o There are no detrimental impacts on neighbouring amenities created by
the proposed development.

4.0

Table of key planning issues

Issue
Principle of development

Conclusion
The principle of development is
acceptable.

Page 159

Scale, design, impact on character and
appearance
Impact on amenity

5.0

The design is acceptable
No impact on neighbouring amenities

Description of the site
The site is located on Monkswell Road within Pennsylvania ward. The proposal
relates to a two-storey mid-row terraced dwelling. The terrace steps down with
the declining gradient towards the north. A wall encloses the dwelling’s rear
garden, which provides privacy to the applicants and neighbours. In common
with many terraced houses in Exeter, the dwelling has a rear projecting
tenement. It covers approximately three-quarters of the width of the dwelling,
leaving a gap to the neighbouring property. This gap has been infilled with a
small conservatory. The adjoining neighbour to the south does not have a similar
tenement but does have a conservatory adjoining the boundary.

6.0

Description of development
The proposal is to demolish the existing conservatory and replace it with a
rear/side infill extension. The extension would have a glazed lean-to roof and
form part of an enlarged kitchen.
It is also proposed to demolish an outside toilet on the rear elevation next to the
northern site boundary and to introduce an enlarged window on this elevation.
The demolition and replacement of windows are permitted development and are
not being considered part of this application.

7.0

Supporting information provided by the applicant
Site Location Plan – DWG No: 001 – Date Received: 15/03/2022
Amended Proposed Elevations – DWG No: 301 Rev C – Date Received: 30/05/2022

Amended Proposed Ground Floor Plans - DWG No: 101 Rev C – Date Received:
30/05/2022

8.0

Relevant planning history
NA
Reference

Proposal

Page 160

Decision

Decision Date

9.0

List of constraints
Article 4 Student
CIL Habitat Buffer
CIL Habitat SANGS
Impact Risk Zone – Aviation
LDO

10.0

Consultations
All consultee responses can be viewed in full on the Council’s website.
No consultations have been received.

11.0

Representations
No representations have been received.

12.0

Relevant policies
Government Guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
12. Achieving well-designed places
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)
Core Strategy (Adopted February 2012)
CP17 – Design and Local Distinctiveness
Development Delivery Development Plan Document (Publication Version, July
2015)
DD25 - Design Principles
Exeter Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (Adopted 31 March 2005)
DG1 - Objectives of Urban Design
DG4 – Residential Layout and Amenity

Page 161

Exeter City Council Supplementary Planning Document
Householder’s Guide to Extension Design Supplementary Planning Document 2008

13.0

Human rights
Article 6 - Right to a fair trial.
Article 8 - Right to respect for private and family life and home.
The first protocol of Article 1 Protection of property
Considering the application following Council procedures will ensure that the
views of all those interested are taken into account. All comments from interested
parties have been considered and reported within this report in summary, with full
text available via the Council’s website.
Any interference with property rights is in the public interest and in accordance
with the Town and Country planning Act 1990 regime for controlling land
development. This recommendation is based on the consideration of the
proposal against adopted Development Plan policies, the application of which
does not prejudice the Human Rights of the applicant or any third party.

14.0

Public sector equalities duty
As set out in the Equalities Act 2010, all public bodies, in discharging their
functions, must have “due regard” to the need to:
a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct
that is prohibited by or under the Act;
b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and people who do not
share it involves having due regard in particular to the need to:
a) removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic that is connected to that characteristic;
b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that is different from the needs of other persons who do not
share it;
c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or any other activity in which participation by such
persons is disproportionately low.

Page 162

Whilst there is no absolute requirement to remove any disadvantage entirely, the
Duty is to have “regard to” and remove OR minimise disadvantage. In
considering the merits of this planning application, the planning authority has had
due regard to the matters set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010.
15.0

Financial Issues
The requirements to set out the financial benefits arising from a planning
application are in s155 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016. This Act requires
that local planning authorities include financial benefits in each report which is:a) made by an officer or agent of the authority for a non-delegated determination
of an application for planning permission; and
b) contains a recommendation for how the authority should determine the
application following section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.
The information or financial benefits must include a list of local financial
considerations or benefits of a development that officers consider are likely to be
obtained by the authority if the development is carried out, including their value if
known and should include whether the officer considers these to be material or
not material.
Material considerations
N/A
Non-material considerations
The proposal is not CIL liable.

16.0

Planning assessment
Principle of Development

The development seeks to construct a rear/side infill extension. The proposal
would infill the space between the rear wings side wall and the dividing wall with
the neighbour at 15 Monkswell Road. An extension of this type is acceptable in
principle, subject to consideration of the design and impact on neighbours.
Acceptability of design and visual impact.

Page 163

Policy CP17 of the Exeter Core Strategy requires development to complement or
enhance Exeter’s character and reflects Objective 9 of the strategy, which seeks to
achieve excellence in design. Policy DG1 of the Exeter Local Plan, amongst other
considerations, requires the massing and shape of development to relate well to and be
appropriate to the surrounding townscape, be subservient to the original house, and
have a design that does not harm the character of the existing dwelling to an
unacceptable degree.
The proposed rear extension is acceptable in design terms. The proposed materials,
scale, shape, details, and massing are all complementary to the existing dwelling and
comply with relevant policies and guidance.
Impact of design on Street scene
Concerning Local Plan policy DG4, the extension will not impact the wider street scene
or setting.
Policy DG1 is amplified by the Householder’s Guide to Extension Design Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted in 2008, which seeks to raise the standard of proposals,
and provides 12 general design principles. The guide in requires extensions to be
subservient to the original house. In this case, the proposed extension would not be
visible from the street and would be subservient to the original house.
The impact on neighbouring amenities
Regarding the impact on neighbouring amenities, Local Plan policy DG4 seeks to ensure
proposed extensions will not have a detrimental effect on neighbours by overlooking,
overshadowing and overbearing. The proposal will not adversely affect the amenity of
neighbours and complies with this policy.

17.0

Conclusion
For the reasons outlined above, the proposed rear extension complies with the relevant
policies of the Development Plan and is therefore recommended for approval subject to
appropriate conditions.

18.0

Recommendation
APPROVE subject to the following conditions:
1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years, starting with the date on which this permission is granted.
Reason: To ensure compliance with sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Page 164

2) The permitted development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the
submitted details received by the Local Planning Authority. These details and drawings
are as follows:
Site Location Plan - DWG No: 001 - Date Received: 15/03/2022
Amended Proposed Elevations - DWG No: 301 Rev C - Date Received: 30/05/2022
Amended Proposed Ground Floor Plans - DWG No: 101 Rev C - Date Received:
30/05/2022
Reason: To ensure compliance with the approved drawings.
Informatives:
1) Under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017, this development
has been screened regarding the need for an Appropriate Assessment (AA). Given the
nature and scale of the development, it has been concluded that the proposal does not
require an AA.
2) Following Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework, the Council has
worked positively and proactively and has imposed planning conditions to enable the
granting of planning permission.

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 167

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE
Date of Meeting:
25th July 2022
Report of:
City Development Strategic Lead
Title:
Delegated Decisions and Planning Report Acronyms
1

WHAT IS THE REPORT ABOUT

1.1

This report lists planning applications determined and applications that have been
withdrawn between the date of finalising the agenda of the last Planning Committee
and the date of finalising this agenda. Applications are listed by Ward.

2

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

Members are requested to advise the Assistant Service Lead City Development
(Roger Clotworthy) or the Deputy Chief Executive (Bindu Arjoon) of any questions on
the schedule prior to Planning Committee meeting.

2.2

Members are asked to note the report.

3

PLANNING APPLICATION CODES

3.1

The latter part of the application reference number indicates the type of application:
OUT
Outline Planning Permission
RES
Approval of Reserved Matters
FUL
Full Planning Permission
TPO
Works to Tree(s) with Preservation Order
ADV
Advertisement Consent
CAT
Works to Tree(s) in Conservation Area
LBC
Listed Building Consent
ECC
Exeter City Council Regulation 3
LED
Lawfulness of Existing Use/Development
LPD
Certificate of Proposed Use/Development
TEL
Telecommunication Apparatus Determination
CMA
County Matter Application
CTY
Devon County Council Application
MDO
Modification and Discharge of Planning Obligation Regulations
NMA
Non Material Amendment
EXT
Extension to Extant Planning Consent
PD
Extension - Prior Approval
PDJ
Office to Dwelling - Prior Approval

3.2

The decision type uses the following codes:
DREF Deemed Refusal
DTD Declined To Determine
NLU Was Not Lawful Use
PAN Prior Approval Not Required
PAR Prior Approval Required
PER Permitted
REF Refuse Planning Permission
RNO Raise No Objection
ROB Raise Objections
SPL Split Decision
WDN Withdrawn by Applicant
WLU Was Lawful Use
WTD Withdrawn - Appeal against non-determination

4

PLANNING REPORT ACRONYMS
The following list explains the acronyms used in Officers reports:
AH
Affordable Housing

Page 169

AIP
BCIS
CEMP
CIL
DCC
DCLG
DfE
DfT
dph
ECC
EIA
EPS
ESFA
ha
HMPE
ICNIRP
MHCLG
NPPF
QBAR
SAM
SANGS
SEDEMS
SPA
SPD
SPR
TA
TEMPro
TPO
TRO
UE

Approval in Principle
Building Cost Information Service
Construction Environmental Management Plan
Community Infrastructure Levy
Devon County Council
Department for Communities and Local Government: the former name
of the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
Department for Education
Department for Transport
Dwellings per hectare
Exeter City Council
Environment Impact Assessment
European Protected Species
Education and Skills Funding Agency
Hectares
Highway Maintainable at Public Expense
International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection
Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government
National Planning Policy Framework
The mean annual flood: the value of the average annual flood event
recorded in a river
Scheduled Ancient Monument
Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space
South East Devon European Sites Mitigation Strategy
Special Protection Area
Supplementary Planning Document
Standard Percentage Runoff
Transport Assessment
Trip End Model Presentation Program
Tree Preservation Order
Traffic Regulation Order
Urban Extension

Ian Collinson
Director of City Development

Page 170

All Planning Decisions Made and Withdrawn Applications
between 13/04/2022 and 15/07/2022
Alphington
Committee Decision
Application Number: 18/1053/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 21/02/2019

Decision Type:

Withdrawn Returned
(unlikely to be det.)

Date:

Location Address:

Alphin House Mill Lane Alphington Exeter Devon EX2 8SG

Proposal:

Change of use of former care home to provide 19 residential units,
partial demolition and redevelopment of a two storey side
extension, associated car and cycle parking, private amenity space
and public footpath.

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0984/CONR

Delegation Briefing: 15/07/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Unit 8 Stone Lane Retail Park Marsh Barton Road Exeter Devon
EX2 8LH

Proposal:

Removal of Condition 2 of (13/3894/VOC), to increase current
trading hours of 05:00-00:00 (5am to midnight) to 00:00-00:00 (24
hours).

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1481/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Site Off Alphinbrook Road And Hennock Road North Alphinbrook
Road Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Non-material amendment to existing PP Ref. 19/0534/FUL as
amended by 21/0408/NMA for relocation of cycle stand adjacent to
Unit 1.

05/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0069/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Westerly Waterbridge Court Matford Exeter Devon EX2 8FD

Proposal:

Part demolition and rebuild of existing automotive dealership. A
secondary workshop pod accessed via the site's secure compound
will be extended.

15/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0175/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

The Drying Shed Balls Farm Road Ide Exeter Devon EX2 9RA

Proposal:

Discharge of condition 9 (Managing surface water) of planning
permission 21/0969/FUL.

Page 171

13/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0178/RES

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

Land At Aldens Farm West Shillingford Road Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Reserved matters approval of layout, scale, apperance and
landscaping pursuant to Outline Planning Permission Ref.
15/0641/OUT.

01/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0277/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

70 Church Road Alphington Exeter Devon EX2 8TA

Proposal:

T1 - Elder - Reduce to 9 feet high. Improve light conditions, and
reduce the weight on the unstable bank.T2 Purple leaf plum Remove one lateral branch growing towards the neighbour. This
impedes the light to the vegetable patch.T3 - Lawson cypress Prune the main stems back to the boundary line, resulting in
pruning cuts made at approximately 9 feet high. The storms have
separated the stems slightly, so there is an increased danger of
failure.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0279/ADV

Delegation Briefing:
03/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

14 Trusham Road Marsh Barton Trading Estate Exeter Devon EX2
8QG

Proposal:

Pair of illuminated 48-sheet digital poster displays.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0309/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Alphidex Perridge Close Exeter Devon EX2 9PX

Proposal:

Douglas Fir (T10) - Raise crown to 3m above ground level. Lawson
(T2) - Reduce stem on East side over neighbours by 2m. Reduce
tree height by 3m. Silver Birch (T3) - Fell. Reason - Decayed at
base and leaning towards neighbours house. Hawthorn (T4) Reduce regrowth to old cut points at 6m above ground level.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0310/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Lovelace Gardens Exeter Devon EX2 8XQ

Proposal:

T1 - Reduce north eastern limb (with recent tear out at source) by
approximately 5m, maximum diameter of cuts (MDC) 200mm.
Reduce primary south eastern limb 3m, MDC 75-100mm.T2 Remove hanging branch in southern aspect of crown

Page 172

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0320/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

7 Rexona Close Exeter Devon EX2 9JT

Proposal:

Single storey side and rear extension.

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0337/ADV

Delegation Briefing:
13/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Selco Builders Warehouse Marsh Barton Road Exeter Devon EX2
8YX

Proposal:

4 No. non-illuminated fascia signs around top of building.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0347/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Fair Haven Little Johns Cross Hill Exeter Devon EX2 9PJ

Proposal:

T1 reduce large cherry tree in front garden by approximately 2-3m
in order to try and increase the likelyhood of the trees survival, as
when inspected tree was found to have large cavities and appears
to be nearer end of life.

03/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0352/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

17 Orchard Hill Exeter Devon EX2 9NH

Proposal:

T1 - 1x Mature Willow Tree - Re-pollard back to primary pollard
points with final cuts made at approximately x5.0 metres from
ground level. Initiating a well-balanced candelabra framework for
future branch structure to establish.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0353/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

26 Marsh Green Road West Exeter Devon EX2 8PN

Proposal:

Change of use from F1 Class Use (learning and non-residential
institutions) to B8 (Storage or Distribution)

29/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0380/PD

Delegation Briefing:
25/04/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

19 Taunton Close Exeter Devon EX2 9EB

Proposal:

Prior approval application for single storey rear extension
measuring 3.8m (depth) x 3m (eaves height) x 3.5m (maximum
height).

Page 173

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0420/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

94 Hatherleigh Road Exeter Devon EX2 9JX

Proposal:

Single storey side extension.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0422/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Plot J Matford Way Exeter EX2 8FN

Proposal:

Non-Material Minor Amendment to condition 2 (approved
drawings) to amend height of industrial doors (increased), alter
Joint line between cladding types on front and side elevations to
suit industrial doors and include windows as part of base build
rather than potential future installation. (Non-material Minor
Amendment to Planning Permission reference no. 21/0509/RES
granted on 18th August 2021).

26/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0425/RES

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

109 Cowick Lane Exeter Devon EX2 9HF

Proposal:

Approval of reserved matters for appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale of two dwellings following outline permission Ref.
21/0913/OUT.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0428/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

99 Alphington Road Exeter Devon EX2 8JD

Proposal:

Loft Conversion with rear dormer and rear parapet wall height
increased.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0446/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Burleigh Heads Clapperbrook Lane Exeter Devon EX2 8TE

Proposal:

Retention of vehicular and pedestrian access to property.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0474/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Cedar Hayes Balls Farm Road Exeter Devon EX2 9JB

Proposal:

Refurbishment of small outbuilding to existing property to be used
as home office and gym.

Page 174

01/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0510/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

3 Cowick Hill Exeter Devon EX2 9NQ

Proposal:

Rear dormer loft conversion with hip-to-gable roof extension.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0514/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

54 Broadway Exeter Devon EX2 9LY

Proposal:

Construction of garage/ outbuilding in rear garden.

27/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0527/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Chapel Road Exeter Devon EX2 8TB

Proposal:

First floor rear extension and new rooflights to existing roof.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0530/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

15 Cowick Hill Exeter Devon EX2 9NQ

Proposal:

Convert garage building into a home-office with new windows and
doors.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0585/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Unit 1A Filmer Way Exeter Devon EX2 8YX

Proposal:

Installation of 2no. Totem signs

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0634/PD

Delegation Briefing:
31/05/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

39 Broadway Exeter Devon EX2 9LU

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension with 5m depth, maximum height of
3.5m and height of eaves are 2.65m.

Page 175

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0691/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

Land Off Filmer Way (Formerly 11 Marsh Barton Road) Exeter
Devon EX2 8NU

Proposal:

Discharge of conditions 3 (BREEAM) and 4 (Construction and
Environmental Management Plan) of 21/1434/FUL

01/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0706/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

105 Broadway Exeter Devon EX2 9NU

Proposal:

Porch Extension to front of property.

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0757/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Briars Nursing Home Crabb Lane Exeter Devon EX2 9JD

Proposal:

Monkey Puzzle (1) - FellReason - Major decay at base. (as per
Resistograph report attached)Replanting - 1 x Monkey Puzzle
potted @ 2 to 3 ft tall.

13/07/2022

Duryard And St James
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1547/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/11/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

28 Argyll Road Exeter Devon EX4 4RY

Proposal:

Renovation, enhancement and first floor extension from existing 3bed to 4-bed home.

08/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 20/01/2022

Application Number: 22/0018/FUL
Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

45 Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6DB

Proposal:

Three storey rear extension.

03/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0116/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/02/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Two Ways Taddyforde Estate Exeter Devon EX4 4AT

Proposal:

Replacement garage, recladding and decking.

Page 176

20/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0196/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 03/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

24 Powderham Crescent Exeter Devon EX4 6DA

Proposal:

Proposed rear extension, front railings and front wall.

21/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0197/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

58 Springfield Road Exeter Devon EX4 6JL

Proposal:

Install external insulation and natural slate finish to northern side
wall gable elevation.

13/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0270/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022
09/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

53 Danes Road Exeter Devon EX4 4LS

Proposal:

Replacement kitchen extension, first floor rear extension, loft
conversion and rear dormer to enable increase from 5 to 6
occupants.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0294/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Devonshire House Stocker Road Exeter Devon EX4 4PZ

Proposal:

Three storey extension to the Student Guild department (south
west wing) of Devonshire House to provide fire evacuation lift and
protected lobbies.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0333/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022
09/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

14 Woodleigh Close Exeter Devon EX4 5AS

Proposal:

Alteration to rear first floor with the addition of a balcony.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0350/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

44 Thornton Hill Exeter Devon EX4 4NS

Proposal:

Replacement windows. Single-story extension and alterations to
the rear.

Page 177

29/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0355/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Hope Lodge Lower St Germans Road Exeter Devon EX4 4PW

Proposal:

T1 - London Plane Coppice - FellT2 - Norway Maple - Reduce by 3
metres and reshape laterals by 1-1.5metresT3 - Ash - Reduce by
3 metres and reshape laterals by 1-1.5metres

03/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0368/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

21 Allington Mead Exeter Devon EX4 5AP

Proposal:

T1 - Common Oak - Remove the lowest primary facing eastwards,
growing over Belle Vue rd and the field beyond. Diameter cut of 910 inches.- Remove 2-3 2nd order growth from the primary branch
facing southwards (adjoining the main stem immediately above the
branch to be removed), so that the crown is lifted to the main
structural framework of the branch itself. Diameter cuts of 4 inches
or below.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0370/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

30 West Garth Road Exeter Devon EX4 5AH

Proposal:

Loft conversion with rear dormer.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0424/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Amory Building Rennes Drive Exeter Devon EX4 4RJ

Proposal:

Discharge of condition 3 (Materials) of PP 21/0546/ful as
amended by application 21/1576/NMA

26/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0430/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

45 Old Tiverton Road Exeter Devon EX4 6NG

Proposal:

Internal alterations enlarging WC and Single Storey Rear
extension extending dining room.

20/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0464/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

45 Old Tiverton Road Exeter Devon EX4 6NG

Proposal:

Internal alterations enlarging WC and Single Storey Rear
extension extending dining room.

Page 178

20/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0470/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

6 Elm Grove Road St James Exeter Devon EX4 4LL

Proposal:

Insertion of new sliding folding doors, amended gable window and
door to the rear elevations.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0479/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

24 Thornton Hill Exeter Devon EX4 4NS

Proposal:

T1 - Robinia tree - Reduce in height by 2.5 metres, and reshape
the lateral branches by 1.5 metres to leave a balanced form.T2 Bay tree - Reduce in height by 30%.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0516/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

6A Devonshire Place Exeter Devon EX4 6JA

Proposal:

T1 Bay - Shorten lateral branches by approx. 0.75 metres and
reduce height of tree by 40-50%

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0541/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022
05/07/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

49 Danes Road Exeter Devon EX4 4LS

Proposal:

Replacement ground floor rear extension, and new first-floor rear
extension.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0545/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

4 Culverland Close Exeter Devon EX4 6HR

Proposal:

Oak tree (T1) has a small amount of deadwood over the garden of
property number 4. Tree Officer confirms this deadwood requires
removal (over target).

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0552/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Kingsgate Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6DH

Proposal:

T1 Sweet Gum, Crown reduce to previous height, approx 2m
reduction in height.

Page 179

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0611/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

24 Woodleigh Close Exeter Devon EX4 5AS

Proposal:

Addition of a balcony on the rear first floor; new garden access
door and steps; associated internal alterations.

04/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0672/ECC

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

John Lewis Multi Storey Car Park King William Street Exeter
Devon

Proposal:

Siting of two emergency sleeping pods for rough sleepers

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0701/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Streatham Court Rennes Drive Exeter Devon EX4 4PU

Proposal:

To relocate the previously approved photovoltaic panels from an
adjacent existing roof, to the roof of the proposed approved
building (non-material amendment to 19/1616/FUL)

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0728/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Bishop Blackall School Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4
6BP

Proposal:

T1. Lime tree. Re-Pollard to a height of approx. 3m as tree has
poor relationship with adjacent building.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0773/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Norwood House Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6TR

Proposal:

T002 Box Elder Low hanging canopy above road. Crown bias to
south. Communal Area - Crown lift to 4 m for highway
clearance.T003 Cypress Low hanging canopy above highway
Communal Area. Crown lift to 5.2 m for highway clearance.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0802/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Wembury New North Road Exeter Devon EX4 4AG

Proposal:

T1 - Eucryphia nymansay. Crown reduction of 2-3m.T2 - West red
cedar hedge. Trim the top by up to 2m to growth points.T3 - Trees
along the road side. Remove lower branches to allow clearance of
5m for buses.

Page 180

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0833/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permission not required

Date:

Location Address:

Lucombe Court Stadium Way Exeter Devon EX4 6JX

Proposal:

T001 Oak Low hanging canopy above road. Minor deadwood
throughout canopy. Crown lift to 5.2 m for highway clearance.
Remove deadwood - greater than 25 mm.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0835/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Norwood House Pennsylvania Road Exeter Devon EX4 6TR

Proposal:

T001 - Cypress in communal area, encroaching on overhead
wires. Reduce canopy edge by up to 1m to clear overhead wires.

13/07/2022

Exwick
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1923/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 27/01/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Crisping Park (Land Next To Crisping House) Barley Lane Exeter
Devon EX4 1SY

Proposal:

Change of use of existing artist studio to a dwelling (C3 use).

14/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0057/FUL

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Lynwood Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 1EF

Proposal:

Single storey rear, side extension.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0285/TPO

Delegation Briefing:
03/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

3 Lakelands Drive Exeter Devon EX4 2QB

Proposal:

G1 - 12 x Scots Pine -reduce the height of these Pines by
approximately 30% and reduce the branches overhanging the
properties to allow a clearance of 7m from the buildings.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0304/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

13 Prescot Road Exeter Devon EX4 1RB

Proposal:

Hip-to-gable extension, rear flat roof dormer and front roof lights.

Page 181

11/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0335/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 31/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

27 Medley Court Exwick Exeter Devon EX4 2QN

Proposal:

Erection of outbuilding in rear garden.

28/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Application Number: 22/0540/OUT

15/07/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Land East Of Barley Lane Exeter EX4 1SU

Proposal:

Outline planning application for a residential development of up to
9 dwellings and associated infrastructure (resubmission of
application 21/1377/OUT).

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Application Number: 22/0544/OUT

15/07/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Land South Of Redhills And West Of Hadrian Drive Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Outline planning application for a residential development of up to
35 dwellings and associated infrastructure (resubmission of
application 21/1822/OUT).

Heavitree
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0102/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

94 Magdalen Road Exeter Devon EX2 4TU

Proposal:

Proposed loft conversion with rear dormer.

12/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0119/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/02/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

38 Sweetbrier Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3AF

Proposal:

Single storey side and rear wrap around extension.

19/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0242/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

16 Kingsway Exeter Devon EX2 5EW

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

Page 182

05/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0248/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

165 Fore Street Heavitree Exeter Devon EX1 3BR

Proposal:

Extension of lean-to to the rear side wall and the installation of two
velux windows.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0284/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Regents Park Exeter Devon EX1 2NT

Proposal:

Alterations and lower ground floor rear extension.

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0302/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

4 South Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 2DZ

Proposal:

Rear and side extensions.

29/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0321/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Public Conveniences Hamlin Lane Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Salix fragilis, second tree along from Polsloe Bridge Toilets - Fell to
ground level and plug stump. Remove debris. 2 man days

24/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0372/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

69 Roseland Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 2TN

Proposal:

Hip-to-gable extension, rear flat roof dormer and front roof lights.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0376/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

27 Whiteway Drive Exeter Devon EX1 3AL

Proposal:

Rear Extension.

Page 183

22/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 22/0381/PD

29/04/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Required and Date:
Refused

Location Address:

27 Kingsway Exeter Devon EX2 5EN

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension with flat roof (including 2 no. flat glass
skylights).

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0426/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

2 Salutary Mount Fore Street Heavitree Exeter Devon EX1 2QE

Proposal:

T1 - Cedar. Reduce eastern aspect by up to 3m, lower crown that
is overhanging 4 Salutary Mount only including driveway.
Maximum diameter of cut (MDC) 75mm. Existing crown spread: EW 20m, N-S 19m.

03/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Application Number: 22/0449/FUL
Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

4 Lymeborne Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 3AU

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension and alteration.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0462/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Regents Park Exeter Devon EX1 2NT

Proposal:

Alterations and lower ground floor rear extension

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 22/0466/PD

13/05/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

40 Sweetbrier Lane Exeter Devon EX1 3AF

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension extending maximum 3.5m, maximum
height to eaves 3.65m, maximum overall height of 3.65m.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0478/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

119 Hamlin Lane Exeter Devon EX1 2SF

Proposal:

Single storey side extension.

Page 184

27/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0553/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

46 Ladysmith Road Exeter Devon EX1 2PU

Proposal:

Proposed loft conversion with 1x front velux rooflight, and an L
shaped dormer window to the rear.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0559/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

37 Kingsway Exeter Devon EX2 5EN

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension with raised decking area and steps.

08/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0588/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

22 Park Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HS

Proposal:

Proposed rear dormer with 2No. roof lights to the front.

14/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0647/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

187 Hamlin Lane Exeter Devon EX1 2SQ

Proposal:

Rear extension with internal alterations.

04/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0666/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

15 South Avenue Exeter Devon EX1 2DZ

Proposal:

Remove existing window and replace with new door.

14/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0743/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Bicton Place Exeter Devon EX1 2PF

Proposal:

1 Dead magnolia tree (M on plan) on the drive adjacent to a tall
brick boundary wall .I seek permission to remove this tree.2
Sycamore tree (S on plan) in back garden .I seek permission to
reduce the trunk height by 1.5 metres and pollared .3 Unidentified
tree(X on plan ) next to the aforementioned Sycamore tree needs
to be reduced in height to the same height as the Sycamore .I seek
permission to do this .

Page 185

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 22/0764/PD

04/07/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

27 Kingsway Exeter Devon EX2 5EN

Proposal:

Partial demolition of existing rear extension and construction of 4m
deep x 3.105m wide extension to L/H side of rear elevation.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0936/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Ladysmith Infant School Ladysmith Road Exeter Devon EX1 2PS

Proposal:

Provision of new glazed entrance lobby (non-material amendment
to 21/1572/FUL)

08/07/2022

Mincinglake And Whipton
Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 24/02/2022

Application Number: 22/0232/FUL

06/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

81 Chancellors Way Exeter Devon EX4 9DX

Proposal:

Build Orangery conservatory to side elevation and full width porch
to rear elevation.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0283/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

6 Pinwood Lane Exeter Devon EX4 8NQ

Proposal:

Variation of condition 7 of 19/1646/FUL to amend permitted
development restrictions for the approved dwelling

14/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0441/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

317 Pinhoe Road Exeter Devon EX4 8AD

Proposal:

Proposed Rear Extension.

07/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0442/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

70 Widgery Road Exeter Devon EX4 8AX

Proposal:

Front extension, rear extension, internal alterations.

Page 186

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0591/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

82 Latimer Road Exeter Devon EX4 7JP

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension and dormer loft conversion.

23/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0613/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

6 Pinwood Lane Exeter Devon EX4 8NQ

Proposal:

Discharge of condition three (materials) of 19/1646/FUL

13/05/2022

Newtown And St Leonards
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1028/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 15/07/2021
06/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

6 Matford Lane Exeter Devon EX2 4PS

Proposal:

Demolition of existing bungalow and garage, and construction of
two storey dwelling

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1691/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 16/12/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Globe 39 Clifton Road Exeter Devon EX1 2BL

Proposal:

Replacement of 2 windows to create external doors on Albert
Street elevation (Retrospective Application)

13/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1858/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 23/12/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

54 West Grove Road Exeter Devon EX2 4LU

Proposal:

Multiple Exterior Alterations; including change of windows and
doors to Aluminium, Render finish. [Reconsultation]

10/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0115/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

21 Portland Street Exeter Devon EX1 2EG

Proposal:

Two storey/single storey rear extension.

Page 187

27/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0231/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 03/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

St Matthews Church Lower Summerlands Exeter Devon EX1 2LJ

Proposal:

Extension to existing church to accommodate WCs and creche.

10/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0271/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

16 Fairpark Road Exeter Devon EX2 4HL

Proposal:

T1 - Dead Hawthorn: FellT2 - Thuya - Fell

03/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0298/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

54 Belmont Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HG

Proposal:

Retrospective application for replacement screen walling.

29/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0299/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

13 Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NT

Proposal:

Cut back (to significant growth points) the overhanging branches in
our garden from a Luccombe Oak. This cut back will not be
exceeding 25 cms and still ensure the health and well being of the
tree. This Oak is in the corner of the garden of 3 Penleonard
Close, Exeter EX2 4NY. The owner of the tree has given us
permission. The tree is identified as A on the sketch plan

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0317/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

142 Heavitree Road Exeter Devon EX1 2NA

Proposal:

T1 Plum. Reduce height by 3m

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0322/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Clifton Hill Exeter Devon EX1 2DL

Proposal:

Internal alterations.

Page 188

14/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0346/LED

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was not lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

2A Blackboy Road Exeter Devon EX4 6SG

Proposal:

Certificate of lawfulness sought for existing use: small 4 bedroom
House in Multiple Occupation (C4 Use Class).

20/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0348/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

43 Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NU

Proposal:

Approximately 8 metre high Cedar tree in front garden suffered
storm damage which resulted in losing the leader and other
branches. This has left tree significantly unbalanced and requiring
remedial work to reshape and balance.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0363/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

54 Belmont Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HG

Proposal:

Retrospective application for replacement screen walling.

09/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0365/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Clifton Hill Sports Centre Clifton Hill Exeter Devon EX1 2DJ

Proposal:

Variation of Condition 2 of planning permission 20/0691/FUL to
substitute revised drawing references . The revisions comprise;
amendments to block 3 to remove one dwelling (reducing number
of dwellings to 41), add integral garages and reposition this block
further from site boundary and retained trees, and amendments to
block 9 to increase width of garages and introduce additional
rooflights and windows.

29/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0375/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

46 Rosebery Road Exeter Devon EX4 6LT

Proposal:

Ground floor rear extension to replace existing conservatory, rear
dormer roof extension.

Page 189

08/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0396/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Exeter School Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NS

Proposal:

T14. Silver birch. Section/Fell Birch to ground level.T15. Cherry.
Section/Fell Cherry to ground levelGp3. Sycamore. (this is set
within group 3 on the document) Upright sycamore growing within
hedgeline by removing stems leaning towards building.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0403/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Beech House 157-159 Magdalen Road Exeter Devon EX2 4TT

Proposal:

Provision of second vehicular access.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0431/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

140 Heavitree Road Exeter Devon EX1 2LZ

Proposal:

T1 - Selectively prune Yew tree in rear garden. Remove 2x lower
limbs to provide clearance of summer house roof and adjacent
tree, as identified onsite. T2 - Selectively prune Cherry tree to
balance crown. (Minor pruning only)T3 - Selectively prune
Magnolia and crown lift secondary lower branches to provide
clearance beneath tree for garden maintenance, as identified
onsite.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0436/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Exeter School Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NS

Proposal:

Extension to admissions building and public realm works
comprising landscaping and infrastructure works

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0438/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NT

Proposal:

T1, T2 Cypress. Fell

Page 190

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0447/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

16 Magdalen Road Exeter Devon EX2 4SY

Proposal:

Oak tree in garden periphery at start of Wonford Road.Very long
branches overhanging Wonford Road and abutting properties
opposite and our house.Crown reduction required - we have
sought advice from local tree surgeon.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0461/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Cleveland Gardens Grosvenor Place Exeter Devon EX1 2HJ

Proposal:

T1 Tulip tree - reduce crown away from property, making cuts no
bigger than 60mm, reducing lengths of approx 3m maximumT2
copper beech - reduce branches away from property, making cuts
up to approx 60mm, reducing branch length by up to 4mT3 hazel cut back to try and gain a 1.5m clearance from roofG1 birch trees trim trees away from property removing branch lengths of approx
3m to reduce overhang on propertyAll works to be carried out due
to excessive damage caused by squirresl accessing the roof from
the trees. This work will be carried out in the most sympathetic way
to the trees as much as possible and retaining their amenity value.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0538/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Raleigh House 89 Magdalen Road Exeter Devon EX2 4TG

Proposal:

T2 - Cherry - Crown lift over pavement to 3m from ground level.
Works required to alleviate conflict between pedestrians and the
tree.T3 - Cherry - Reduce in height by 1m to clear BT lines.
Reduce canopy edges to balance the crown. Works required to
clear BT lines.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0556/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

150 Heavitree Road Exeter Devon EX1 2LZ

Proposal:

Cherry tree in front garden requires pruning. Consulation with
arborist (Clyst Tree Care) recommends cutting back in line with
prior pruning level. The tree is marked on the attached sketch of
the property to show the location in the front garden.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0631/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

15 Barnardo Road Exeter Devon EX2 4ND

Proposal:

Single storey side return extension and new dormer to rear.

Page 191

04/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0638/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

28 Barnfield Road Exeter Devon EX1 1RX

Proposal:

Discharge of conditions 3 (SAP) and 4 (External Lighting) of
planning permission 21/1344/FUL.

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0639/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

45 Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 4NU

Proposal:

Non material amendment sought for alterations to proposed front
door and porch threshold & the inclusion of PV panels on south
facing roof pitch.

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0645/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Magdalen Court School Victoria Park Road Exeter Devon EX2
4NU

Proposal:

Two storey extension to sports hall to provide disabled changing
facilities, additional storage and apartment (C2 use).

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0658/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

St Lukes Chapel University Of Exeter Heavitree Road Exeter
Devon EX1 2LU

Proposal:

Addition of 2no. triangular dormers to rear roof slope to house
ventilation louvres.

24/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0695/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

21 East Grove Road Exeter Devon EX2 4LX

Proposal:

Single storey side return and rear dormer roof extensions.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0700/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Mount St Mary Convent Wonford Road Exeter Devon EX2 4PF

Proposal:

Construction of triple garage along eastern boundary.

Page 192

05/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0710/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

17 Marlborough Road Exeter Devon EX2 4TJ

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0762/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

27 College Road Exeter Devon EX1 1TG

Proposal:

Rear extension.

20/06/2022

Pennsylvania
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1139/RES

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

The Old Coal Yard Exmouth Junction Mount Pleasant Road Exeter
Devon EX4 7AE

Proposal:

INVALID Approval of landscaping for Phase 2 of the development.

16/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1178/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

The Old Coal Yard Exmouth Junction Mount Pleasant Road Exeter
Devon EX4 7AE

Proposal:

Discharge Conditions 6 (Detailed Survey of Culvert), 7 (Capacity
Assessment of Culvert), 8 (CEMP - Phase 1), 11 (Contamination
Investigation) and 20 (Sound Insulation Scheme - Phase 1) of
planning permission ref. 19/0650/FUL - Outline application for the
construction of 400 residential dwellings (Class C3), 65 senior
living with care units (Class C2), new public open and green
spaces, access road, refurbishment and extension of locally listed
former water tower, and associated works (Landscaping reserved
for future consideration).

11/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1417/PDCD

Delegation Briefing: 30/09/2021
08/06/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Required and Date:
Granted

Location Address:

First Floor 272 Pinhoe Road Exeter Devon EX4 7JQ

Proposal:

Change of use from commercial, business and service (Use Class
E) to dwellinghouses (Use Class C3).

Page 193

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1689/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

Exmouth Junction Mount Pleasant Road Exeter Devon EX4 7JN

Proposal:

Discharge conditions 8 (CEMP) and 12 (Construction Method
Statement) for phase 2 of planning permission ref. 19/0650/OUT Outline application for the construction of 400 residential dwellings
(Class C3), 65 senior living with care units (Class C2), new public
open and green spaces, access road, refurbishment and extension
of locally listed former water tower, and associated works
(Landscaping reserved for future consideration).

04/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0037/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 20/01/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Old Coal Yard Exmouth Junction Mount Pleasant Road Exeter
Devon EX4 7AE

Proposal:

Outline application for the construction of up to 400 residential
dwellings (Class C3), 65 senior living with care units (Class C2),
new public open and green spaces, access road, refurbishment
and extension of locally listed former water tower, and associated
works (Landscaping reserved for future consideration) (Variation of
condition 3 to carry out minor material amendments to Phase 2
including reducing the number of residential dwellings (Class C3)
to 395 and variation to the wording of conditions 25, 26, 30, 38 and
39 of planning permission ref. 21/0910/VOC).

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0153/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/02/2022
23/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Land To The South Of 15 The Fairway Exeter Devon

Proposal:

New dwelling.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0176/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

27 Higher Kings Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6JP

Proposal:

Loft conversion including a roof extension and a velux window.

21/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0327/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

33 Anne Close Exeter Devon EX4 7DL

Proposal:

Ground floor and two storey rear extension, front porch extension
and internal alterations.

Page 194

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0328/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

The Old Coal Yard Exmouth Junction Mount Pleasant Road Exeter
Devon EX4 7AE

Proposal:

Discharge of conditions 7 (PWMSR - Ecological Clerk of Works
and timetable for implementation) and 8 (Non-Native Species Ecological Clerk of Works and timetable for implementation) of
permission ref 21/0910/VOC.

10/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0351/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

42 Sylvan Road Exeter Devon EX4 6EY

Proposal:

Convert existing garage into habitable accommodation.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0362/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

31 Mincinglake Road Exeter Devon EX4 7EA

Proposal:

Proposed two storey side extension and associated internal
alterations.

06/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0394/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

37 Widecombe Way Exeter Devon EX4 5BZ

Proposal:

Conversion of existing garage, ground floor front extension and
porch.

13/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0433/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Polsloe Road Exeter Devon EX1 2HL

Proposal:

REMOVAL OF EXISTING CHIMNEY STACKS, REPLACEMENT
OF EXISTING WINDOWS WITH TIMBER DOUBLE GLAZED AND
INTERNAL ALTERATIONS

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0434/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Exeter Gateway Centre Mount Pleasant Road Exeter Devon EX4
7AE

Proposal:

Enclosure of existing covered decking area

Page 195

11/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0455/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

11 Rosebarn Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6DY

Proposal:

The work relates to 3 trees on TPO 422 numbersT3,T4 and T5.
They are Zelkovas.Due to some identified movement in the base of
T4 after the February 2022 storms there is a risk of T4 leaning
further into T5 or even falling across the owner's garden and
surrounding neighbours' gardens and property.The advice received
from Anthony Arrow and Graham Joyce of Dartmoor Tree
Surgeons Ltd is to:1) Carry out a height reduction of 8metres
(approximately 30%) to reduce pressure on the bases of each
tree.2) To prune the sides according to shape approximately 34metres3) Remove major hazardous deadwoodThis will, we hope,
preserve the trees for the future. The alternative is to cut them
down completely to eliminate any potential danger.We would
welcome the opinion and views of the local council expert.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0459/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

19 Higher Kings Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6JP

Proposal:

Single storey wraparound extension, first floor rear extension,
render rear aspect of dwelling house and construction of studio
outbuilding.

14/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0531/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

27 Lower Kings Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6JT

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

04/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0543/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

Exmouth Junction Gateway Site Prince Charles Road Exeter
Devon

Proposal:

Discharge condition 3 (CEMP) of permission ref. 20/1187/FUL Redevelopment of the site and construction of a part 3, part 5
storey building containing 51 residential units with associated
access and servicing arrangements, car parking, landscaping and
infrastructure ancillary to the residential use. (Revised)

09/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0551/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Higher Kings Avenue Exeter Devon EX4 6JP

Proposal:

G1 Monterey Cypress. Crown reduce by up to 1.5m

Page 196

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0558/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Michigan Way Exeter Devon EX4 5EU

Proposal:

Proposed single storey extension to front (north) elevation.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0661/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

103 Mount Pleasant Road Exeter Devon EX4 7AB

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0851/PD

Delegation Briefing:
04/07/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

12 Pamela Road Exeter Devon EX1 2UF

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension measuring 3.8m deep, maximum
height 3.2m and height of eaves 2.95m.

Pinhoe
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/0508/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Split Decision

Date:

Location Address:

Land To The North Of College Way And East Of Cumberland Way
Devon EX1 3PZ

Proposal:

Discharge conditions 15 (Plant Details) and 17 (Fencing - Design
Details) of PP 18/0683/FUL - Development of 32 bed nursing
home and 8 close-care living units (Use Class C2), with associated
access, parking and landscaping.

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0146/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

Land To The Rear Of 26 Harrington Lane Exeter Devon EX4 8PB

Proposal:

Discharge of conditions 3 (Materials), 4 (CEMP) and 6 (SAP
calculations) of planning permission 21/1379/FUL.

17/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0189/RES

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land At Chancel Lane Chancel Lane Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Approval of reserved matters for appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale of 3 dwellings following outline permission Ref.
18/1336/OUT granted on 5 June 2019

Page 197

08/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0227/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

94-96 Main Road Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX4 9HF

Proposal:

Proposed ground floor rear extension and internal alterations.

06/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0228/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

94-96 Main Road Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX4 9HF

Proposal:

Proposed ground floor rear extension and internal alterations.

06/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0274/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pinhoe View College Way Exeter Devon EX1 3PZ

Proposal:

Discharge condition 17 (Fencing) of permission ref. 18/0683/FUL Development of 32 bed nursing home and 8 close-care living units
(Use Class C2), with associated access, parking and landscaping.

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0282/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Street Record Wheat Belt Rise Exeter Devon

Proposal:

T570 English OakCrown lift northern side of crown to 5.2m
height.Remove lowest northern branch by pruning back to main
stem.Crown lift remainder of crown to 2.5m height.Remove broken
branches and deadwood.Apply bark mulch across Root Protection
Area to depth of 100mm, for good management.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0303/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

5 St Nicholas Close Exeter Devon EX1 3FL

Proposal:

Loft conversion with rear dormer and removal of rear door to be
replaced with patio doors and window and infill garage door with
window and cladding to match existing.

11/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0369/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

145 Myrtlebury Way Exeter Devon EX1 3XB

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

Page 198

25/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0377/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

50 Langaton Lane Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX1 3SL

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension, removal of conservatory.

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Application Number: 22/0417/FUL

04/07/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

4 Lands Road Exeter Devon EX4 8PT

Proposal:

First floor and loft extension over existing garage. Dorma to the
rear and addition of roof lights.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0440/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Florence Way Exeter Devon EX1 3FW

Proposal:

Proposed extension.

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0451/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Site Of 54 Main Road Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX4 9EY

Proposal:

Re-development of site for commercial premises (Class E) on
ground floor and three residential apartments on first floor with
associated parking and amenity space.

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0498/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Orchard Close Exeter Devon EX1 3SN

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0529/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

9 Rews Meadow Exeter Devon EX1 3QJ

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

Page 199

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0542/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 09/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

55 Langaton Lane Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX1 3SP

Proposal:

Convert existing garage to home office, change garage door to
French door and window.

11/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0565/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pinbrook Court Venny Bridge Exeter Devon EX4 8JQ

Proposal:

Discharge condition 4 (Watercourse Maintenance Plan) of
permission ref. 19/1709/FUL - Construction of Class E(a) foodstore
(Use Classes Order 2020, previously Class A1) with associated
parking, landscaping and access works - (Further Revised Plans).

25/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0583/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

23 Park Lane Exeter Devon EX4 9HL

Proposal:

Replacement of existing porch and side extension.

23/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0604/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

25 Mayfield Road Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX4 8PR

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0760/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

5 Petersfield Pinn Hill Pinhoe Exeter Devon EX1 3BN

Proposal:

Reduction of T7 Oak, removal of Ash Trees.

13/07/2022

Priory
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1903/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

16 Earl Richards Road North Exeter Devon EX2 6AG

Proposal:

Two storey Rear extension and Single storey Rear garage
extension [Revised Description].

Page 200

01/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0162/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

73 Wonford Street Exeter Devon EX2 5DF

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension and first floor side extension.

27/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0183/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Royal Devon And Exeter Hospital Barrack Road Exeter Devon

Proposal:

discharge of condition 3 (MATERIALS), 4 (CONSTRUCION
METHOD STATEMENT), 5 (CYCLE PARKING) & 7 (LAND
CONTAMINATION) relating to PLANNING PERMISSION REF:
21/1137/FUL

01/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0247/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

9 Salmonpool Lane Exeter Devon EX2 4SN

Proposal:

Single storey wrap around rear and side extension.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0286/FUL

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Savannah Roche Garden Exeter Devon EX2 6LS

Proposal:

Removal of roll up garage door and replace with window. Increase
width of front entrance door way.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0290/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

9 Countess Wear Road Exeter Devon EX2 6LG

Proposal:

Single storey rear brick extension, demolition of garage, single
storey brick visitor's studio.

06/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0427/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

6 King Henrys Road Exeter Devon EX2 6AL

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension, internal alterations and new front
door position.

Page 201

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0448/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 King Henrys Road Exeter Devon EX2 6AJ

Proposal:

T1 - Scots Pine tree: Shorten back the longest lowest lateral
branch overhanging the shed by 1.7metres. Shorten back the
lower lateral branch overhanging the garden by 1 metre. Remove
the lowest branch drooping down towards the shed. Prune back
various mid to higher crown lateral branches by approximately 0.75
metres. Max cut size of 10cm

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0452/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 16/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

30 Masterson Street Exeter Devon EX2 5GR

Proposal:

Construction of an open sided canopy in rear garden.

12/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0465/PD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

9 Cowper Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 6BT

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension with maximum depth 4m, maxium
height 2.5m and height at eaves 2.5m.

07/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 22/0467/PD

31/05/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

35 Southbrook Road Exeter Devon EX2 6JA

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension with 4.95m depth, maximum height of
2.95m and height of eaves are 2.95m.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0480/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Briar Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 6DX

Proposal:

Two storey side extension.

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0548/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

8 Dryden Road Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Discharge of Conditions 4 (secure cycle parking) and 5 (car
parking) pertaining to planning permission ref. 21/1487/VOC
approved on 21 January 2022.

Page 202

21/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0550/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Unit 6 Kew Court Pynes Hill Exeter Devon EX2 5AZ

Proposal:

T1 - Norway Maple to the rear (eastern boundary) of System
design solutions, Kew Court: Remove one primary limb, the growth
of which overhangs the building. This limb arises at 7 feet high on
the main stem, the pruning cut being 12 inch diameter. Reasons:
Squirrels are nesting in the building itself, and use the branches
arising from this limb as access to the building. Removal of this
luimb should result in enough clearance to deter nesting in
future.T2 - Norway Maple to the rear (eastern boundary) of Kew
Court, positioned adjacent to the passageway between the two
halves of Kew court: Remove one primary limb, the growth of
which overhangs the building. This limb arises at 9 feet high on the
main stem, the pruning cut being 8-10 inch diameter.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0586/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Flat 3 189 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 6AN

Proposal:

Proposed change to internal layout, relocation of rear external door
to adjacent window, installation of Velux window to side elevation.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0587/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Flat 3 189 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 6AN

Proposal:

Proposed change to internal layout, relocation of rear external door
to adjacent window, installation of Velux window to side elevation.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 22/0598/PD

22/06/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

19 Shakespeare Road Exeter Devon EX2 6BP

Proposal:

Prior approval application for single storey rear extension
measuring 4.3m (depth) x 3m (eaves height) and 3.3m (maximum
height).

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0612/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

384 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 6HE

Proposal:

Single storey extensions.

Page 203

24/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0689/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pynes Hill Court Pynes Hill Exeter Devon EX2 5AZ

Proposal:

1no. internally-illuminated entrance sign, 1no. totem sign, 1no.
building fascia sign and 4no. directional signs.

15/06/2022

St Davids
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 20/1338/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 16/12/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land Adjacent To The Old Malthouse Bartholomew Street East
Exeter Devon EX4 3BG

Proposal:

Construction of 2 bedroom dwelling house.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0951/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 19/08/2021
21/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

St Andrews Yard Willeys Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 8EP

Proposal:

Change of use of the mixed use B8 storage/Sui Generis car sales
to B8 storage and distribution use only.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1659/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Colleton Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 4DG

Proposal:

Change of use to 2 flats from basement to 2nd floor, including
internal alterations and rear extension. Construction of two garages
and 1 Car Port in rear garden as well as bin and bicycle storage,
fencing and other minor works.

24/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1732/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 09/12/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

19 Rivermead Road Exeter Devon EX2 4RH

Proposal:

Proposed rear extension to replace existing, and internal
alterations.

27/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1734/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 23/12/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

4 Dinham Road Exeter Devon EX4 4EE

Proposal:

Subdivision of existing dwelling to create 2 no. two bed flats (C3
Use Class) with associated works.

Page 204

27/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1743/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

11 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3LF

Proposal:

Replacement shop front, 1no. fascia sign and 1no. hanging sign
(Retrospective Application).

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1871/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 16/12/2021
17/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

13 Haldon Road Exeter Devon EX4 4DZ

Proposal:

Replacement of the timber windows with uPVC windows.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1910/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Former Site Of 35 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3LN

Proposal:

External Signage application for Hotel Indigo - previously House of
Fraser. The application is for 2 x vertical signs, 1 x horizontal sign,
1 x wayfinding sign, and 1 x fascia sign - these will display the
Hotel Indigo logo. There will also be 1 x projecting sign, 2 x wall
sign, 2 x window vinyl, and 1 x menu case - these will display the
logos for the spa, restaurant, and sports bar.

26/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0125/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 31/03/2022
16/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Land Adjacent To Flat 58 River Meadows Water Lane Exeter EX2
8BD

Proposal:

Alterations and extension to existing building to provide 3
additional flats (1 on ground floor and 2 at loft level) and relocation
of bin store

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0156/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 24/02/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

First Floor 33-35 Southernhay East Exeter Devon EX1 1NX

Proposal:

Internal alterations including removal of demountable partitions to
convert toilet into shower.

Page 205

19/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0202/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

79-82 Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4 3RP

Proposal:

External alterations to front and side elevations to include change
to exterior colour of ground floor, 2no. internally illuminated
lettering signs, 1no. non-illuminated wall-mounted feature sign,
1no. halo-illuminated projecting sign, replacement lighting and
CCTV system.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0214/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 03/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Plant Cafe 1 Cathedral Yard Exeter Devon EX1 1HJ

Proposal:

Variation of Condition 3 of 04/0867/FUL to amend opening times to
between 0800 and 2230 hours.

06/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0217/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

79-82 Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4 3RP

Proposal:

2no. internally illuminated raised letter fascia signs, 1no. nonilluminated wall-mounted feature sign and 1no. halo-illumated
projecting sign.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0223/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 03/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Plant Cafe 1 Cathedral Yard Exeter Devon EX1 1HJ

Proposal:

Variation of Condition 5 of 07/0820/FUL to allow use of outside
seating between 0800 and 2230 hours.

06/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0240/ECC

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Royal Albert Memorial Museum Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4
3RX

Proposal:

Reroofing works to slate roof to external south west and north west
elevations, and internal roof to front portion of building. Installation
of permanent access ladders, walkways and gantries to provide
safe maintenance access. General external redecoration works to
south west and part south east elevations.

Page 206

26/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0241/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Royal Albert Memorial Museum Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4
3RX

Proposal:

Reroofing works to slate roof to external south west and north west
elevations, and internal roofs to front portion of building. Installation
of permanent access ladders, walkways and gantries to provide
safe maintenance access. General external redecoration works to
south west and part south east elevations.

26/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0287/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Exeter College Further Education Hele Road Exeter Devon EX4
4JS

Proposal:

T1 - Leylandii Cypress, Multi Stem - leaning towards college
building works - Remove to as low as reasonably possible by
means of a chainsaw

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0297/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Colleton Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 4DG

Proposal:

Variation of condition 2 of Planning Permission Ref: 17/1775/FUL,
granted 18 July 2019, to alter layout of rear external space
including 2 new garages and 1 car port, separate garden spaces,
bin and bicycle storage, fencing and other minor works

24/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0305/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 31/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Guildhall 203 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3EB

Proposal:

Re-roofing of the Jury Room, with new natural slates; insulation in
the roof over and between rafters, resulting in raising the height of
the roof by 60mm. Remove false ceiling in the Jury Room, to
expose the trusses and original lath and plaster vaulted ceiling.
Discreet spotlights mounted on the lower chords of the trusses.

20/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0324/ECC

Delegation Briefing: 31/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Guildhall 203 High Street Exeter Devon EX4 3EB

Proposal:

Re-roofing of the Jury Room, with new natural slates; insulation in
the roof over and between rafters, resulting in raising the height of
the roof by 60mm. Remove false ceiling in the Jury Room, to
expose the trusses and original lath and plaster vaulted ceiling.
Discreet spotlights mounted on the lower chords of the trusses.

Page 207

20/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0343/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

31B South Street Exeter Devon EX1 1EB

Proposal:

Install 7 no. white u-PVC double-glazed windows to replace
existing metal-framed units.

26/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 31/03/2022

Application Number: 22/0378/FUL

23/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

110 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 4RW

Proposal:

Installation of front dormer.Hip to gable side roof extension
(Permitted Development)

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0399/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Exeter College Further Education Hele Road Exeter Devon EX4
4JS

Proposal:

Installation of double storey temporary portakabin modular building
for 3 year period.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0400/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Exeter College Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4 3SR

Proposal:

Installation of 2 single storey portakabin buildings to be used as
additional classroom accommodation for a period of 3 years.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0411/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

21-22 Queen Street Exeter Devon EX4 3SH

Proposal:

Archaeological Watching Brief

30/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0423/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Eastgate St Davids Exeter Devon EX1 1GB

Proposal:

Advertisement consent for replacement signage, to include new
font, signs and illuminated lettering at 300 cd/m2.

Page 208

09/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0471/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

21 West View Terrace Exeter Devon EX4 3BP

Proposal:

Single storey pitched roof rear extension and alterations to existing
window to form doorway.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0475/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Barnfield Theatre Barnfield Road Exeter Devon EX1 1SN

Proposal:

Renew existing signage to entrance portico, replace murals to
blocked-up street-facing windows, and add projecting banners and
building illumination.

24/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0512/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Colleton Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 4DG

Proposal:

T1 Evergreen Oak - Reduce height/crown by approx 10ft and
reduce width in order to stem the root growth.

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0528/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Princesshay Centre St Stephens House 9 Catherine Street Exeter
Devon EX1 1EU

Proposal:

Installation of additional fencing and balustrades at the multi-storey
car park (Block R and Block S), Princesshay Shopping Centre.

27/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0532/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022
23/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

7 Friars Walk Exeter Devon EX2 4AY

Proposal:

Two storey side extension and ground floor extension.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0533/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022
23/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

7 Friars Walk Exeter Devon EX2 4AY

Proposal:

Two storey side extension and ground floor extension

Page 209

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0566/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Blockspace St Davids Hill Exeter Devon EX4 4BD

Proposal:

Proposed Construction of Single Storey Storage Facility

08/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0569/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

17 Egham Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 4RQ

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0589/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Venezia Exeter 61 Waterside Exeter Devon EX2 8GY

Proposal:

Installation of glass screens and parasols for external seating area
(retrospective).

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0602/FUL

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

29-30 Princesshay Exeter Devon EX1 1GE

Proposal:

New exterior cladding to shopfront - powder coated metal panels.

11/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0615/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 Eastgate St Davids Exeter Devon EX1 1GB

Proposal:

New exterior cladding to shopfront.

13/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0616/ADV

Delegation Briefing: 19/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 Eastgate St Davids Exeter Devon EX1 1GB

Proposal:

New Fascia with internally illuminated letters. New powder coated
exterior cladding to shopfront surround.

13/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0619/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

24-25 The Mint Exeter Devon EX4 3BL

Proposal:

Internal alterations to combine two flats into one maisonette.

Page 210

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0622/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

24-25 The Mint Exeter Devon EX4 3BL

Proposal:

Internal alterations to combine two flats into one maisonette.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0671/ECC

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Morwenna Court 60B St Davids Hill Exeter Devon EX4 4DS

Proposal:

Siting of two emergency sleeping pods for rough sleepers.

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0719/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Cote 19-21 Cathedral Yard Exeter Devon EX1 1HB

Proposal:

1no. externally illuminated fascia sign and 1no. externally
illuminated projection sign.

13/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0759/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

St Wilfrids School 25-29 St Davids Hill Exeter Devon EX4 4DA

Proposal:

Ref A - Holm Oak - Crown Raise up to a minimum of 5.2m over St
Davids Hill road, not exceeding 6m in height where possible, all
trimming to conform to BS3998 standardsRef B - Yew - Side prung
1m back from the lamp post to appropriate growth points,
conforming with BS3998

13/07/2022

St Loyes
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/0744/ADV

Delegation Briefing:
16/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Moto Hospitality Exeter Motorway Services Area Sidmouth Road
St Loyes Exeter Devon EX2 7HF

Proposal:

Double sided freestanding totem sign at Sidmouth Road junction.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1541/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 25/11/2021

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land On The East Side Of Ludwell Rise Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Two detached dwellings, access, landscaping and associated
works.

Page 211

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Application Number: 22/0159/FUL
Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

30 Quarry Park Road Exeter Devon EX2 5PB

Proposal:

First floor side extension.

26/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing:

Application Number: 22/0195/PD

13/04/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Not Required Date:

Location Address:

36 Sullivan Road Exeter Devon EX2 5RD

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension with 4.8m depth, maximum height of
2.8m and height of eaves are 2.6m.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0209/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Pen Carrie Eagle Way Exeter Devon EX2 7HY

Proposal:

Install 1No steel roller shutter door width 5.5m, height 6.2m to
match existing roller shutter doors. Relocate a fire exit 12m to the
south.

22/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0280/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 10/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Middlegrove Woodwater Lane Exeter Devon EX2 5JY

Proposal:

Remodel existing two bed bungalow to create four bed house;
raise ridge height and construct 3 no. catslide dormers; addition of
first floor and changes to external material finishes.

29/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0325/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

40 Knights Crescent Exeter Devon EX2 7TG

Proposal:

T1 Silver Birch. Reduce lowest southerly limb back to 1st suitable
growth point approximately 2.5m distal from main stem, maximum
diameter of cut 80mm. Thin crown by up to 20%.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0344/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 07/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

53 Bishops Way Exeter Devon EX2 7PF

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

Page 212

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0373/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

29 Couper Meadows Exeter Devon EX2 7TF

Proposal:

Flat roof rear dormer loft conversion and single storey rear
extension.

07/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0374/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

48 Broadfields Road Exeter Devon EX2 5RF

Proposal:

Single storey front extension.

29/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0496/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

7 Edgbaston Mead Exeter Devon EX2 5UB

Proposal:

Replacement of existing garage and conservatory with new ground
floor rear and side extension.

29/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0497/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

8 Crown Way Exeter Devon EX2 7QR

Proposal:

Installation of 9 Solar Panels on rear roof.

02/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0501/VOC

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Police Headquarters Devon And Cornwall Constabulary Police
Training College Alderson Drive Exeter Devon EX2 7HQ

Proposal:

Variation of condition no. 2 of planning application reference
19/0770/FUL to allow temporary car park to be retained for a
further 3 years.

08/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0570/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022
22/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

40 South Grange Clyst Heath Exeter Devon EX2 7EY

Proposal:

Replace window with double doors.

Page 213

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Application Number: 22/0571/LBC

22/06/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

40 South Grange Clyst Heath Exeter Devon EX2 7EY

Proposal:

Replace window with double doors.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0603/FUL

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Cartref Heath Road Exeter Devon EX2 5JX

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension; loft conversion with flat roof dormer.
Extension of single garage to create a detached double garage.

23/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0628/ADV

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Birchy Barton Service Station Honiton Road St Loyes Exeter
Devon EX1 3EB

Proposal:

3 no. freestanding advertisement signs

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0630/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

50 Quarry Lane Exeter Devon EX2 5PR

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

04/07/2022

St Thomas
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 21/1875/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Unit 19 Railway Arches Cowick Street Exeter Devon EX4 1AJ

Proposal:

Change of use from B2 signmakers to E(d) martial arts gym.

01/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0311/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Date:

Location Address:

12 Nadder Park Road Exeter Devon EX4 1NS

Proposal:

Two storey side extension.

05/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0395/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

147 Okehampton Road Exeter Devon EX4 1ER

Proposal:

Loft conversion with rear dormer and front roof lights.

Page 214

23/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0419/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Oak Road Exeter Devon EX4 1QB

Proposal:

Construction of fence in front garden boundary measuring 1.6m
high.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0435/TEL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022
11/05/2022

Decision Type:

Prior Approval Required and Date:
Granted

Location Address:

Land Next To Unit 6 Exebridge Centre Cowick Street Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Proposed telecommunications installation: proposed 15.0m Phase
9 Slimline Monopole and associated ancillary works.

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0468/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

161 Okehampton Road Exeter Devon EX4 1ES

Proposal:

Change of use from residential dwelling to a children's home
providing care for up to 2 children living together as a single
household (Use Class C3(b))

19/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0508/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Crossmead Villas Dunsford Road Exeter Devon EX2 9PU

Proposal:

Replacement garaging and storage building and new car port in
place of existing garden shed.

09/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0509/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

3 Crossmead Villas Dunsford Road Exeter Devon EX2 9PU

Proposal:

Replacement garaging and storage building and new car port in
place of existing garden shed.

09/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0549/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

8 Crawford Gardens Exeter Devon EX2 8HQ

Proposal:

Creation of parking area with landscaping in association with
attached dwelling. (Retrospective)

Page 215

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0560/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

103 Wardrew Road Exeter Devon EX4 1EZ

Proposal:

Hip-to-gable extension, rear dormers and front roof lights.

06/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0576/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

16 Landscore Road Exeter Devon EX4 1EW

Proposal:

Single-storey rear extension.

31/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0692/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

69 Myrtle Road Exeter Devon EX4 1QA

Proposal:

Construction of new double garage and gym/shed storage.

01/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0694/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

56 Queens Road Exeter Devon EX2 9EP

Proposal:

Single storey rear extension.

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0729/TPO

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Ebrington Road Exeter Devon

Proposal:

Lombardy Poplar - Reduce by approximately 8m to previous
points.

13/07/2022

Topsham
Delegated Decision
Application Number: 18/1855/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Withdrawn Returned
(unlikely to be det.)

Date:

Location Address:

Land To North Of Exeter Road And Adjacent To Topsham Rugby
Club Exeter

Proposal:

Discharge of Condition 15 Energy statement. (Rel. to
14/2066/OUT)

Page 216

19/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 27/05/2021

Application Number: 21/0760/FUL

03/05/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

Mansard Parkfield Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0ET

Proposal:

Demolition of existing dwelling to be replaced by new dwelling,
ancillary annexe and garage

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 03/03/2022

Application Number: 21/1823/FUL
Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

60 Glasshouse Lane Exeter Devon EX2 7BU

Proposal:

Single storey side extension.

20/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Delegation Briefing: 03/03/2022

Application Number: 21/1960/FUL
Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

431 Topsham Road Exeter Devon EX2 7AB

Proposal:

Single storey front elevation extension.

21/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0158/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Ikea Way Exeter Devon EX2 7RX

Proposal:

Extension to retail store for use for Click and Collect operations
and enlarged home delivery area, modifications to store car park
and internal vehicular circulation route, and extension to south
elevation to provide new goods lift. (Amended proposal
description)

20/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0169/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Boat Storage Area The Quay The Strand Topsham Exeter Devon
EX3 0JB

Proposal:

Two replacement windows.

13/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0184/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/02/2022
13/04/2022

Decision Type:

Refuse Planning Permission Date:

Location Address:

44 The Strand Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0BB

Proposal:

Change of roof finish material from Approved Applications Refs.
20/0764/LBC and 20/0763/FUL.

Page 217

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0207/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Boat Storage Area The Quay The Strand Topsham Exeter Devon
EX3 0JB

Proposal:

Two replacement windows.

13/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0307/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 17/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

30 Jack Sadler Way Exeter Devon EX2 7FP

Proposal:

Conservatory to the rear of the existing property (Part
retrospective)

13/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0316/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 31/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

14 Old Rydon Ley Exeter Devon EX2 7UA

Proposal:

Construction of side extension. Insertion of new bi-fold opening to
rear.

06/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0319/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

32 Liberty Way Exeter Devon EX2 7AS

Proposal:

Loft conversion to provide fourth bedroom with installation of 5 no.
roof lights and 2 no. upper gable side windows.

24/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0323/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

Land Adjoining Exeter Road Exeter Road Topsham Devon

Proposal:

Discharge of conditions 6 (Biodiversity Mitigation and
Enhancement Plan) and 19 (Landscape and Ecology Management
Plan) of Outline Planning permission ref no 19/1465/OUT granted
on 8th July 2021.

Page 218

12/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0329/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Broom Park Nurseries Exeter Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3
0LY

Proposal:

Non-material minor amendment to condition 2 (approved drawings)
to amend layout comprising Plot 30 (Reorientation of Appley house
type), Plot 8 (Revert back to a variation of Kinnersley house type
as previously shown on original planning permission), Plot 19
(Variation of fenestration to Petworth house type). (Non-material
Minor Amendment to Planning Permission reference no.
20/0321/FUL granted on 12th July 2021).

28/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0330/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Rivendell Denver Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0BS

Proposal:

Amendment of basement layout.

26/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0332/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

Rivendell Denver Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0BS

Proposal:

Discharge of condition 4 (SAP Calculations) of planning permission
21/1340/FUL.

16/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0339/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Partially
Approved

Date:

Location Address:

12 Monmouth Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0AJ

Proposal:

Discharge of Conditions 4 (Materials) and 5 (SAP Calculations) of
planning permission 21/0147/FUL.

14/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0359/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 24/03/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

25 Liberty Way Exeter Devon EX2 7AS

Proposal:

Insertion of roof lights to front and rear elevations; bi-fold doors to
dining room.

24/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0405/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Lighter Inn Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HZ

Proposal:

Replacement paving, rope perimeter barrier, and five lamp posts.

Page 219

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0406/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Lighter Inn Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HZ

Proposal:

Replacement paving, rope perimter barrier, and five lamp posts

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0429/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 14/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

First Floor 76 Fore Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0HQ

Proposal:

Change of use of part of first floor office to dwelling, and
incorporate existing flat above to form 1x maisonette over 1st and
2nd floors.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0432/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 16/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

11 Seabrook Mews Exeter Devon EX2 7DU

Proposal:

Single storey extension to replace conservatory (Retrospective).

11/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0458/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

9 Exeter Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0LQ

Proposal:

Retrospective replacement garage.

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0490/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 05/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

12 High Street Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0EA

Proposal:

Partial re-render, and replacement timber double glazed door.

24/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0493/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 28/04/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

20 Elm Grove Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0EQ

Proposal:

Roof extension to the existing side gable, unenclosed porch on
front elevation and single storey rear extension.

Page 220

04/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0515/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Orchard Way Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0LB

Proposal:

T1 Cedar - reduce height by approximately 2 metres, cutting
growth points wherever possible. Tip pruning of lateral limbs to
balance shape and provide clearance of the property. Lateral limbs
to be reduced between 300mm and 1200mm with maximum cut
diameters of 50mm

25/04/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0554/CAT

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

The Mews Bowling Green Road Riversmeet Topsham Exeter
Devon EX3 0BE

Proposal:

T1 Double stemmed Holm Oak reduce co-dominant stem growing
over wall to approx 3 metres high, T2 Larger Holm Oak leaning
towards wall - Fell To prevent further damage to the sea wall.After
the December storm the resident needed to get repairs made to
the wall, the resident was informed by the contractors that the
roots of the above trees are damaging the wall, since these repairs
further cracks have appeared in the cement between stones which
will now need repairing again this year. The neighbouring
properties with similar frontages have already felled trees by the
wall as two of them have had breaches which (apparently) cost six
figure sums to repair.

18/05/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0597/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 12/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Riversmeet Boathouse Bowling Green Road Riversmeet Topsham
Exeter Devon EX3 0BE

Proposal:

Construction of detached car port.

30/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0600/LPD

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Was lawful use

Date:

Location Address:

Wixels Ferry Road Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0JH

Proposal:

Partial demolition of some external walls; rebuilding and repair, on
a like-for-like basis.

27/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0665/LBC

Delegation Briefing: 26/05/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

50 The Strand Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0AS

Proposal:

Miscellaneous refurbishment and additonal works pursuant to
21/1942/LBC.

Page 221

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0693/FUL

Delegation Briefing: 02/06/2022

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

10 Endeavour Avenue Exeter Devon EX2 7GR

Proposal:

Single storey Summer Room extension to rear of property.

07/07/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0716/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

Land Off Newcourt Road Newcourt Road Topsham Devon

Proposal:

Non-material amendment to condition 12 of planning approval
20/0437/FUL to introduce different specification documents in
respect of external lighting (Non-material minor amendment to
Planning Permission reference No. 20/0437 granted on the 22nd
October 2020).

10/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0746/NMA

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Permitted

Date:

Location Address:

1 Ikea Way Exeter Devon EX2 7RX

Proposal:

Non-Material Amendment to planning permission ref. 13/4525/01
to change the wording of condition 14 from:"The development
hereby approved shall include at least 1,004 car parking spaces
unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall not be occupied until the car parking spaces
have been provided.Reason: In the interests of highway
safety."To:"The development hereby approved shall include at
least 960 car parking spaces unless otherwise agreed with the
Local Planning Authority.Reason: In the interests of highway
safety."

23/06/2022

Delegated Decision
Application Number: 22/0797/DIS

Delegation Briefing:

Decision Type:

Condition(s) Fully
Discharged

Date:

Location Address:

9 Parkfield Way Topsham Exeter Devon EX3 0DP

Proposal:

Window arrangements and materials to be in accordance with the
schedule attached. This includes:New and replacement windows
as listed in aluminium frames in Anthracite (RAL 7016) to the rear
and side;2no. replacement uPVC (as existing) to upper storey.
Note not all windows are affected, as per annotated elevations.

Total Applications: 298

Page 222

29/06/2022

Agenda Item 10
REPORT TO:
Date of Meeting:
Report of:
Title:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
25th July 2022
City Development Strategic Lead
Appeals Report

Is this a Key Decision? No
Is this an Executive or Council Function? No
1.

What is the report about?

1.1

The report provides Members with information on latest decisions received and new
appeals since the last report.

2.

Recommendation:

2.1

Members are asked to note the report.

3.

Appeal Decisions

3.1

21/1892/LPD – 42 Hoopern Street – Certificate of lawfulness of proposed use as 3 bed
HMO.
The Council concluded the change from 2 bedroom mid-terrace dwelling, to 3 bedroom
HMO was not considered lawful. The Council considered the applicant has not provided
sufficient evidence to justify on the balance that the work would not result in an intensified
use of the property. The Council considered the additional resident would change the
property so it would become a different character, and would constitute a material change
of use. The application site is within an article four area which removes the permitted
development right for change of use from C3 use to C4 use.
The Inspector considered whether an additional person was a material change of use. If
the change of use between uses is not material, then it is not development within the
meaning of s55(1). The Council considered the proposal would result in an intensified use
of the property such that an additional resident would change the property to a different
character and thereby lead to a material change of use. The Inspector stated the Council
provided little clarity in respect of how one additional person would lead to this. Whilst an
additional person would lead to additional pressure on existing facilities it does not follow
that this would necessarily be so detrimental to the living conditions of the residents to
contribute to a material change of use of the property. Little weight was attached to this
aspect of the Council’s case.
While a third resident may well lead to additional comings and goings, The Inspector said
the Council failed to quantify them or to direct attention to specific adverse effects of
increasing the number of occupants by one person in any level of detail to support their
judgement that the proposal would lead to a change in the character of the area. The
character of the area will remain as a terraced residential area with little change to the
housing stock or its occupation as a result. They said whilst the Article 4 Direction was
introduced with a clear purpose of limiting the effects of community imbalance, the proposal
would not, in their view, materially affect that purpose. Accordingly, the appeal was
allowed.

3.2

21/1638/FUL – 16-18 Sidwell Street – Change of use to HMO for 6 residents.

Page 223

The application was refused because of the effect of the proposal on the character and
community balance of the area; on future occupiers privacy; and the lack of cycle parking.
The appeal site is within the city centre. The Inspector noted whilst there are some
residential uses locally, for instance above shops, the area character is predominantly
commercial, consisting mainly of high street stores and associated uses, including on the
appeal site’s ground floors. The area’s character, mix and balance are therefore already
very different from the residential areas of the St James neighbourhood that the Council’s
policy framework seeks to protect. In this context, the effect of the proposed development
would be small and would not undermine the area’s commercial character, or the mix or
balance of residential uses. They concluded that the proposal would not harm the
character, mix or balance of the local community and the proposal does not conflict with
policy.
A degree of intervisibility is to be expected in urban locations. As the proposed new
windows would be perpendicular to those of the adjacent flats, neighbours’ privacy would
be maintained. A proposed fire door which would give access to a flat roof area was also
considered to not raise privacy issues.
The proposal would provide no additional cycle parking spaces for future occupiers. Given
the city centre location, with access to public transport, and the practical difficulties of
providing cycle storage given the limited space within the building, and noting the Transport
SPD states specifically that its cycle parking requirements may be more difficult to achieve
with conversions, rather than new-build development, the Inspector concluded the proposal
was acceptable despite conflict with policy and the site’s accessible location would promote
and maximise sustainable transport for future occupiers. Accordingly, the appeal was
allowed.
3.3

20/1158/FUL– 141 Salters Road – Proposed new two-bedroom dwelling.
The development description on the planning application form refers to a two-bedroom
dwelling. However, prior to the Council refusing planning permission the scheme was
revised to a one-bedroom dwelling.
The site is within influence of the Exe Estuary Special Protection Area (the SPA) and the
Pebblebed Heaths Special Protection Area and Special Area of Conservation (the
SPA/SAC). These are European Designated Sites afforded protection under the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017.
The main issues were ,the effect of the proposal on the integrity of the SPA and the
SPA/SAC, the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area, and,
whether adequate living conditions would be created for future occupiers of the dwelling
and 141 Salters Road, with reference to outside space.
The appeal was dismissed for the following reasons;
The Habitats Regulations require that permission may only be granted for a development
where the competent authority has ascertained that it will not adversely affect the integrity
of the European Designated Site(s).
These sites are also important recreational resources, and it is likely that occupants of the
dwelling would visit them. There is no dispute between the main parties, nor Natural
England, that it cannot be ruled out that the proposal, when considered alone or
cumulatively with other schemes, would therefore have significant effects on the features of
interest of the SPA and the SPA/SAC due to increased recreational use.

Page 224

It is also agreed that this could be mitigated by a financial contribution made pursuant to
the South-east Devon European Site Mitigation Strategy.
No habitats contribution or assessment was given by the applicant in this regard the
potential harm cannot be assessed and therefore the appeal is dismissed on the basis of
lack of information in this respect.
In regards to the other reasons for refusal such as design in regards to imp[act to street
scene and impact of amenity provision.
In regards to design, No 141 is a modest end of terrace dwelling with a side garden
occupying an elevated position at the street corner. However, open corners are not a
particular characteristic of the surrounding street scene nor are houses always set back
from the road. Whilst the decking to the side of the dwelling would have to be enclosed, I
consider that this could be achieved with a suitable, lightweight and unimposing
balustrading arrangement. As such, the proposal would have an acceptable effect on the
character and appearance of the area. It would accord with the relevant aims of Objective 9
and Policies CP4 and CP17 of the CS, saved Policies H2, DG1 and DG6 of the Exeter
Local Plan First Review 1995-2011 (ELP) and the Framework.
Saved Policy DG4 of the ELP, amongst other things, states that proposals should be at the
maximum feasible density taking into account site constraints, and that proposals should
also ensure a quality of amenity which allows residents to feel at ease within their gardens.
Its supporting text elucidates that private garden spaces should not normally be smaller
than 55 sq. metres, but the orientation and scale of buildings will be taken into account, and
less space may be adequate for smaller houses. No 141’s side garden slopes steeply in
places so as to make it of limited practical use, and its small front garden is not private.
Thus, the subdivision of its grounds in the manner proposed would create usable, private
garden spaces for the new dwelling and No 141 which would respectively fall below the
spatial standards set out within the Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document
(adopted 2010) (the SPD). Nonetheless, the principal garden space for the new dwelling,
formed to its side by decking, would offer an elevated position with excellent outlook and
would have access to high levels of sunlight.
4.

New Appeals

4.1

21/0020/OUT – Land Off Pendragon Road – Outline planning application for a residential
development of up to 100 dwellings and associated infrastructure (All matters reserved
except access).

4.2

21/0894/OUT – Land On The West Side Of Clyst Road, Topsham - Outline planning
application for the construction of up to 100 dwellings and associated infrastructure (Means
of access to be determined with scale, layout, appearance and landscaping reserved for
future consideration).

4.3

21/1032/TPO – Play Area, Vernon Crescent - T32 Plane (Platanus x hispanica) - Crown
reduction.

4.4

21/1770/FUL – 18 Friars Walk - First floor extension to existing bungalow and new
external material finishes.

4.5

21/0223/OUT – Land At Home Farm Between Church Hill And Park Lane - Outline
planning application for the construction of up to 61 dwellings and associated infrastructure.

Page 225

4.6

21/0805/FUL – The Plot Of Land Between Dwellings 39-41 Toronto Road - Demolition
of 11 garages and construction of three, 2-storey, 3-bedroom dwellinghouses, with integral
garages, private amenity space and first floor balcony to rear.

4.7

21/1023/TPO – Gable House, Exwick Manor, 237 Exwick Road - Tree1: American Red
Oak - Fell and root removal for proposed garage application. Tree 2: Sycamore - Fell and
root removal for proposed garage application.

4.8

21/1513/FUL – 2 Baring Crescent – Two storey side extension.

4.9

21/1864/FUL – Former Exeter Royal Academy For Deaf Education, 50 Topsham Road
– Redevelopment for retirement living accommodation (60 years old and/or partner over 55
years old) comprising 84 retirement apartments including communal facilities, access, car
parking and landscaping.

4.10

22/0045/LED – 13 Devonshire Place – Change of use from HMO for 6 residents to HMO
for 7 residents.

4.11

22/0279/ADV – 14 Trusham Road, Marsh Barton Trading Estate – Pair of illuminated
48-sheet digital poster displays.

4.12

22/0346/LED – 2A Blackboy Road - Certificate of lawfulness sought for existing use: small
4 bedroom House in Multiple Occupation (C4 Use Class).

4.13

21/1666/FUL – Fernleigh Nurseries, Ludwell Lane - Conversion of existing nursery
buildings/garage to single dwelling (Resubmission of Refused Planning Application Ref:
20/1678/FUL).

4.14

21/1834/FUL – The Headland, Woodwater Lane - Retention of extension to and
conversion of existing garage to ancillary, residential annexe (Retrospective Application).

4.15

22/0159/FUL – 30 Quarry Park - First floor side extension.
Ian Collinson
Director of City Development
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background papers used in compiling the report:
Letters, application files and appeal documents referred to in report are available for
inspection from: City Development, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter
Contact for enquiries: Democratic Services (Committees) - Tel: 01392 265275

Page 226

Agenda Item 11
REPORT TO:
DATE OF MEETING:
REPORT OF:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
25 JULY 2022
Corporate Manager Democratic and Civic Support

TITLE:

Planning Site Inspections

Is this a Key Decision?
No
Is this an Executive or Council Function?
No
1.

What is the report about?

1.1

To agree a schedule of dates and rota of Members for site inspection parties.

1.2

Normally inspections will commence at 9.30 a.m.

2.
2.1
3.

Recommendations:
that the schedule of dates be approved.
Reason for the recommendation:

3.1

To advice Members in advance of meeting dates

4.

Report Details:
Proposed dates and rota for site inspections are:Tuesday 23 August 2022

Councillors Bialyk, Foale and M. Mitchell

Tuesday 27 September 2022

Councillors D. Moore, Hannaford and Lights

Tuesday 1 November 2022

Councillors Morse, Newby and Snow

Tuesday 29 November 2022

Councillors Jobson, Branston and Sutton

Tuesday 3 January 2023

Councillors Bialyk, Asvachin and Bennett

Tuesday 7 February 2023

Councillors Hannaford, Foale and M. Mitchell

Tuesday 14 March 2023

Councillors Branston, Lights and D. Moore

Tuesday 11 April 202

Councillors Morse, Snow and Newby

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 (as amended)
Background Documents
None
CORPORATE MANAGER DEMOCRATIC AND CIVIC SUPPORT
15 JULY 2022

Page 227

This page is intentionally left blank

